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Places for People is a placemaker. We build

homes and communities where everyone
is welcome and can thrive.

Our purpose is to create and manage living
places that are sustainable — economically,
socially and environmentally. '

With over 50 years’ experience, we have a
uniquely broad view of what it takes to create
a sustainable community.

We take a commercial approach to delivering
social outcomes — all our profits go back into
helping people achieve their aspirations and
making places work for everyone.
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Operating profit ©

é %2ﬂ®m3m 2020/21
:£206./m oy

" Affordable housing
£662.0m o osons

51.5

19.5
® Leisure management 10.7
@ Property management 7.5
{) Non-social lettings . 4.5
@ Construction 5.1
) Other 1.2

o
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Performance highlights

Turnover
Figures shown infm 866.7
i “995.1 827.1
754.4 I

2918 2019

Fixed assets

Figures shown inm

4,497 4,531

:’697 II

2017 2818 2819

2821

Reserves
Figures shown infm B 562.4
489.8

]79-0 I I

2017 2018 2819

2821

@ Other adjustiments*
® Underlying profit

Profit before tax
Figures shown in Em 138.2
“Other

adjustments

represents

profitan sale

119.7
95.5

91.2
of fixed assets,
on revaluation

i N R

propertiesand [IKZX] "
for negative

loss or gain
of investment
adjusiments
goodwill.
2017 2818 2819 20280 2021

Homes owned or managed. 220
Figures shown in 1,000s properties

209
199 197
ms I |

2017 2818 2819 2828
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for People’s newly

to creating social impact,
and the skills and resources
to continue the successful
development of the Group.”

N

- A message from our Chair

- Richard
‘Gregory

J

0o

ueuy | Woday

1202 Sun02Yy pue 1oday jenuuy dnosg ajdoag Joj sase)q

[=]
~

| woday abarens

N4

These qualities were what first attracted me to
this role alongside the opportunity to continue

Chris Phillips. Having served many years
on the board, Chris has overseen many
progressive changes at Places for People,
and | would like to thank him for his hard
work, guidance and dedication.

Iwould atsa fike to say thank you to
non-executive directors Adam Cleal, Amjad
Hussain, Tracey James and Liz Woolman -

who stepped down from the Group boardin
January 202). Their contribution has helped

We will also be developing and strengthening

the Group's core affardable housing offer,

buitding on the successes of the past year.

We will be keeping this momentum going

while seeking to maximise the polenlial

of the Group's complementary businesses,

recognising the crucial contribution they

all make to delivering our placemaking

objectives.

As pant of our wider strategy 1o improve

governance, another important aim in the year

ahead is to enhance accountability, not onty to
Y P

to further streng: d create

other it board level and beyond.

he
strang foundations for us 10 build on in the
years ahead.

‘The past year has seen us face a number
of challenges and there are more an the way,

\mproving board has beg
key focus for the Group in recent months and
this has ted to a number of changes. We have
reduced the size of the baard and implemented
amore simplified structure to drive efficiency,
focus accountability on the Group board and
ultimatety, improve the quality of the service
we provide 10 our customers.

Over the next 12 months, | will be warking with
the Group baard to focus on several key areas
35 part of a long-lerm sirategic approach.
Foltowing the announcement that David

Cowans will be retiring in March 2022, work
is h and

driven by y standards, higher
benchmarks for building standards and fire
safety, and the move to zero carbon. As a
Graup we have already put measures in place
1o address these changes. This work will -
continue to ensure we are well pasitioned
for what lies ahead and that our customers
benefit from the highest quality homes and
neighbourhoods.

1 wauld like to thank all our colleagues for
their hard work and cammitment over the past
year especially with the unprecedented
challenges of the Covid pandemic. As Places.
for People begins its next chapter, | am

successful iransition to a new Chief Executive.
David has built a very strong executive team
throughout the Group businesses and will
leave an incredible legacy. Our priority is

10 make sure this remains in safe hands.

g ing with peaple
across the Group 1o build on our
‘achieverents in 2020/21 and contributing
ta the Group’s fiture success.

Richard Gregory OBE
Group Chairman
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911

affordable homes
completed

Our achievements in 2020/21

2186

£13.4m

invested in fire
safety improvements

More than

217000

homes under
management

£117.1m

invested in repairs and
capital improvements

£165m

created in social value through our
Affordable Housing business (£127m),
Places Leisure (£31m) and
Developments business (E7m)

Over

700

hods_e sales.

" Retained Investors

in People Gold
accreditation
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New partnerships formed
with Countryside and the
National Grid, strengthening
our placemaking capabilities
and delivering a further

U0 .

65,000

‘customers contacted in
lockdown through a newly
formed Taskforce

Widespread industry
recognition for the Group’s
culture, placemaking
|| abilities and social impact
with a total of .

25

awards A

leisure centres repurposed

to benefitlocal communltles
durmg Cov1d-19
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As a Group, our fo
on creating and managing
places, providing products
id servicestocustomers
across the UK.”

Group Chief Executive’s statement

David
Cowans
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 The pandemic has had a significant impact *

on our activities over the past year: From the
shift to remote working and closure of parts.
of our business, through to socially-distanced
home visits ta ensure our customers’ safety

and welibeing, there have been many changes *

across our .

A key initiative was the formation of an
Affordatle Housing Customer Taskforce
comprising 175 colleagues. This leam ensured
more than 65,000 customers were contacted.
during the lockdowns, helping 1o provide vital
support and assistance.

1 am incredibly proud of everyone who works
here and how we have respanded to these
challenges. | would like to pay tribute 10

the resilience, energy, and dedication my
colleagues have shown, which has enabled
us (o deliver positive outcomes for the Group,
our customers and communities.

In the past year, the Places for People Group
delivered a urnaver of £816.5m and a profit
betare tax of £79.Im. We retained our GINV
status for governance and financial viability,
the highest possibte rating to be awarded by
the Regulator of Sacial Hausing,

We have also improved our operating model
to drive hurther effciencies and are proud to

The creation of more .
the UK has remained a key focus for the Group
and we have kept construction on track
throughout the pandemic. This has seen us
build atotal of 911 new affordable homes over
the past year with a urther 697 under construction.

We now have more than 217,000 homes under
management and continue 1o progress our
large-scale placemaking activities. Milestones
have been reached across our developments
and are set out in this repon, along with
details of new partnerships that wilt further
bolster our pipeline across tenures.

Our existing homes continue to improve
through significant investment. In total, we
invested just over £117m in repairs and capital

: in People Gold
accreditation. which is testament to the
strength of our People First approach.

The Group’s strength and flexibility combined
with aur SPIRIT values and People First
approach. have enabled us 10 respond quickly
to unprecedented change.

h intained vital

in 2020/21. This included the
délivery of a wide range of fire safety measures,
which is ensuring we work ta stay in step with
future changes in legislation. *

As a Group, we have leamt a lot from the
pandemic, and this is putting us in a strong
position far the year ahead.

for customers and communities, continued
1o callaborate to create sustainable places,
and supported each other to keep connected
and motivated. .

Our commitment to delivering social impact
has also sirengthened over the past year.
The eftects of the pandemic on our customers
‘and wider communities have been significant,
and we have responded in a variety of ways
ranging from invesiment and grants through
10 volunteering and taitored support.

We have i for positive
change, including new and more efficient ways
of working that coutd further strengthen the
Group. tn my last year as Chief Execulive, this
will be a key focus along with our continued
commitment to work ta creale and manage
living places that are sustainable —
economically, socially and environmentally.

David Cowans
Group Chief Executive
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Our purpose is to create and

Places = . - . . Ourpurpos ) |
: ' . manage living places that are

for People

. . . e . Y 3 - . .
isaleadina  © . ot sustainable — economically,
isaleading = - = | g . _ . R .
g _ : . E 1 socially and environmentally. -
placemaker, - | o B | | Yy & DI S
focusedon o ) e
: : . ‘ - - R / homes which m’.nhi-_uihl; for our customers
. . X . . = at every stage of their housing journey.
affordable ) E ) : ::z + We maximise the social impact of our ' L
‘housing . : g s |
) e . . " g . -Durasuls‘amn'\nnagvadinaway'lhal
. 3 ensures they meet environmental
‘é standands and are fit for the future,
The Group’s placemaking, property ’ o s I - ’ - ’ L o

investment, development; and management
Companies are aclive throughout the UK.
Collectively, these companies have the

expertise ta create and manage entire places, ’ .o Our values -

considering all the things a place needs L . -
10 become a sustainable community. . Everything we do is underpinned by our SPIRIT
§ . . values. These have been developed with our
Our long-lerm ambition is ta change the way L || stefi and are embedded in how the Places for
 places are designed, built and managed to - . o .| People Group is managed and operated.

create housing choices that improve peaple’s
lives. By taking a commercial approach

1o placemaking, we also defiver a positive .
impact on our comrunities. . Support

—
o

| woday a1Baieng

2

e We recagnise the significant social, economic -
Alv‘/lays {he[e «du hsi:[) B . and environmental issues faced by society and |
customers and calleagues . we position oursetves to respond o them through

. _— aur diverse and complementary businesses. This ~ .o
N 2 Positi approach is detailed in our latest environmental,”
o A’”':"e . socialand governance (ESG)repart ~ *
B ‘can do’ attitude:
O . Ossio encouraging others to achieve placesfarpeople.co.uk/newa/publications
- - n _ Integrity ’ . . S L ) '
1S to create Always delivering on pramisos: . o . . .
being open and hanest . .
places that
. . o Treating people f
or] ﬁ)r ¢ and with understanding
. Innovative ’ . T . . N
eve one . Open to new ideas: . . )
). . . not afraid of failure . . .

Je1ouBul4 | 110day

Together .
Believing more can be achieved : : . . ) ; -
by working well with others - . ~ -
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Our homes
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. phases af the We will
" North Tyneside Council to defiver the remaining

Where we operate

Tornagrain
Inverness
Tornagrain is a new sustainable town,

The Engine Yard
Edinburgh .
The Engine Yard, Leith Walk, faltows the

traditions of the Highlands. In partnership with

of a former tocal authority .
brownfietd site in Edinburgh. The ongoing

Moray Estates, we loping

f this significant city centre

a mix of homes in a ity with

“village parks. tennis caurts and allotments.

The most recent phase comprises 97 homes
across all tenures. :

Chapelton

Aberdaenshire

Chapelton, Aberdeen; is a new sustainable
town and community. The masterplan includes
five neighbourhood centres, local shops, and
fve neighbo .

site atotat of 388
homes, 76 of which are for sacial rent, 156 for
mid-market rent, three far private rentat and
157 for market sate. The Engine Yard also has
aPlaces Gym and a mix of cammercial spaces.

Poundbury

Dorset

/

Longniddry Village

Esst Lothian

Longniddry Village, East Lothian, s a commuunity
of up 500 homes developed in partnership
with tandowners Wemyss and March Estates.
This new neighbourhood is our first faray into
East Lothian, bringing sustainable new hames
and designs inspired by local towns.

t
s at aur y
in Darset, the Duchy of Cornwall's urban

extension to Dorchester. A total of 66 houses

with the Duke of Fie, the Scottish Government,
and Aberdeenshire Council, we will bé delivering
up ta 8,000 homes across all tenures.

Smith's Dock
North Tyneside

" Work has continued a1 Smith’s Dock, North.

Shields, where we have already delivered two

ly being built, with the canstruction
of a further 85 homes on the community’s
northern quadrant still to come. We have
recently handed over the first affordable
homes at Sallash Place with homes for

sale due to be completed in summer 2021.

Woolmer Copse
Borden
This in East Hampshire has,

to date, comprised three phases and the final
four hames will be completed in June 2021.
Maple Fietds will affer 60 hames for rent and
shared ownership. A further phasa of circa
90homes for sale and rent is i the pipeine
with a planning application due to be submitted
in summer 2021.

Gilston I.’ark Estate.

Port Loop

Birmingham  ° Hertfordshire

The transformation of Port Laop intd a new Our planning applications for up to 8,500
family-tocus ide nei with | newhi " ing i

phases and are currently assessing our oplions
regarding future phases,

s first public park in 20 years
continues. In total, 1,150 new homes will be
created, along wilh commercial property and
cammunity facilities on the 43-acre site close
to Birmingham city centre. A tota! of 77 new homes
were delivered in phase ane with construction

including two new crossings over the River
Stort to connect ta Haslow New Town, are due
10 be considered at a planning cammittee later
this year. or earty next year. We will invest
in the Harlow Investment Fund', parinering
‘with Homes England and local councils to

o .

of phase twa further
138 homes. Traditional and mod hod:

drive growth
in Harlow

of construction will speed up delivery.
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East Wick and Sweetwater
London

In a joint venture with Balfour Beatly
Investments, we will deliver circa 1,800 homes
(includir ir community

Egham

Runnymede

The first development delivered through our
partnership with Runnymede Borough Council
was Egham Leisure Centre. We are now

green spacés, b
elsure and

12 months into a major
inEah: i

at this development in London. Phase one wilk
be complete in summer 2021 and phase two
is due to start on site in summer 2022.

CarrLodge

Doncaster

" The second phase of the masterplan for

Carr Lodge wilt see the delivery of 460 new
homes. Warking in partnership with the lead
developer, we are delivering 197 affordable
rent / shared ownership homes and a further
30 PRS apartments. The first homes have
begun to be let to local families and aur
shared awnership hames are popular with
first time buyers.

Brooklands

Mitton Keynes

Atotal of 1,500 homes have now been

completed at Braoklands and a further

1,000 are expected to be completed by 2023.

Brooklands Square, a development of 121

houses and apartments together with shops;
d a public square, leted

West, This will deliver 101 apartments,
purpose-built student accommodation.

a boutique cinema and a number of retal
units, all due for completion in early 2022.

Seacroft Crescent
Leeds.
Part of the Leeds BrownField Development
Programeme, this site is providing 49 two and
three bedraom houses for affordable rent and
shared ownership, as part of the ongoing

f hi i Atotal

Lower Herne

Kent

We have recently exchanged contracts

on the first site 1o come forward at part

of the Countryside Framework as signed in
December 2020, This large site in'Kent spans.
44.3 Hectares (110 acres) and has outline
planning permission for circa 800 new homes.
An application for the approval of reserved
matters for the first phase is due to be
submitted imminently and new homes will

be delivered from earty 2023.

Alsska Street

Blackburn

Working in partnership with the tocal

authority, we have delivered 73 modutar

homes for aflardable rent in Blackburm,

including two, three and four-bedroom homes
d two b

of 33 affordable rent and 16 shared ownership
homes will be delivered to provide affordable
housing in this area.

Walker Riverside

Newcastl

This development is part of the regeneration
of the Walker Riverside area to the east of the
city centre. It s providing new, affordable rent
homes in partnership with Newcastle City

Council A totat of 4D new homes on Chalfont -

d in 2019/20 and a further

summer 2020. The sales affice relocated into
the Square at he same time and al but ane
of the homes has been sold

35 hames were delivered at Whamier Street
in February 2021. .

. Amang them are four
family homes with bespoke facilties, each
created for people caring for severely  \
physically disabled children. The project team
adapted the layouts in conjunction with
occupatianal therapists 5o that the families
can'lve in fit-for-purpose homes.

|eroueuly | 1ioday
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With a focus oh»affordable housing, we
build a wide range of homes for people at

every stage of their lives from students,

first-time buyers, and young renters right
through to those seeking to retire.

’

From small housing devetopments through
1o large-scate regeneratian projects, we tailar
our homes to the needs of the local area, take
responsibility for our énvironmental impact,
and put Peopte First 1o build a sense of
community.

- Where possible, we take an infrastructure led

approach to development. This means that
prior to building new homes, we deliver the
services and products needed to make a place
thrive — whether those are new schools,
shops, leisure facilities, and job opportunities
or access to learning, training or specialist
SUppOrt services.

Industry recognition

The quality of our homes and approach to
development has been recognised with a string
of industry awards over the last financial year.
We achieved mare awards than any other
housebuilder at the WhatHouse? Awards 2020,
including the silver award for Best Large

Housebuilder.
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We use our assets andin ity to achieve thy s

Haw we deliver our strategy evolves over lime as we seek lo balance the
different priorities of our stakehalders as well as the oppartunilies and
risks which arise from changes in our extemal environmenl.

Each year, we assess how bes! to deploy our resaurces 1o create
ving places that are sustail soclally
Thi h has shaped a strategy focused an

nd
four priorities:

Creating more
affordable housing
Creating and maintaining high-quality homes, supported

housing, and inclusive neighbourhoods where new and
existing custamers wanl Lo live, is at the heart of what we

do. We deliver and manage good quality places, and create

more and better affordable housing, providing value for
money and a service that enables our customers to thrive.

i

Improving the social impact
we have on communities

We create social impact through our core work in creating

thriving cammunities by providing specialist support to
customers, flordabl

©

| Improving the quality of the

service we prowde
Over the past year, we have continued to increase levels
satisfaction and are king to improve

on aur previous best. This is reflected in our rising nel
promater scares and Trustpilot rating which has increased

to four stars. We want Lo build an this success while
continuing 1o roll out operating models, which identify

and deploy the most cansistent and efficient practices lo
manage the Group’s activilies. This process will ensure that .
everything we do s fit for the future and delivers what our

* customers want. -

HO

[ in’

Improving the quality
of the assets we own

Over the last 50 years, the Group has grawn its asset base
to become one of the UK's largest housing providers. Over
the last 20 years, we have expanded our offer 10 enable us

homes and providing
We also offer grants and volunteering 1o support charities.

We ensure our social value work addresses four customer
priorities, including physical and mental wellbeing,
economic and social apportunities, digital and financial
inclusion, and sustainable and resilient communities.

This work also enables us to meet a wide range of business.
objeclives such as sustaining tenancies, reducing
anti-social behaviour, improving neighbourhoods,

and reducing voids.

ind satisty g

need across a range of sectors.

1n 2020/21, we invested a total of €117.1m in improving our
existing homes. This included E61.4m in delivering reactive

d i i to our and
£55.7m was spent on capital improvements, including
enhancements to communal areas and open spaces.

Our future investment in afiordable housing will be shaped
by a number of factors. These include our customers’
changi i well as.

Y

such as those outlined in the Social Housing White Paper,
i i, and Fire Safety Order ighteni

energy efficiency requirements and Net Zero targets.

Taking all of these into account, we are identifying what
tong-term investment may be required to further improve
and futurepraof our homes as well as the additional
services and support which may be needed to ensure
aur existing neighbourhoods are successful places.

We seek
deliver annual rent growth, remain attractive 1o other investors,
and contribute to the Group's wider placemaking ambitions.




Collaborative working

We build strategic relationships with a range of partners, including
developers, investors, local authorities, public sector bodies and
it i ot likeminded

. y groups. By I

partners, we develop placemaking sclutians that are taltored 10
the specific needs of an area and offer opportunity and choice for
the people that live and wark there.

Our: ind i
1o work the UK, hel; h:
promising futures for constantly evlving communities.

Development
(including placemaking
and regeneration)
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Property
management

Leisure
managemeént

Our approach

->




Our People First approach

Peaple First means that we put customers, colleagues and clients
. at the heart of everything we do. This has led o our peopte promise:

Places for People
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Group puts people first.
We treat everyone
honestly, courteously
and fairly. We listen,
we learn, we deliver.

_ This promise incorporates ning principles:

We listen to people and treat everyone with respect
and politeness. ) :

. We 0 isfaction and take action

if we aren’t doing as well as expected.

. We use plain English in our letters, website and emails.

i bl

. We give a main point of forq orp

. We provide services on the web and social media, and
customers can get in touch by phone or writing if they prefer.

. We wiil always try to give customers a choice of service,

home and location.

. We will have clear service standards and guidelines -

$0 we and our customers know what to expect.

. We tell our customars what the charges they pay are for.

We have a clear complaints process and publish information
about pl {without using cust ' names).
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One of the Group’s main strengths is
its ability to respond quickly to market
changes. This has been particularly
evident over the past year with the
pandemic causing disruptioninour
markets and working practices.

UU@U

We have continued to support our customers
and colleagues, including adapting our services
and the way we work ta meet their changing
needs. We have also closely manitared the

We have also increased the proportion of
affordabls housing we develop as part of our
strategic partnership with Homes England,

If there i ib: iat drap in the sales

impact of Covid-19 on th y and the
impact this could have on the Group.

We have prioritised effective cash
management ensuring we are in a strong

market, the Group is well positioned to change
the tenure of new housing to market rent

10 protect revenue. Unlike many other large
developers, we have a significant private rental

We will continue to identify opportunities o
work with pariners to provide management
services and where appropriate, will engage
with others 1o merge and improve the quality
of service.

1n respanse Lo the economic impacts of the
Brexit trade deal and the pandemic, we are
monitoring the economic, social and market

liquiity position. To minimise our exposure business, which can manage and market . | uncertainty as the UK begins to recover in
1o shocks and changes in the housing for rent these properties, enabling us to weather amore stable environment,
and sale markels, we have been analysing difficult economic conditions.

yield and sales values across the UK. We have

reduced standing stack and prioritised the
nstruction of housing over other

tenures ta reduce our sales exposure.

The management of affordable housing
i ially sustainable. We are

seeking 10 grow our portfalio nationally and
across difterent local authority areas.

This section reports on the work we
.have done across all business areas
over the past year. We have delivered
arange of activities across the Group,
which have had a positive impact on
our colleagues, customers and the
places we are creating and managing.

Due to the pandemic, we have also
had to adapt along the way with new
initiatives to help us overcome
challenges and meet our customers’
and colleagues’ changing needs.
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Creating and maintaining
sustainable places
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Across the Group, we built or acquired

a total of 2,186 homes across all tenures

in 2020/21 and started to construct a
further 870. As well as building more
homes, we achieved 712 sales by the
end of the financial year.

Creating more affordable housing
‘We continued to focus our development activity
on delivering more affordable homes across
the UK, building 3 tosal of 911 by the end
Sy "

Placemaking in partnership

In December 2020, we announced a national

framework agreement with Countryside

Propeties plc 10 accelerate the delivery of
ixed:

of March 2021
of an additional 697.

We are ane of eight strategic partners working
with Homes England, which will provide
£74m of social housing grant over three years
1o enable us to deliver 2,400 affordable homes.
by March 2022.

Since being appointed in 2018/19, we Rave
agreed terms, or secured preferred partner
status, for a pipeline of 2,257 homes, By the
end of March 2021, we had completed the
construction of 780 aflordable homes and
slarted to build a further 1,062 as part of
aur strategic partnership.

Itis anticipated
that up to 10,000 homes will be created over

| the next 10 years right across the UK.

‘The first project to be progressed under the
fremework is in Lower Herne village, helping
lo create a thriving new community in Kent,
The plans comprise 800 new homes, including
240 affordable properties for rental and shared

ownership, together with community facilities,
new parkland and atlatments on the site of
aformer farm.

National Places LLP, our joint venture with
Nationat Grid Property Holdings Ltd, has made
goad progress over the past year. A planning
application has been submitted for its first
development in Stony Stratford, Milton Keynes,
which is proposing 24 new homes, araund

a third of which will be affordable. A further
{our developments are in the pipeline. Up to

* 40 surplus sites currently within the ownership

of Natienal Grid, will be transformed by the
joint venture.

Specialist supported living

We provide and manage supported housing for
wnerable people, helping them to live more
independently and play a positive rols in their
community. In 2020/21, we invested £8.1m in
purchasing new specialist-supported housing
‘accommadatian, providing 54 homes for peaple
with complex needs and profound disabilities.

We also completed the construction of
development in Grimsby providing 60 ‘extra
case’ homes. .
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Improving the quality of the
assets we own

1n 2020721, we ivested a total of E112.1m

in improving our homes. This included £61.4m
on reactive and responsive maintenance (o our
affordable homes and £55.7m on capitat

. impravements, including new kitchens, bathroarns

and windows as well as enhancements to
communal areas and open spaces to make
places bath safe and attracive.

As part of our response to rising Covid-19
infections, especially among our otder and
more vutnerable customers and colleagues,
we stopped all but emergency repairs in our
customers” homes during the height of the

+ pandemic. As restrictions began to ease, we

focused on returning services 1o normal as
quickly as possible and clearing any backlog
of repairs.

By the end of the year, 190,000 repairs had
been carried out, of which 85,000 were
emergency, and 98.3 per cent were completed
within our target time.

Maintaining compliance
Statutory gas, fire, asbesios, electrical,
tegionella and lft safely checks were carried

oul throughout the financial year and in line

with gavernment guidance and legistation.

By the end of March 2021, gas compliance
was at 99.94 per cent with just a small

" number of properties recorded as 'no access’

due to reasons relating specifically to Cavid-19
siich as customers sell-isolating.
ok i \ack,

10 re-bock
10 attend when safe 10 do so, and assured
them of the safely measures our aperatives
would deploy when altending a service.
Etectrical compliance at year énd was 98.42
per cent. Compliance performance remained
stable throughout the year at evels of around
98 per cent.

Sustaining t

Ci and coll safety
To protect customers and coll when

our places is, in part,

warking in peaple’s homes, we developed
safe systems of warking, including social
distancing, PPE and hygiene measures. Thesa
systems have been cantinually reviewed and
updated in tine with government guidance.

Ahead of delivering compliance checks,

we ensured our customers were made aware
of our sale systems of working through fiyers,
letter draps and notices on aur customer website.

We also developed an intranet page for
colleagues 10 help them guickly and easily
signpost customers to faodbanks, hetplines,
and other key organisations.

Stringent planning

Al the beginning of the pandemic, we formed
a Covid-19 Working Group which mat daily
10 plan our response, including our approach
10 wellbeing, customer service, resources,
facilt BPE, health and sak

[T and communications,

We also developed an onli

tinked to how people can afford to Live in them.
We set suitable rents, bul when cusiomers
struggle, we try hard to sustain their ténancies
by engaging with those who fall into rent
arrears and supporting them thraugh period
of difficulty. -

Thraughout the year, we assisted 3,342
customers with money advice generating
£3.9m in additional income for our customers.
We also ensured that vulnerable people,
including those who were fleeing domestic
abuse, were provided with suitable housing
throughout Covid-19.

At the end of the financial year, there were
70 unaccupied homes in our portfolio. This
oumber peaked at 1,410 and then steadily
recavered following the resumptian in lettings
in mid-May 2020.

Atihe peak of the pandemic, the percentage
of rent lost thraugh empty homes was

1.86 per cent. This number steadity decreased
throughout the rest of the year to 1.57 per

10 1.34 per cent in 2019/20.

business enabling us to effectively and quickly
monilor infarmation retaling to income recovery.
lettings, compliance, repairs, customer centres
and neighbourhoods, ensuring a co-ordinated
response by all leams.

When restrictians began to ease in the
summer, we held ‘re-start and recovery’
planning meetings to evolve our response.

There was a minimal rise in average ren! aears
for our affordable housing customers, which
increased slightly by 0.84 per cent compared
to fast year, This was in tine with our

due to the impact of
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Digital lettings

We quickly moved to remole viewings and
digital sign ups to maintain lettings. This
enabled more than 2,800 customers (o move
home by the end of the financial year, despite
the challenges of the pandermic.

Investing in fire safety

Itis our priority to ensure the highest
standards of fire safely are implemented
consistently throughout the Group.

We have continued to respond to the
recommendations in Dame Judith Hackitt's
Building a Safer Future report and over the
past year, this has seen us invest £13.4m -
in a wide range of fire safety measures and
improvements, we plan 1o spend £16.6m
in the coming year. '

We have taken a pro-active approach on risk
assessing our high rise buildings and do not
have any buildings with ACM cladding. in
addition. we have continued with our phased
pragramme of external wall assessments of
48 buildings that are six stareys and above
where we own the freehold, and this wor

will be complete in 2022/23. :

So far 11 buildings have been identified

as requiring remedial works o the fagade,
for exampte timber cladding remeval, and
the works have either been completed

or are included in our capital investment
programme. We have also increased our

. survey programme 1o include buildings that

are 3, 4 &5 storeys and have categorised
thesé as being low, medium and high risk
50 where necessary we can plan remedial
waorks.

As part of our enhanced fire safety measures

 we have retro-filted new sprinkler systems

in 15 of our &6 taller buildings, and a further
15 are scheduled for completion in 2022/23.
The remaining 16 do not require enhanced
measures as they are of traditional
construction, however these will be closely
manitored within our fire risk assessment
programme -

Fire risk assessments

We have established a process which sees
fire risk assessments delivered every one,
two or three years depending on the level
of risk, ensuring a holistic approach that
considers the whote building in addition

to cladding. These assessments will ensure
we meet fire safely regulation now and

in the future, keeping our customers safe.
Compartmentation is a key part of the fire
risk assessment process and we have made
a number of improvements to prevent the
spread of smoke and fire aver the last year,
including the replacement of fire doors.
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Building a safer future

tn July 2020, we submitted our response to
the consultation on the Government's Draft
Buitding Saety Bill and continue ta proactively
respond ta the Social Housing White Paper -
and Fire Safety Bl

1n2021/22, we are planning 10 increase
our total investment in repairs and capital
improvements by 10 per cent, including
further measures o enhanca fire safety.

in December 2020, the Graup became one of
the first registered signatories of the ‘Building
a Sater Future Charter’ (BSF). The aim of the
Charter is to bring about cultural change,
including new practices, and o help regain
public trust in the safety of buildings. During
the next financial year, we will seek lo obtain
“Building Safety First’ status by having our
health and safety processes checked and
evatuated by BSF to demanstrate we have
astrang health and safety cutture.

Maximising the potential
of our assets ‘

. We recognise that changes in market demand

A flexible workforce -

To meet the needs of bath aur calteagues and
cuslomers, we adopled a flexible and hotislic
approach 1o maintenance and capital
improvements. For example, those colleagues
who were concerned about working in

wil affect the lang y of our homes,
S0 we have also been targeing investment to
make the best use of our assets. This includes
repurposing homes and developments to
ensure they are more tallored to local needs.

One example of this approach can be seen at
Crown Gardeéns. Working with Huntingdonshire

d properties
Instead. Some calleagues who'were nol
needed for repairs, helped to refurbish empty
homes to make them ready for letting while
others assisted with the delivery of PPE.

We shared insight and knowledge acrass our
teams to increase access for gas servicing

District Council and
with local [

and th who were

has been changed from a shellered husing
scheme for Lhe over 555 into temporary
accommadatian for hameless families and
single peagle.

The property was modified (o meet the needs

- al its new residents providing much needed
accommeodation to 22 households. All apartments

are self-contained, fully fumished, and range
from three-bedraom homes to bedsits.

Improving housing
management

Fallowing our agreement with Sage Housing
in 2019; we secured 1,360 new homes into
management an behalf of the registered
affordable housing provider in 2020/21. With
atotal of 2,580 homes now under management
and an ambilious fve-year pipeline of 20,000
new homes, this is a growing opportunity for

* Places fos People. By working with other housing

providers to deliver affordable property and
tenancy management services nationally,
we can further improve the Group’s efficiency.

oyl N
feedback on vulnerable customers.
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Improving the social impact we
have on people and communities

B

w
w
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Over the past year, we helped 9,000

people who were homeless or at risk of
being homeless, created more than 7,000 .
opportunities for young people, supported
1,700 people into education, employment

or training, enabled 1,223 customers to get
online or use the internet, provided money
advice to 3,342 people, and 20,900 people
have been supported by Covid-19 emergen
response projects. :

In a difficult year, delivering social impact
has never been so important. The pandemic
has had a huge impact on our customers
and wider communities, and we have '
worked hard to respond providing
support across a wide range of areas.

* Our social value activitie are delivered by

Places Impact, a Group function that works
with all our businesses to maximise the pasitive
difterence we create from our work, This inctudes
managing The Places Foundation, which is an
independent charitable organisation supported
by the Group. .

* Our Affordable Housing business delivered

a social value of £127m in 2020/21 and .
despite the challenges of Covid-19. our leisure
business delivered £31m in sacial vatue

for tocal communities.
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Tailored support for

1 bl

R dii h \

to

customers
When the pandemic hit, we set up an
Affordable Housing Customer Taskforce within

- aweek of the first lockdown being announced.
- This comprised 175 colteagues. including

those whose roles had been reduced because
of the pandemic and voluneers from acrass
the Group.

Our property management business,
Residential Management Group (RMG), has
provided Westminster City Council with a full
Housing Solutions Service since 2001. I is

. the only fully integrated housing salutians

service pravided by a private sector company
for a local authority.

The Housing Solutions Services supported

h jects aimed at keeping rough *

The Taskforce bl

L fe. These include a pilol catled

customer blish i on about their .
welfare and what support may be required.

We also formed a dedicated support team as
well as a response team to follow up these calls.
depending on what tevel of help was needed.
The suppon team made further calls to provide
customers with more detailed information
‘and advice, including signposting to external
‘organisations that could suppart them.

By March 2021, the Yaskforce had madk al

Stepping Stone’,linking European Econamic

'Area (EEA) nationals to employment and
2 o

In 2020721, the Places Foundation grant to
Doarways Derby enabled the charity to deliver
over 5,000 hot meals to rough steepers as well
a5 120 food parcels to families. A foodbank
has:also been set up Lo support people whose
incomes have been affected by the pandemic.

Castle Rock Edinvar (CRE) has strengthened
its relationship with Edinburgh charity, Fresh
Start, which helps peaple who have been
homeless Lo set up in their new homes and
settle in their community. Colleagues, who
were unable to cary out their normat ral
during the lockdawns, supported the charity

deli f emergency packs of essentiat

of 65,358 calls throughout

ensuring thousands of d isolated

people had access 10 financial aid, foed
supplies, medical support, and someane
1o talk to helping to prevent toneliness.

Importantly, the process has also allowed

us to capture further information around
customers' vulnerabilities, particularty in
terms of mare general needs, which is helping
us to tailor our services even more effectively.

The success of the Taskforce is refiected in the
positive feedback we have received, with many
customers thanking us for going above and
beyond, and making what was a particularly
tough time, that bit easier. The Tasklorce's
achievernents were also recognised with

a silver award in the ‘Best Customer Contact
Strategy in a Crisis® category at the 2020
Engage Awards,

were ully placed in
RMG's Singte Persans Hometess Pathway.

fram the private d assist food, toiletries and c products across
those with complex needs into semi- North Edinburgh to over 350 households.
' rted " hy We als d the

This work helped 20 EEA nationals into community pantry in North Eﬂmhursh wﬂh a
with 17 individual £ it opened in June ffe

moving into a new tenancy. More than 30 low-cost food for 150 members and supplying

rough provided with private ‘emergency packs to 450 households,

s > ) indivs i .
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Supporting young people
Working in partnership with Salford City
Council, Living Plus transformed unused office
space into seli~cantained flats for young
people aged 16 and over, providing temporary
accommodation, respite, and access to
professional support. The scheme has been
designed to support Route29 — a service
preventing young people from being placed

in children's homes out of the area.

Campleted in November 2020, the flats are
modem, light and spatious with their own
Kiichen, living area, bathroam and bedroom.

The new development means that young

" people have the aptian to stay in the flats

on a temporary basis far up 10 12 weeks,
depending on their needs. They can also get
access o professional suppun during the day
via the Route29 hub, which is located nearby.

~
Tackling dlgltal | Improving skills and prosp C ity | Fund
Anew iniliative has enabled some of our We are 3 partner in the Building Better Our Community lnvestment Fund invests in
most vilnerable customers 1o get online Opportunities project in Lancashire, which activities in areas where we own or manage
for services such a8 inheras) el and o pronides Iniansive suppart s butp inerabis affordzble housing. The aim is to meet the

ions, WIF| din more - their Confidence, skills

than &0 sites and over 220 re-purposed iPads *
have been provided. Amazon Alexa devices
are also being installed.

Old IT equipment has been repurposed and -
donated to community partners that support
our customers. More than 285 iPads have
been provided elping people to access job
opportunities and training, leamn new skills
and keep cnnect

Some devices have regone o communities _

and employmert prospect. Over 400 posive

needs of customers and businesses, addressing
issues siich as raining, unemployment,

outcomes h h:
inactive o unemuuyed peopte, including
emplayment, training and volunteering
opportunities. The project’s success helped
10 secure an additional £370,000, which will
extend it until 2022. :

In Noverber 2020, we supported budning

wellbeing, and
sustaining tenancies.

Throughout the year, this fund has made 3

. huge difference 1o the lives of our customers

and the local communities we work in. Over
9,000 people benefited from emergency grans
from this fund and  social value levy .

high levels of need,

School. We
thards Ihe lree onlme murses that formed

development we are ﬂelwzﬂng in panmrxhxp
with Balfour Beatty Investments on the Queen
Elizabeth Olympic Park in East Landan.

partof th 1d slso
access advice rom successtul entrepreneurs

and business professianals on topics including

eonline marketing, building :mﬁdence and
legal advice.

amnner foodbank support
from these funds. .

‘We carried out a national survey of all our -
affordable and supported housing customers
ta benchmark them against the Wellbeing
Dashboard from the Office of National
Statistics and identify future priorites for aur
Community lnvestment Fund, We received
over 10,000 responses from customers and
will be ifvolving them in the decision-making
process for new projects,
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Shapi‘ng services in a crisis

Supporting sociaf ventures

During the d

our custamers' feedback,
partnérs o help them evolve and expand thair

with Big lssue Invest, Places
further investment 10 support the Power Up

services in response 1o the pands

For example, Shape Lancashire, which is
funded by our Community Investment Fund
taunched a telephone befriending service
Called LINC LINE. It aims to support up to
400 customers with weekly calls to address
toneliness and provide advice, which is
1ailored to each customer.

The service can be accessed either via *
referrats from colleagues, or self-refemral
by contacting LINC LINE directly via email,
phane or text.

In 2020, we provided additional funding to
enable the project to scale up and suppart aur
affordable housing customers acrass the LK.

Places Leisure adapted its Places Locker App
with the addition of a Virtual Studio, including
on demand and tive stream workauts. This
proved to be a highly effective took throughout
the lockdowns. A total of 6,000 classes were
delivered free of charge every week, résulting
in 4,000 downloads each month and more:
than one million views.

Donating to local communities
Aer more than 10D Places Leisure venues were
forced to close due to lockdown restrictions,
Places Leisure donated their stocks of fresh
food and drink to the value of circa £25,000

10 local faodbanks. They also donated PPE
and cleaning products 10 the NHS including
overshoes, gloves and hand sanitiser.

In addition, 121 Places Leisure colleagues
volunteered their services to support a lscal

volunteer hub in Kingston upan Thames.

g
together the private, public and third séctors
ta support early-stage social enterprises
through investment, méntorship and
pro-bano suppont. .

Over the past year, we have invested a further
£200,000 into Power Up Scatland, which has

helped several social ventures to collectively

respond to the Cavid-19 crisis by providing

meals 0 high-risk individuals, supporting

disabled people, and providing accommodation

ta those who were experiencing homelessness..

—
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Award-winning initiatives

The Graup was the joint winner of the Proud
10 Help category at the Building Awards 2020
in recagnition of the work we have done ta
5upport customers and communities during
Covid-19. We were alsa joint winners of the
inaugural Social impact Award at the Property
Awards 2020. . .

In September 2020, Derwent Living's Virtual
Places project, which was funded by The

. Places Foundation and rotled out in 2019,

was crowned the Community Focused Service
of the Year. :
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* Investing in our colleagues
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People First

. To communicate the principles of our People

First approach, we have rotled out virtual
workshaps accredited by the Institute of
Customer Service (ICS).

There have been mare than 6,000 sign ups
over the past year and the training has been
awarded the ICS Training Marque, leading

10 over 900 certificates being issued.

Equal opportunities

Our recruitment policies and practices
promate equal opportunities and ensure
selection is based on talent and merit.

 Our Early Careers iitiatives, including our

Emerging Tatent and Kickstart Programme, ~
have built-in open and fair recruitment.

We have also helped to co-create a housing
sector specific programme for people from
black and minority ethnic backgrounds t
build diverse talent across the industry and
a pipeline of future leaders.

Bringing people together

When the pandemic hit, our Peaple First
approach helped to minimise the impact an
our colleagues’ welibeing. Just ane week after
the first lockdown, we launched Together',
using our intranet and Microsoft Teams.
This initiative kep! colleagues connected
while everyone was working remotely and
enabled them to benefit from a wide range
of resources.

Feedback on Together has been overwhelmingty
posiiive. The iniiative has been so successful
that we are adopting it for the lang ferm to
continue to improve engagement and wellbeing
after the pandemic has ended.

During its first year,

Together resulted in more

than 900 colleagues
proactively joining the
Together team on Teams,
3,700 colleagues’ posts,
replies, @mentions and
reactions across the
Together team, 2,450 views
of the Together microsite
and 60 Together news

‘articles published with

6,600 views..
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Nurturing talent
In Sepfember 2020, a second cahort of

"2 participants joined our Emerging Talent
pragramme, which we re-designed for virtual *

tearning. The Emerging Tatent programme s -
designed as a structured two-year placement,
enabling paticipants to work across the
Group within their chosen discipline in line
with set objectives.

Our Earty Talent team co-ordinated the Group's
bidto participate in the new Government
Kickstart Scheme, intended to provide

16 - 24-year-olds on Universal Credit with
apaid six-month work placement. Over

4D apportunities have been identified across
the Group and individuals stasted their new
roles in January 2021.

‘Thraughout the year, we have continued ta
strengthen our apprenticeship offering. By
March 2021, aur levy use since its launch in
April 2017 was &7 per cent comparedoa -
national average of 22 per cent (FE Week).

New ways of working

‘he pandemic has provided us with an
opportunity to learn valuable lessans which
could strengthen the way the Group operates
in the future. Our aim is 10 promote wark anc
home life balance white making our workplaces
more agile and fexible, 50 we can maximise
innovation, creativity and productivity, and
make more efficient use of our places.

Saf, i 11

Learning opportunities

Following the launch of the Places Academy in
March 2020, we have rolted cut leaming events
to engage colleagues and bring people together,
supporting coltaboration at a time when many
people felt disconnected. These have included
Digital Skills Weeks, and oppartuniles to learn

ahout topics including inclusion and belanging,

wellbeing and resilience. .

inclusion and bel

#s part of our reo;evy strategy, we launched

The Group values diversity and in 2020, we
a

survey
12 equip business leads and line managers

g
Belonging Working Group. Participants have *

with the tools wih
r2turming to work. Retum 10 the workptace palicies, events and activities tha grow
cuides for calleagues and manag: also | diversity ild inclusion. Our inclusion
futin place. and belanging strategy aims to:

n January 2021, vie iniroduced an externally
operated confidential reporting line and a new

—  buitd aculture where everyone feels they
can belong and thrive, and are respecied

i raising any concerns.

Mental heslth.
We have trained aver 100 Mental Health First
Aiders across the Group. Mental health relsted

and

—  create a workforce with people from
all walks of ife reflecting our customers
and society. .
The Group gives hull and fair consideration to
eemployment applications made by disabled
having regard to their particular

Jecember 2019 and accounted for 23 per cent
i all time lost due 1o absence. This is below our

aptitudes and abilities. Recognising the
benefits of 3 diverse workforce, the Group
ke i to continue

1arget of 26 per cent and favourably
with recent research (NHS Digital, 2020).

eemploying and providing training, as required,
to employees who become disabled during
their employment,
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Our‘peopla

" Further information can be found at

At 31 March 2021, the G loyed
9,99 colleagues (5,730 FTE); 5,895 (1,901 FTE)

-of them are in the Places Leisure business.

After Places Leisure, the next biggest employer
is our Aflordable Hausing business with
2,185 colleagues, followed by RMG with 561
colleagues and our Development business
which comprises 282 colleagues.

Female colleagues account for 56 per cent of
aur warkforce. The average age of colleagues
varies across the Group. Places Leisure has

3 younger cohort with 37 per cent under

25 years of age. Around 6.8 per cent of our
calleagues are from black and minority ethnic
backgrounds and approximately 1.7 per cent
have a disability.

Turnover and absence

Our current wrnover rate (voluntary) is.

1.2 per cent. The national average for large
organisations is 10.9 per cent (11.9 per cent
median) (XpertHR 2020).

Employee absence was 3.3 per cent over
the past year, which is in line with natianal *
averages, The XpertHR 2020 absence rates
research states the national average for
large organisations is 3.5 per cent (3.3 per
cent median).

nitially, the Government predicted that
20 per cent of emgl td be absent

12021/03/gender-pay-gap-report-2020
We have rebuitt our Gender Action Plan 1o

. drive positive change in lemale representation

in our business,

Continuous improvement

To monilor customer satisfaction and the.
effectiveness of People First, we analyse
colleague feedback and use data from the
Net Promoter Score, Trustpilat, and the ICS.
We alsa make sure aur customers’ voice

is heard by involving them in the design

of products and services, ensuring we can
meet their needs now and in the fulure,

A great place to work .

In April 2020, we were formally recognised
a5 a Great Place to Work in the Super Large
category after taking part in the listing for the
first time. We were ranked 291h, positioning
us alongside big corporate players such as
Mars UK and Cisco UK based an our strong
levels of employee engagement and culture.
In Juty 2020, we were recognised as a Best
UK Workplace for Women, demanstrating our
commitment to promoting gender inclusion
across the Group.

W ici in the Investors in People

due to Covid-19, however the Group’s sickness
absence was well below that. Our peak was

assessment in October 2020. More than 100
colleagues were interviewed by the Investors

just above six per cent

carty days and prior ¢ 1o testing.
For the majority of the year, absence was
belaw four per cent.,

Gender pay gap

During the year, we published our Gender Pay
Gap repart as at Aprit 2020. This showed that
the Group's headline mean hourty pay gap was
9.3 per cent (previous year 1.6 per cent) and
our median hourty pay gap was -8.3 per cent
{previous year -7. per cent). The impact of
calleagues on furlough due to the pandemic
‘has been marked, with far fewer colleagues
being included in the calculations for the
hourly pay gap, resulting in figures which are
not comparable with previous years’ reparts.

. inPeopl itwas
confinmed that Gold status.
Winning awards

Our in-house markeling team has played
akey role in promoting People First internatly
and their skills were recognised at the BOC
tnternatianal Brilliance Awasds 2020. In the
Intemal Communications Team of the Year
categary, we achieved the silver award, and
waon goldin the Best Marketing / PR Team

" of the Year categary.
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Minimising our

environmental impact
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Across the Group, we are reducing our
environmental footprint and forming

new partnerships to find technologies
that can help address climate change.

Our approved environmental strategy
has been developed in line with the
United Nations Sustainable Development
Goals relevant to our Group. It is based
on a series of practical ambitions affecting
both our new and existing properties.

By taking action now, we are aiming

to minimise the Group’s environmental
impacts, avoid the risk of costly
remediation, futureproof our assets
and contribute to a cultural change
across the housing sector. ‘
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Energy:
« We have retained IS0 140001 and 50001
for Touchstone and Derwent FM.

« Solar panels at one of our offices in
Presion have produced 36,860 kWh
of electricity in 2020.

Waste:
« Ourcorporate offices have diverted over

95 per cent af waste from landfill. an
increase from 86 per cent in 2019/20.

Our property maintenance team has
diverted over 95 per cent of all waste from
landfill, equal to more than 2,054 tonnes.

Our property maintenance team has
recycted 100 per cent of electrical and
electronic equipment (WEEE) and diverted
10D per cent WEEE waste from tandfil
in2020.

Our landscapes team has diverted aver
95 per cent of waste from landfl, equal
tomore than 1,385 tonnes.

EPC assessments
Ve are putling ieasures in place to ensure

Cavity wall and loft insulation

1202 S1UNa33y puE 110day jenuuy dnoun a1doag J0j 5338)d

We have partnered with the Warmfrent Team,

our existing homes meet EPC band C in
England and EPC band B in Scotland within
the next 10 years.

To enable us 1o plan effective retrofit
programmes that reduce carbon emissions,
we have carried out EPC assessments to get
2 baseline view of our existing hames, These
indicate that aver two thirds are already EPC
band C or above in England and around a fifth
are already EPC band B or above in Scotland.

Despite the pandemic, we have invested over
£6.9m in energy efficiency upgrades lo our
affordable housing stock over the past year.
‘We have installed more efficient bailers into
1.738 homes and more efficient windows
are in place in 124 properties.

one of the UK's largest providers of horne

~energy efficiency surveys, to a deliver cavity

wall and loft insulation programme for
affordable homes in our partfolio. This has
resulted in new cavity wall insulation being
installed n 2,891 homes. More than £4.1m
of funding has been used to deliver the
srogramme, which has resulied in a carbon
saving af 58,588 tonnes.
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Saving CO2

\.

Our 2020/21 energy eﬂiciency
programme at Astley Village has seen

£720,000 invested in our properties,

resulting in a yearly CO2 saving

of 75,832 kg with an overall energy
‘saving of 16 per cent. This results

in an average increased SAP rating

of nine points, and for an average

customer; a £211 saving on their

energy bills.

Reducing carbon - .
Since 2019, the Group’s Procurement Hub
has removed more carbon than it emitted,
achieving a carbon negative business goal.
We ofisel our usage by purchasing carbon
emissions reduction certificates. We are also
supporting tree planting across the UK, which
has enabled us ta offset 15 1C02e, and have
continued to monitor our upply

Collaborative solutions

‘We have continued to work with partners
and likerninded organisations to carry aut
research, share best practice, and identify -
the technologies that can help us meet zero
carbon targets.

For example, the Group is taking part in the”
European SHIFFT programme. The project’s

chains to reduce the amount of plaslic we use.

We are also piloting Swilchee, a new type of
thermostat which will allow us to better

objective is to lower emissi
3845 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
(1C02e) per year by reducing the use of fossil

fuels in the heating of existing household and

h our d gain
an insight inta the performance of our homes
using a variety of metrics. Switchee can also
analyse heating pattems and reduce heating
demand, saving aur cust on

y \gs. One of our pilol sites is
Leeway Refuge in Norwich. We have begun
to install solar panels on the roof, upgrade
the heat metering system and implement

their energy blls. The pilot’s first phase wilk
see 150 devices fitted in homes around the.
North West.

oy 8
The overarching praject seeks to reduce
carbon emissians by 3845 tonnes of carbion
dioxide equivalent (COZe) per year.
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Flood resilience

We have selected 15,000
homes for a pilot project
with Previsico. This will
trial surface water
flooding alerts, which
give up to 48-hours notice
of any risk. The aim is to
test the accuracy of these
- alerts and our prg-ﬂo;d :
response framewor]

Reducing waste .
Places Leisure has continued to take part

in the Refill Campaign along with John Lewis,
Costa and Morrisons. This encourages.
customers to top up their water bottles for
free, reducing plastic waste. Places Leisure
has also pledged to recycle up 1o 4.5 million
coffee cups by 2023 by introducing 100 per
cent campostable cups and straws.

Hope Social Enterprises reduces the amount
of waste going to landfll by upeyeling and
selling pre-owned furniture. In 2020/2021,
427 customers used the service 10 buy good
quality, affordable household items 1o help
furnish their homnes.

In Bristol, we relocated an office, which involved
ctearing the former space and refurbishing ~
the new accommodation. To minimise waste,
internal partitions, doors, ceilings and the
Kitchen in the new office were retained.

In addition, 168 items were reused, which .
saved 30 cubic metres of landfll and around
£34,280in costs. _ Co

Thought leadership
To help share knowledge and shape best
practice, Group Chiel Executive, David Cowans
has joined the Editorial Board of ‘unlock net
2610, a new knowledge portal designed.
10 inform, educate, and connect people and

. organisations invotved in moving to a net
zero emissions future.

The Group has also become a member of the

- UK Green Building Council (UKGBC) a charity
aimed at improving sustainability in the built
environment and connecting arganisations.
across the building industry.
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-Our operating business areas
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Affordable housing

suswaiels je1dueuly | 1iaday aauewIaA0g | Woday Jbetens, -

.1zoz s)\lnonv pue 1i0day jenuuy dnosg sjdeag Jo; sadely

)

- We build, pUrchase and
manage affordable and

supported housing to

" suit all kinds of people. -

Our focus is on creating
inclusive neighbourhoods |
and communities where
people want to live, stay
and thrlve.
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There are six affordable housing
providers in the Group — Places for
People Homes, Cotman Housing
Association, Derwent Living, Castle
Rock Edinvar Housing Association,
Chorus Homes, and Places for
People Living Plus — our specialist
supported housing business.

Cbllectively, these companies
own or manage more than 77,000
affordable rented homes.

" Cotman

Part of Places for People.

@jwent living

Part of Placas for People

@ Chorus 3k Livin |
Ho T Plusg

Q Places
for People

¢¢gastle Rock

dinvar mes
Housing Assaciation Port of Places for Pecple Part of Places for Poaplo
Part of Places for Peopls

o
—
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New homes for
customers .
We have continued to create new affordabte

We have conlinued o embed a new operating
rmedel 10 unify our six affordable housing

homes, including specialist providers. Thi common
for vulnerable customers. processes,

the way we work, improve efficiencies and
in October 2020, drit i i

of Burchester Court in Grimsby, a new

£10.3m development comprising 40 extra care
‘apartments with 24-hour care and suppart

an site. In addition 10 new homes, Burchester
Court features a cafd, hair and beauty salon,
and tounges and gardens ensuring customers
feel part of a community. The development

is atready fuly occupied.

tn Romsey, Hampshire, Nightingale Ledge
remains on track for completion in 2021.

This extra care scheme will offer new homes
for the over 555 and is aimed at people who
have either existing care or support needs,

or who anticipate needing support in the near
future, The project is being deliveredin
partnership with Test Valley Borough Council
and Hampshire County Council.

‘The development offers 54 modem apartments,

with a private balcony or outside lerrace,
available to buy or for affordable rent.

We have also purchased 20 properties over
the past year providing a further. 54 homes
for people with severe disabilties or specialist
caro and support needs. :

underlined the importance and valie of this
new approach, which ultimately, will enable
us to offer the highest level of service for

customers ai the best value for maney.

Listening to our customers’ voice
We strive to make a difference by listening
des. This enab

Meetings have taken place ontine throughout

to.our i

- us to benefit from a thi h

the pandemic providing customers with

of what our customers value, how we can
meel their aspirations, and ultimately, deliver
the highest levels of satisfaction.

e apportuniyto et
services both tocally and nationally.

Through this process, a wite range of palicies
d have been scrutinised and

The imp { listeni n
underlined in the Social Housing White Paper.
Published in November 2020, this stated that
residents should expect to have their voices
heard. We conti i [t

improved by our customers, including those
relating to complaints, feedback, and repairs.

P
10, and connect with, our customers.

t0 understand their challenges and address
these through direct and tailored support.

Our focus on the customer voice has seen
our National Customer Group expand and
strengthen over the past year. Customer
representatives from all our affordable

* housing providers are now invalved ensuring

we can hear a range of different voices.

Training for customers has been provided by
Tpas, i ion dedicated

pr
ta improving tenant engagement.

We have streamlined and improved our
approach to complaints 1o ensure it meels

the needs of our customers and the Housing
Ombudsman, We have implemented measures
that enabe us 1o leam from any complaints

to keep improving the quality of our services.
Feedback is analysed in a constructive way
and we eslablish what must be done to address
the issue, whether that is mare investment in
a particular service area or additional raining
for our colleagues.
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Keeping customers connected
We are using digital technology and social
media to imprave the way we connect with
customers and are investing in & customer
relationship management (CRM) system that
wilt further enhance this approach.

Initiatives invalving tools such as padcasts,
chatbots, smart devices, and Facebook
have been rolled out ta help prevent social
isolation. For example, an initiative called
Click and Chatter, a community Facebook
group was piloted, and 750 customers, who
were identified by the Affardable Housing
Taskforce, were invited to join.

Our team in Scouland runs five community
Facebook pages which have continued to grow
in popularity over the past year with more than
1,100 followers. Customers from across
Scolland are using the pages ta find out about
opportunities available in their communities.
One story reached more than 4,200 pecple.

Safeguarding best practice
As part of our drive to ransform how
our Afiondable Housing business operates,

- we cammissianed external safequarding

experts, SAB Consullants, to conduct 3 review
of the Group's approach (o safeguarding.

This resuted in a detailed action plan which
buitds on the goad practice we were already
delivering and is led by a néwly appainted
Head of Safeguarding for the Group.

This approach will ensure we are hulfiling
our safeguarding responsibilites, are
compliant with kéy safeguanding tegistatian
and local autharity strategies, and that we
adopt a rubust safequarding culture across
the Group. : .

Action on domestic.violence
One of the many consequences of lockdown
was a rise in domestic abuse cases with more
‘people confined in their homes. We ensured
that anyone suffering from domestic abuse
could still access the services they needed

to support them and warked with local
authorities, partners and survivors 1o affer
valuable help and support where it was

most required.

We have atso become members of the
Government’s Employers’Initiative an
Domestic Abuse and are working towards
Domestic Abuse Housing Alliance (DAHA)
accreditation.
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‘We have along track record-
of creating high quality homes
~and places. Our development
‘businesses work with our

‘affordable housing providers -

and other partners to deliver
design-led, sustainable

developments that make

home ownershipand rental -
more accessible.

RN

-~
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~ Ourrental development '.

programme comprises

affordable housing, including

shared ownership, as well-

as market rented properties,
student housing and extra care

- properties. Our development
forsale programme is designed

to create mixed income

‘neighbourhoods, with the

delivery of traditional homes

- forgeneral market sale.

i
I ’ !
.- i, ¢
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ing local

Lot ight miles east of Invemess,

Atotal of 73 two, three and four-bedroom hauses
’ "

Tornagrain will be a new sustainable town
isi ,000 hames across four

a5 well as two b !
in Alaska Street, Blackburn, as part of our
partnership with Homes England. The homes.
were consiructed off site using modern
methods of construction and are available for
affordable rent. The £11m development also
includes four adaptive homes far families with
" Iy ot bl

neighbourhoods. We were one of two
housebuilders appointed by Moray Estates
1o deliver its vision for Tomagrain, designing
homes ranging from one to four bedrooms.

that appeal to a diverse demographic.

Over the past yeén we launched our first

and an area of open space far the public.

In Newcastte, the construction of 36 two,

three and four-bedrbom family homes was

campleted in Wharrier Street as part of a

wider ptan to regenerate the Walker Riverside

area. This is the fourth devetopment we

have delivered as pant of this plan warking

in partnership with Newcastle City Council.

Although construclion had to halt midway

through the programme due 1o Cavid-19,

it was brought back on track and the
was fini our

with the Scottish Government and Highland
Council. We also completed the canstruction
of phase two with all homes now sald, and
started to canstruct phases three and four
‘which will deliver 60 homes.

Al the WhatHouse? Awards 2020, Tomagrain
‘won silver in the Best Exterior and bronze
in the Best House categories.

Located on a former Royal Navy site, Castle Court
has 68 new homes, including two, three and

four-bedroom houses together with 22one and
bedr ™

Homes England target.

We are now working on further phases
oftering a range of famity accommodation
for affordable rent.

was completed in the third quarter of 2020
and all homes have been soid.

Desveloping new places

in partnership

Over the past year, we have cantinued to
progress large-scale developments providing
mixed tenures and thriving communities. "
across the UK. These include Smith's Dock

in the North East, Brooklands in the South,
Park Hill in Sheffield, Port Loop in Birmingham,
East Wick and Sweetwater in London, and
Gilston Park in Hertfordshire.

The strength and success of our current
placemaking developments has been
recognised with several awands in 2020/21.
‘These include Smith's Dock, which was
named the Best Regeneration Initiative

at the 2020 Housebuilder Awards.
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Creating a sense of place
Showing placemaking at its best, Brooklands
is a mixed-tenure scheme in Milton Keynes
providing a tota! of 2,500 homes all supported

by a range of facilities and amenities, including |

schools, shaps and leisure facilities as well as.

. green spaces that emphasise biodiversity and

environmentat sustainability.

Brooklands Square, which is at the heart of
the Brooklands development, has naw been
campleted. Designed with longevily in mind,

this mixed-use centre combines new homes,

infrastructure and amenities that will allow
the locat community to thrive.

Shops, restaurants and new homes are
tocated araund a new and accessible public
square providing a focal point for the tocal
community and helging 1o give the wider
Brooklands development a strong identily.
This space is owned by Places for Peaple
for long-term custodianship.

Providing green spaces

Working closely with our jaint venture partner
Urban Splash, alongside Birmingham City
Council and Canal and River Trust, we are
regeneraiing the Port Loop former industrial’
site ctose to the centre of Birmingham and
reconnecting the local network of canats

and towpaths.

New homes, workspaces, parks and community
facilities are being created, The first iwo
phases have now been completed providing
105 homes. In July 2020, we completed the
first of a series of new communal gardens for
residents, spanning 8,600 sq fi and for 40
‘households. This is in addition to private

rdens i i hh

In November 2020, Port Laop wan silver
for Best the

liveri iahbourhood:
D g new neig|

Designed as the beating heart of the

WhatHouse? Awards.

the first phase of East Wick
and Sweetwaler in Londan has rapidly
progressed and is approaching completion,
This is delivering more than 300 homes as
well as commercial and new, open spaces.
The first 70 homes have already been sold
and most are occupied.

Delivered in a joint venture with Balfour Beatty
Investments, our plans will create five new
neighbourhoods. More than a third of the
development will be aflardable housing, with
many homes built for long-term rent as well
a5 10 buy. Each neighbourhoad provides

play areas, schaals, nurseries, cammunity
spaces, health centres and shaps, with places
10 relax, play and exercise, all within easy
walking distance.

Construction of the next phase is expected to
begin by the end of the 2021/22 financial year.

Building homes at scale
In Hertfordshire, we are progressing an outline
planning application for Gitston Park Estate
with the aim of detivering 8,500 hames.

« Thiss drivirig new infrastruture investment
and supporting sustainable economic growth
around Harlow.
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Our property management
businesses work with our Group

. companies to provide a seamless

 management service and support -
our placemaking offer. From

- expertly planned maintenance

. through to timely repairs, the-
effective management of our
property portfolio contlnues
to drlve our success:



120z S1unosdy pue 1ioday jenuuy dnolg ajdoag 1oj sadeld

o
o

| y10dey s16arens

|edueuLy | oday

Our proper’ty management

businesses enable the Group to

work across residential tenures

ranging from the traditional

private rental sector through

to student accommodation and
retirement housing.

Combined, these businesses
now manage more than 146,000
properties across the UK.
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Building on a digital foundati
RMG is'one of the UK's leading property and
estate management providers. Over the past

Continued growth
RMG is now actively managing 111,000
hames, which is a nine per cent increase

year, it d to grow ils busis and

he previous financial year.
d B

For lang-standing client Dolphin Living,

a successhul retender will see Touchstone

continue to manage a large mixed-tenure

partfotio for the arganisation and expand its
P

Digital technologies, which have already
been widely adopted by RMG, have enabled
further efficiencies throughout the pandemic
and a seamless Iransition to hameworking.

By March 2021, digital toots such ds web
chats, were being used by nearly 92 per cent
of customers, which made home warking
easier lor colleagues and ensured queries
were deall with quickly and effectively.

It has al: g
further 68,000 homes, due to b construcled
inthe coming years, representing a 23 per
centincrease in future business compared
102019/20, :

Following a competitive tender, Touchstane .

has been appointed to manage 171 homes in

Londan and the South East for Ling Housing,

and in the North West, Auxesia Homes has

appainted the business to take over the

management of its existing and grawing
ixed. rifoli

Inthe h, RMG's custamer partat
was visited 121,000 times. By the end of the
financial year, the portat had recaived more
than ane million visits.

The move to home warking, assisted by the

+ successful use of technology, has seen RMG

replace its large London office with a smaller
ene affering hot desking for colleagues.

Touchstone has aiso been selected by a
teading building society to joinits panel far
Law of Property Act (LPA) receivership work,
and been instructed to carry out build-ta-rent
consultancy for a number of organisations,
including a local boraugh council

Touchstone is our specialist residential
property management company and manages

over 11,000 homes across the UK. To improve
the customer experience and journey,

Touchstane i pitoting Residently. a digital app
which can be used for various management .
services, including payments, viewings,

maintenance and renewals,

Aclient dashboard has also been created,
. which enables dala to be accessed al any

| time, improving transparency. The dashboard

is being roiled out Lo all clients with four
already benefiting from the technotogy.

‘service: events,

Buitding on existing consultancy work
for a large investment firm, which has created
along-term income fund based on residential
property, Touchstone's remit has been
extended 1o management. The first residential
scheme to form part of this cantract has
recenily goné tive.
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Leisure m

. We design, build and manage
~ leisure facilities and health
and wellbeing programmes.
Through our commitmentto
engaging with, and meetmg |
the needs of, Iocal communities,
we help people find the means
- and motivation to be fitter,
- healthier and more active.
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The‘pandemic has had
a huge impact on Places

Leisure with leisure centres:

forced to close for several
months throughout the
2020/21 financial year.

At the peak of thecrisis,
around 95 per cent of our
Places Leisure colleagues
were furloughed. Despite
these challenges, and with
the support of the Group,
the business has achieved
a number of successes
and positive outcomes.

o
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Repurposing leisure centres
Strong and strategic partnerships with lacal
authorities across the UK enabled Places
Leisure to keep several facilities running,
supported by significant funding to cover
operational costs. A total of 14 facilities were
repurposed throughout 2020/21 to benefit
local communities and in response to the
pandemic.

Leisure space was used for a variety of
purposes, including providing safe and
convenient areas for vaccinations and
Covid-19 testing. To support colleagues
involved in this process. extensive training
was provided across a number of areas
ranging from health and safety and security
through to the safe starage of vaccines.

Supporting key workers

Our colleagues at Wandle Recreation Centre
helped to keep Greenwaod Nursery open far
chitdren of key workers during lockdown.

Greenwood offers a day-care setting for
children aged 18 months to five years old.
Wandsworth Borough Council provided the
funding to enable our calleagues to keep the
nursery facilities apen for children of key
workers, helping 59 families.

~
As well as apening and shuiting the centre,
aur cotleagues ensured the sports hall could
be used to help separate classroom bubbles
and give the children extra space.
Keeping places active Pandemic vol Cust: gag! New faciliti
From September to November Places Leisure coll b Inayear by national A new E15m Leisure facility
2020 when tockd icti hown a huge drive and ambiti lockdowns and our centres

lifted, our focus was on
re-opening our leisure centres in
the safest and most efficient way
possible. Our aim was to ensure
local communities could quickly
access services to enhance their
health and wellbeing, including
relaunching swimming lessons
for children and adults.

10 support their communities
over the past year in a constantly
over arinac

closing, we commissioned a
survey ta establish the impact

Many colleagues have used their
skills and time to volunteer at
vaccination clinics. Covid-19 test
centres and food hubs. Some

on the nation's activily levels.
More than 20,000 customers
contributed, sharing their
challenges in keeping active,
the rote thal digital workouts

e NS P played and their new goals.

ag The survey al
warked with the Landon for their views an the social
Ambulance Service, and another | distancing and hygiene measures.
\rained to become a Covid-19 that Places Leisure had put in
support worker. place. A total of 59 per cent of

respondents gave us a five-star
rating and 30 per cent said their
view of their leisure centre had
improved as a result of the
team's response 10 the difficulties
af the past year.

was opened in August 2020.
Bulmershe Leisure Centre was
built by Wokingham Borough
Council and will be run by the
Places Leisure team. Work atso
continued 1o deliver Places
Leisure Cambertey, a fizgship
centre thal we have designed
and built and is on schedule

10 openin July 2021,
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Since launching in 2017,

PfP Capital has created a real
estate investment management
business enabling investors to
access the housing market. The
business responsibly invests

its clients’ capital to help create
sustainable places as well as
social value in communities.
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AStrengtheni'ng the Mid Market
- Rent (MMR) fund

‘The MMR Fund was established to detiver
mid-market rental homes including a mix of
e o .

distance of Scotland's main cities. Despite the
significant disruption caused by Covid-19, the
fund has continued to attract new investment
and boost the development pipeline.

Atotal of nine sites have now been secured,
delivering a total of 1,006 new affordzble
homes. Additional funds trom the Strathclyde-
‘Pension Fund, Nationwide Pension Fund and
the Scoltish Natianal investment Bank (SNIB)
mean that 1100 homes can now be delivered.

The canstruction of the first iwo development
sites have been completed and a further site
was acquired in January 202). In total, the
MMR fund is now developing seven sites,

The development of Steenberg’s Yard follows
the campletion-of the Malings, which is now

with 3 further 897 affordable he dt
construction.

Urban Transformation
Partnership — continued growth
The UTP has been established 10 toke forward
largé, residential-led, mixed-use and
mixed-lenure regeneration programmes.

i builds for People’s acquisition of

community
of 76 new homes and three small shops.

A communily fund has also been established

1o suppont collaborative community activities
across the wider nei managed

Designed to showcase a new way of city
centre living, each propesty has ils own
autdoor space featuring either a balcony,
roof temace or garden, The energy-efficient
homes also feature solar panels, electric
heating and highly-insulated walls and
ceilings. There are timited parking spaces

by the residents and businesses that take
occugation in each phase.

g PN

the igloo Regeneratian Fund’s assets in 2018. A

A vibrant residential
neighbourhood X
PiP igloa is a calizboration between PIP Capital
and igloo Regeneration. In a joint venture with
Newcaslle City Council and Homes England,
PIP igloo is creating a new neighbourhaod of
over 300 homes and 20,000 sq t of commercial .

“space at OQuseburn Valley in Newcastle.

Steenberg's Yard, which is phase two of
the regeneration project, has progressed

. throughout the financial year. The sustainable

community will breathe new life into one of

"Newcastie's most historic areas and provide _

a framework for the neighbourhood's future.
The scheme comprises 28 riverside
apartments and more than half the homes
have been reserved.

There wil also be four commeréial units
which will exiend th valley's offer for small
and medium-sized businesses adjacent

10 the award-winning Toffee Factory.

fiving in Leeds
Located in Holbeck Urban Village in Leeds city
centre, The Ironworks has rapidly taken shape
over the past year. The PIP igloo development
comprises 68 new homes made up of
townhouses, apartments and penthouses,

* whichreflect the heritage architecture that

H
|

surounds The lronwarks — a legary of the
Leeds Industrial Revolution. ’

and residents will be offered .
club spaces, electric charging points and
plenly of space for bike storage.

The development launched to market
during the pandemic and by the end of the
financial year, more than half the properties
had been reserved. :
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In 2020, PP Capital
made the transition from

. Associate to full residential

- Fund Member of the

* Association of Real Estate
Funds (AREF). The AREF
Quality Mark is an important
industry standard and we are
only the third residential-led
fund to achieveit.
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' 2020/21 has been an

unprecedented year
for the business and the
wider industry in terms
of the impacts felt as a
result of the Covid-19
pandemic. The Group
has shown a resilient
financial performance
for the year with an
increased operating
margin and underlying
profitability despite the
impacts of the pandemic. -

Profit before tax
Figures shown in Em

@ Other adjustments®
@ Underlying profit

91.2
79.1
) I

", 2817 2018 2819 2820 2821

“Other adjustments
represents profil on sale
of fixed assets, loss or gain
on revaluation of investiment
" properties and adjustments.
for negative goodwill.

‘The Group turnover for'the year was £816.6m -

* (2020: £866.7m). The reduction of 6% in turnaver

retated predominantly to reduced leisure and
development for sale activities, and is partially -
offset by an increase in affordable leltings.

"This change in activity led 1o the Group’s
* operating margin for the period increasing

by 0.3% to 25.3% (2020: 25.0%).

As the chart above shows that atter adjusting .
for the sale of fixed assets and revaluation

of investment properties, the Group delivered

an undertying profit of £67.4m. an increase

of £3.2m fram last year.
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The Group’é development programme was
impacted by the pandemic with sites closed
during the initial lockdowns in the first half -

- of the year, resulting in fewer build completions ‘

than previous years. The second half of the year
saw the development for sale market outstrip
expectations which enabled the Group to reduce
its development work in progress by £34.7m.

The Group's Affordable Housing business

The i inthe for sate
market h; ged the Group's focus

the chaltenges faced in the year. The Group's
affordable housing rent arears were 3,08%
a1 31 March 202) which is an increase of
only 0.35% from the prior year. Similarty, the
‘amounts oftost rents through

on reducing it exposure ta this market and
rdable h

The Group

~as a result of £43.0m of atluana| losses in the

Group's defined benefit pension schems due

increasing th
The Group started 870 homes during the year
of which 80% were affordable tenures and

increased but only 1o 1.57% of turnover
compared to 1.34% in the previous year.
The part of thé Group most impacted

by Covid-19 was the Group’s leisure centre
‘management business Places Leisure.
Places Leisure manages 108 Leisure centres
on behalt of local authoriies.

As a result of the lockdowns lmpnsed by

"Financial position

the G ins committed to delivering
the remainder of the 2,400 homes under the
England.

t in yields rates
tinked o the Covid-19 pandemic.

‘Treasury manngsmsnt

The Group's fixed assets grew by a further

£71.4m during the year as the Group cantinued

w invest m new amzmabln homes as pan of
ith H d

the UK ment, the leisure 2
periods of sustained cl mer 's work in progress
during the year. Support has been provided 'S gearing h

trom the local authorities which resutted
total contributions received of £35.6m.

_ Aspart of the agreements with local
" authorities, Places Leisure mitigated the casts

incurred during the closure periods by uitising
the Government’s Coronavirus Job Retention

Y
reduced to 55.0% from 56.8% in the prior year.

Treasury parformanca indicators 2021

'perlnrmance indicators far Ihs year lage«her

with the comparative information for the
previous four years.

2020 2019 w8 2007

Scheme as well as tightly managing
costs of the closure. )

Overafl, the Graup completed 2,186 new

homes of which 911 were affordabte and
had anty 130 unsold units at the year end.

Total loans (Ebn) : 3.1 32 29 29 23
Interest cover after depreciation 16 18 19 20 .8
‘Gearing 55.0%  S68%  .567%  S70%  55.2%

Forward cash commitment (months) 2.0

300 280 180, 18.0
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The Group had committed bomowings
of £4.0bn of which E3.ibn were drawn, an
increase in committed borrowings of £0.05bn

", Irom 2020, The Group's strategy is 10 borrow

on an unsecured basis with a medium-term
abjective of rebalancing the partfolio to

60% unsecured, The proportion of unsecured
debt remains at 66%, as reported last year,
achieving the unsecured objective. .

Debiportfollc 2021 2020

- Unseciired “66.0 680
Secured 34.0 340

Group gearing reduced from 56.8% to 55%.
remaining betow the Group's target of 60%.
The reduction is driven by an increase in
investment in affordable housing and a
reduction in stock.

The Group's policy is to maintain cash and

swn committed loan facilities that are
immediately accessible to finance 18 months
cash flow. Al the year end, the Group had total
liquidity of £954.5m, comprising £873.2m
of undrawn facilities and £81.3m of cash and
‘short-term invesiments which was more than
sufficient to meet the Group’s policy. The amount
of cash held at the year-end was greater than
usuat in response to the Cavid-19 crisis.

To help further support the Group's liquidity
policy and mitigate any potential risks.
associated with Covid-19, the Group secured
financing through the Covid Corporate
Financing Facility (CCFF). This was repaid

in March 21 due (0 the ongoing strengih

of the Group's position.

‘The borowing strategy is 10 mnlam interest
rate risk to below 30% of

DaBtvportlnlio

@ Unsecured— 6%
@ Secured— 3%

Liquidity

@ Undrainfacilies
® Cash and short term investments.

In 2016, the Group sat up a treasury vehicle,
Places for Peaple Finance plc, which acts

s the funding vehicle for the Group's nan~
reguiated businesses. tn December 2016
Places for People Finance plc issued a £65m
retail bond, with no recourse to the Group’s
requlated activilies or social housing assets.

This complements the amrangements already
in place for the regulated businesses where
Places for People Treasury pic raises funds
for thé Group’s affordable housing operations.
The structure allows for a more efficient use
of the Groip's balance sheet and drives
cheaper and more efficient borrowing casts
while protecting the Group’s social housing *
assets, The Group's investment activity is
governed by strict counterparty credil criteria
and investment limits which are monitored
and reparted an a regular basis. The Group
cantinues to be compliant with covenants

for funding amangements. Further informatian

* on the Group’s financial instruments, including.

8 malurity profile, can be found in note
2610 the financial statements.

Fixed /float mix

t
with the board exercising strict control aver
derivative transactions and their associated
risks, This interest rate target has been met -
with 77% of debt at fixed rates of interest at
the end of the year wilh 13% of debt al floating
rates and 10% index linked.

: @ Index linked
Llguldity 2021 2020 @ Fiaing
Total liquidity 9546 9103 . @ Fixed
Comprising:
|
Undrawn facilities -873.2 7505 ‘Fixed / float mix ' 2021 2020
- Cashand short term 813 1478 Index linked 0% 0%
investments
Floating 1% %

. Fixed 7% 4%
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Value for money is embedd
the organisation and rem t/ns mtrlnslc to .
what we do. We know tha

and effective is cruciatfo our success if
delivering services that are needed and
fd is

valued by our customers. Our bo.

committed to ensurmg that we‘make the.
best use of rﬁsources and ? imise the
efficiency and quality of otr

review the Group’s asset

Innovation has always been impartant in our
approach. Assessing the best delivery models,
and evaluating altematives, s 3 key element
of our busi

base, appraising relum on assets in a tailored
way that is appropriate for each Group

that achieving value for money remains central
5 mans

business, hat we are making the
most effective investments in the right

of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has been

focused on ensuring resouices are employed
effectively to cantinue to provide essential
services to our customers. As the long-
term effects of the disruption continue to
materialise, providing value for money will
e more important than ever.

Our Group-wide Strategic Risk Management
and Value for Money Group conlinues to drive
our approach. Chaired by the Group Chief
Executive and altended by key senior stafl,

it embeds value for maney as a key priority

. at the highest level Value for money is

addressed within reporting at every board _
meeing o that scrutiny of our performance
‘against metrics is consistent and rigorous.

. The business planning process requires all

areas of the organisation to identify and
targel efficiencies and there is 3 rigorous.
review and challenge of plans.

As unprecedented events unfolded in 2020,
the Group reviewed its business plans to
ensure that resources were best employed
in the context of the exceptional effects and
requirements of the pandemic.

rties at the right time. As part of this
approach, we monitor and seek o improve
our return on core housing opérations.

We also focus on how our other assels can
consistently deliver value for maney through
strong financial and social returns.

We conduct an
annual assessment
of the Group’s
neighbourhoods
which calculates
the surplus per
property for each
neighbourhood
and reviews a
range of customer-
centric metrics.

roughoﬁt

being efficie

services.

This is then assessed against the contribution
that each individual property needs to make to
cover management costs, inlerest costs and a
contributien to major works as well as indicatars
of customer satisfaction. This enables us

to clearly identify which neighbourhaads

are meeting minimum financial requirements
and delivering vatue for aur customers.

The Group has further enhanced its asset
appraisal processes over the last year, We have
added more predictive and forward-looking
processes 1o identify underperforming assels
a1 an earlier stage. This is enabling mitigating
actions to be instigated sooner to optimise
asset returns.

In last year's Annual Repori, we set out five
areas where we believed there was potential
10 improve efficiencies and which would
therefore be given particular focus. These
‘were custamer experience, operaling margins
in our affordable housing businesses,
procurement, improving access to our repairs
service through technolagy and increasing the
use of digital services in our customer base.
Set out below are the main outcomes achieved
in the year for each area,
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areas of
focus for
efficiencies

Customer experience

in fast year's Annual Report, we
included a specific objective to improve
against our customer satisfaction
target of 87%.

For the year ended 31 March 2021 we exceeded
this target, achieving  custamer satisfaction
measure across our Aflordable Housing
businesses of 88.56%. This performance is
particularty significant given the major challenges
we overcame during the disruplion caused

by the pandemic.

In March 2020 when national lockdown
restrictions began, our customer service
centre colleagues moved to serving aur
customers from their homes via remote
systems. This mobilisation to completely
new ways of working was achieved quickly,
and we were able to keep phone lines open
‘and continue 10 offer 3 24/7 service 1o customers.

Lockdown restrictions atsa forced us to move
o My repairs service. The

Affordable housing

“Last year's value for money report

identified Affordable Housing as

. @ key focus with a target to deliver

an operating margin of 48.7%.
This target was surpassed with an
operating margin of 50.9% being
delivered in the 2020/21 year.

During the 2020/21 year we have continued to
deliver our strategy focused on six key areas:
customers; the regulatory framework; assel
management; growth; people and structure;
2nd efficiency and innovalion. This strategy

is supported by a new People First operating
model, which puts customers, colleagues
and clients at the heart of everything we do.
Working together, our six affordable housing
providers have continued to drive forward a
programme of transformational change to
deliver a number of efficiencies.

The transformation programme s on course
to save a total of E5m through delivering new

y .
delivery of an effective repairs service is a

key companent of achieving positive customer
experience 50 we worked hard to mitigate the
effects of this resliiction on our customers.

A Customer Tasklorce was launched in March
2020 to make contact with our customers

and provide valuzble Suppont, Signposting and
engagement, The Taskforce cantacted over
60,000 households 10 check in and ensure they
hadtood and esseiitials as well as signposting
to local authority hubs and support.

During 2020/21, we continued to monitar

our Net Promoter Score (NPS) to measure
‘customers' propensity o recommend us or
our services o others. At the end of quarter
four in March 2021 our NPS scare of 50 across
our Affordable Housing businesses put us in
the ‘Great’ categary using the NPS standard
measurement key. In a year of such challenge,
this is a strong result and testimany to the
hard work of our frant-line colleagues in
continuing to deliver a pasitive customer
experience throughout the pandemic.

ways of the fe of
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Procurement

The Group aimed to achieve
cost reductions of £1.2m through
procurement savings during the year.

This target was exceeded and during the year -

ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s Sirategic

Procurement team generated immediate.

undertying savings of £2.5m across a range

of goods and services. This was a significant

achievement given the underlying impact.

of the Covid-19 pandemic in areas of spend

where savings would have traitionally

been generaled. )

In addition to the cashable savings detaited

above, there were some significant
habl idance Savings realised

Improve the efficiency

of the housing repairs
process by increasing
the use of the self-
schedule facility
by10%. - .

Offering our customers a range of ways

to contact us continues to be a priority. *

The majority of our affordable housing
customers now have the option to
self-schedule a repair through the
online service and we are warking té
roll this service out across the board.

In regions where we have launched the aption
10 self-schedule a repalr, an increasing
percentage of repairs requests are being
received this way. The option to setf-schedul

Improve technology
take up witha10% "
increase in the number
of customers signed
up to digital services.

We have exceeded our target to
improve technology take up by a 10%
increase in the number of customers
signed up to digitat services. Between
March 2020 and March 2021 we saw an
increase of nearly 25% in the number of
customers signed up to digital services.
(From 25,828 customers signed up

in March 2020 to 32,234 customers
signed up in March 2021 — 24.8%).

a repair was paused between March and July
2020 due to Covid-19 when national restrictions
emeant we could onty provide an emergency
repairs service. It was also paused again at

throughout the year. One example was the
cost avoidance saving of £300.000 realised

by going ta the market early for energy supply
during the Covig-19 crisis, as crude oil
plunged below $40 per barrel in April 2020.

. This had a direct impact in the cost of enrgy,

which slipped to three-year tow prices in May
andJune 2020. ’

The decisian to secure the Graup’s energy
requirements at this point (nine months earlier
than our standard renewal date), delivered

a cost avoidance saving of over £300,000

t0 the business.

Afurther way in which we delivered Value
for Money through procurement during the

year was in our approach to securing Personal *

ta keep our customers and colleagues safe.
With commadities in short supply, high demand
and@xtreme price volatility, it was essential
1o have a centratised and structured process.
The Group’ i

the start of thy lackdown in
January 2021,

Now that our full routine repairs service has
reopened 1o customers we are once again
promoting the self-scheduling service and
seeing an increase in ils use.

Self-scheduling requests from custorhers

for areas that are on the sell-scheduling portal

were 21.5% of repair requests in February 2020
i \he disruption caused by

1o work with
range of ways to encourage increased use
of digital services. The impact of the pandemic
has accelerated this approach. For example,
tockdown restrictions ted to the creation
of a virtual tenancy sign up process for new
customers to facililate contacttess lettings.

During the year we also launched a Facebook
pilot called ‘Click and Chatter’ aimed at
connecting customers digitally and reducing
socialisolation. Our Custamer Annual Repart
was made availzble digitally to all customers
and we launched new or refreshed websites.
for Castle Rock Edinvar, Living Plus and

o ;

the pandemic. We reapened self-scheduling in
a phased approach from April 2021, and this
had risen to 23.56%. This represents a 9.5%
increase in the percentage of repairs requests
received this way. We will continue 10 seek to
increase the use of this service in the year ahead.

the purchase and distribution of PPE for all
Group companies, building a supply of stock
quickly and then transitioning from an
emergency situation o a robust and stable
supply chain amangement. This ensured we
procured the necessary equipment at the best
price and maintained a steady supply of
equipment to front line colleagues delivering
essential services 1o our clstomers.

the year.

" Through our partnership with digital training

provider We are Digitaf' we have atsa referred
134 cistomers across Affordable Housing
to receive remote training sessions.
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Our business plan ctearty articulates our

strategic objéctives and performance reporting

1o the board enables us 1o ensure we are

delivering value for money in meeting those
objectives. All business areas identified .
specifc efficiency and value for monay targets
far the year including a target to sustain

or improve operating margins. Performance
against these largets will continue tobe  «
‘monitored by the Group board and Group
mznagement team.

* In addiion to meeting the key performance

indicators identified within our business plan,
we have identified the following specific areas
of focus. fnrelﬁclency or lmpmvemem inthe
2021/22 financial year: |

Indicator -

ENazvg)‘sy‘vply uellvelggg‘gg\a@‘é“‘s‘r

smalhou g:ns pErt

s0¢al W,J" Al

.

Deliver an operating margln of 49.9% across
our Affordable Housing businesses

Increase the reported level of overall -
customer satisfaction to 90% and achieve

a Net Promoter Score of 47 across our
Affordable Housing businesses. .

Continue to improve technology take up
with a further 10% increase in the number
of customers signed up to digital services.

Achieve cost reductions of £2m through

procurement savings during the year.
Continue the delivery of the People First

Operating Model across the Group to optlmlse
_the efficiency of our operations and

implement our new digital platform to

deliver efficiencies and provide an lmproved -~
experience for s and

Benchmark peer
2021 - group median 2020

jenueuty | 16day

Custatners satisfied with samupmvldaubymeirsmalnuusmg srovder 91.2% 86.9% ~ e
Occupancy® 99.4% 99.3% 99.7%
Renicallected”  ~ 98.9% 99.8% 100.8%
. .
The mei ighlighted inbluo are RSH for 4 i 4
include any impact o the Covid: A It of the pa > of ics ing major repairs and
oaly ste the chall  during th . d letrics reduce in
* Aflordablehousinganly .
* Thegeari ic shown n the table i not ¢ present the true gearing ‘lheGrDup.Whllelhemeln:lnzludeslheﬁmups
i assels, it di i ' it it i i 's investment
ide a diversi is outside of 's rent regim pl
that s used (o maintain th ibute to the Group’ i

When these additianal asseis are taken into account, the Group’s gearing at the year end is 57.4%. S .-
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. others. Those people are our

‘The board promotes the success of the Group )

in the interests of its stakeholders. Sometimes,
our stakeholders each give different emphasis
to topics or have diverging views on them.
Here, we describe how the board approaches
decision-making to take stakeholder interests

into account.

Purpose and stakeholders
As a company limited by guarantee, the

Culture

The board expects the Group to operate fairly
" xpec’s erate

The

does not
i the traditional sense. When identifying

pi
" d.

the Group

This can't

ryone equally all the time

our stakehalders we ook o our purpose our purpose. Tix d b often competing

“to croate and manage living places that means that each iarities have tobe made — but it does mean
are - soclally i h blish

and enviranmentally” and to our Group- d and maintained by and that we i d people

wide mission “to creato places that work
for everyone”.

Pursuing those things means that we deliver
services to some people and engage with

businesses through various communication
channels: Our culture drives activity in each
business but we know we need to cantinue
to monitor closely haw this happens.

andforemost among them are:

a individusl customers
(renters, house purchasers,
Isisure centre users)

b) corporate or business clients
< colleagues
d) communities
o) Group RPs
{charitable / non-charitablo]
0 JVpartners ’
g investors /lenders
I reting agoncies
i} The Regulator of Soclal Housing

1Homes England
/Scottish Housing Regulator;

§ Gavernmant (national and local).

By understanding our stakeholders, wa
can factor into boardroom discussions the
potential impact of our decisions on each
stakeholder group and consider their needs
and concerns. .

Our SPIRIT ich h

with our colleagues demonsirate what is
important to us, underpinning our culture
and defining our approach.

about what we are doing andwhy. -
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Strategy
We have a long-term business with immediate
service delivery requirements.

The board approves and refreshes annualty
a three-year business plan. The Group’s
strategy is outlined on page 20.

How we deliver our strategy flexes over
time as we seek h it

Bringing it all together

In satisfying itself that the Group’s purpase,
values and strategy are aligned with its culture,
the Group board has considered the reports
made to it during the year and the experience
of 6 in engaging direclly

Balancing a variety of priorities
By knowing our stakeholders andwhat -
matters to them, we can take more informed
decisions. The board makes choices when it
sets strategy and approves the business plan.
Other d decisions are made

with stakeholders.
Board reporting shows that policy, practices

and risks which arise from changes in the
external enviranment.

Influencing others

0Our strategy takes into account the
environment we face but we also seek to
influence that environment by research,
collaboration and sharing our ideas.

Tris involves a wide range of activity but
his year has included: active participation in

* industry bodies such as the National Housing

Federation (NHF) and the Home Builders
Federation (HBF); membership of the

d behaviour throughout the business are
aligned with the Group's purpese, values and
sirategy. Policies y

as the financial year evolves to respond to
changes in the operaling enviranment thai
can't always be predicted during the business
planning cycle. Never was this more in
evidence than during this financial year with

10 be fi for purpase annually. The baard sees
s pol including

shifing of the impact of the
Covid-19 pandemic which transformed the
17 pans " ’

those on whistleblowing and on stavery and
human traffcking, and can review any other
policy and associated procedure should it
wish to do so.

Pandemic restrictions have meant that it
has nat been possible for board members
to meet customers, calleagues or other
stakeholders in person in the usual way.

The board is keen to resume routine meetings
i it safe to d

Regulator of Social He
panel in England; regular meetings with
Hames England (HE) senior staff to drive the

During the year, the board has given emphasis
10 examining management’s innovative
withall

detivery of our sirategic partnership and to
contribute 1o HE policy thinking; engagement
with the All Party Partiamentary Graup (APPG)
for Housing Market and Market Delivery;
responding in our own name or as part of

an industry body 1o 14 consultation requests
fram naticnal government to help shape
legislative modets and detail; and work with
research partners including the Cambridge
Centre for Housing and Planning Research
(CCHPR) which brings added focus and
‘academic rigaur 1o our research strategy:
our leisure business holds regular meetings
with Sport England and has membership

of the UKactive development board.

descriptions of which are in this report.

The Group board believes that the business
and the people who wark n it strive to ‘da the
right thing and 10 have a ‘custamer / Peopte
First" attitude. This approach is upported by
aclear sense of purpose, embedded values
and a'structured approach to strategy,
business planning, policy development and
implementation in each business area.

Amang the matters over which judgemnts
and decisians were made, the following have
affected stakeholders during 2020/21:
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What we did What we considered For any further
datails rafar to...
We invested £117.1m inrepairs and capital Keeping existi safe in good homes that Qur yearin review'
improvements to existing homes. meet risiny tandard: h page 26
to meet the needs of future customers.
. And
We buil or acquired 2,186 homes had commit rket sale d .
inctuding 911 affordable homes. several years ago) and we honoured them. We decided N > "
" e pages
that uld give increased Q20lb * .
emphasis to butding for afordable rent to meet the needs
af those who are less able to buy. : And
We kept services to renters gaing during We considered the safety and degree of isolation of ;‘;’::ﬁ:f,'"‘“ areas
various phases of pandernic tockdown but customers and made contact with them Lo assess
imes wi tevel ility. We prioritised those who needed us most And
of service. and we si 10 agenci ir need
was not part of our role. We created safe warking practices Value for money’
for colleagues, especially those whose work 100k them pages74to 78
1o'customers’ homes.
We addressed board succession We ran a successful search process, including internal ‘Remuneration and
and structures. candidates, that secured Chai inati i
our board and committee structures to align them with the pages 11310 114
future needs of the Group.
And
“Evatuation of board

performance’ page 109
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bout what they

1o align our
strurtures across the Group regardless
of geography.

y
value in our services and products, we re-designed our
delivery models. implementing thase models involves
change for colleagues and we have continued 1o explain
the changes, implement them and deal with the impact
on colleagues and customers.

We expanded and strengthened our
fordable Housing Ntk

al Customer

We have drawn together the best features of the customer

Group (NCG).

our separate Affordable
Housing subsidiaries o create the NCG. This sits at the
heart of our customer engagement framework and can
lisise with the single management team far the Group's
Affordable Housing operational model. The framework
ids it 1o share
their time and skills to focus an their particular areas of
interest. The NCG draws together all of that activity.

“Affordable housing’
pages 481052

Effective treasury, financial and colleague
support to meet Covid-19 challenges.

We built on'a strong liquidity and treasury position to
i during a year
of great uncertainty. We bormowed from Government under
the Covid Corporate Financing Facility but repaid the money
before year end once we were satisfied that risks had not
exceeded our analysis or our ability to fund planned activity.
We took furtough funds but selectively, choosing to claim _
where business lines were unable to trade owing to
Cavid-19 but not where they could make adjustments
and continue trading. Where furlough was taken, we
1opped up payments so that the financial impacl on

‘colleagues was reduced. s

‘Our fnanciat review’
pages 701073

-3
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What we did What we considered For any further
details refer to...
A and client v i [ to waive or “Improving the social
tomeet Covid-19 challenges, delay rent payments on a case-by-case basis, We sought impact we have on people
. - solutions that ic to individual ci d ities®
while protecting the revenue base needed by the business. pages 32 10 37
1o deliver services and products.
W y i i
. clients and insurers to meet their contractual obligations

ta us when Covid-19 restrictions impacted an our teisure

business. We responded to govemment closures by
reshaping its services and repurposing leisure centres
ta provide altemative services during the pandemic.

and

The Graup has taken teamings from the Covid-19 pandemic
raup ha ;

achieved throughout.

Effective colleague engagement to meet
Covid-19 challenges and beyond,

We believe thal our People First approach has helped

has been so favourable that we intend to adopt this.
initiative for the long term.

minimise the impact of the pandemic on our colleagues
through the launch of our Together” initiative. Feedback

“Investing in our colleagues’
pages 3810 41

suppliers o mitigate our exposure to
slavery and human trafficking practices
within our supply chain.

u with

q we will test our
an modern slavery and seek to influence our supply
chain proactively.

i 9
with our strategy, we have selected Unseen, a leading charity
i he abalishment of modern slavery, 1o detiver
training 1o our procurement specialists and the wider Group.

Circumstances have forced us

to seek new ways of engaging

with our stakeholders this year

but, despite the significant
challenges we faced, we took some
very positive steps in the ways we
work and engage. As we emerge
from the pandemic, we look forward
to further strengthening existing
relationships and creating new ones.
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Places for People is one of the
largest property and leisure
management, development and
regeneration groups in the UK.
We build, rent, sell and manage
homes, manage leisure facilities,

‘provide employment and training

opportunities, support new and
existing businesses, and offer
financial products and specialist
care and support services. |
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Performance for
the year

The Group's profit before lax for the year was E79 m (202“ £91.2m).

Health and safety

Each i ible for

y

and works to 3 centrally-drvenframework of complance.
dividual profile of

ts priorities and risks. Ongoing health and safety performance

Afull review of th theyear
regards the use of financial i nd y
be found in Our financial review on pages 70 10 73 and nate 24 that

accompanies the financial statements.

Disclosures provided.in
the Strateglc Report

is monitored and challenged by the Group Director of Property
Safety and Compliance, both at locat safety steering group
meetings and at the Health, Safety and Compliance Committee.

By the end of the year, there had been five accidents, which were *

reportable to the Health and Safely Executive (those 6f a serious
nature o preventing an employee from doing their normal duties
for more than seven days). This number is below the Health and
Safety Executive/Labour Force Survey ‘all-industry’ benchmark
figure of 42 in 2020/2).

This represents a decrease on last yoar and follows five years

Key operational measures

Total tosses from empty homes (affordabte housing)

Future h described of sustained reductions.
lh ha Hhe Stral 1. D i hand c
roughaitthe Sra eg.f",:::amm::m orsearhand e that is e should
and Value for i relati be vlewed Inthe context o the urusus working amangements
N ’ P 2020/21
10t in the O N
..;' " istic ing & e m Enu: from home, and the number is likely 1o fuciuate as the Gmups
Coach on i | uppliers, cusst nd new ways of warking are tried and tested.
other e i Section 17: The accidents will b it d accident redy
plans where required.
Measuring success .

2019/20 Performance 2020/21 Performance

1.32% 157%

Total arrears (affordable housing} 2.64% 3.08%
ch‘airs right first time (aflordable housing) 90.12% B8.82%
Gas servicing (anmdak':ln housing, properties) 99.51% 9&_95%
Occupancy rale (affordable housing) 99.72% ) 99.37%
Overall customer satisfaction (affardable housing) 87.65% 91.15%
Number of RIDDOR reportable incidents (rolling 12 months) 29 20

The 2020 comparative numbers do ot include ary impact.of the
Covid-19 pandemic. As a result of the pandemic we have seen a humber
of the metrics deteriorate, including arrcars and occupancy, however
despite the challenges presented during the pandemic we have seen
improvements in gas servicing and customer satisfaction.
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The number of Safety Improvement Oppartunities (near misses)
reported by staff decreased slightly by nine per cent, This is used as a
measure nl emplnyees w\lhngness o spot and repent hazards or safety

this still represents

agood level n( engagemem.

and will use.

npleted 100 per cent of our accident
data to learn and impl

t changes.

1o prevent repeat accidents.

QOur strategic heatth and safety objectives for this three-year business

financial year:

To maintain the RIDDOR-reportable accident tatal belaw the
“all-industry’ benchmark compiled by the Heatth and Safety
Executive/Labour Force. Survey The hennhmark figure for 2021722
is 25.7 accidents and thi targeted accident
reduction plans where required.

To further increase the number of Safety Impravement
ﬂpwmmmes {near misses) reported throughout the Group,
continuing th 1o prevent h injury.

To continue to improve the safety, maturity and gavernance of all -

areas of the Group, building on existing strong foundations, using

the Group's Safety ity i% 10 assess areas such as health
systems, property

and data i |nlegmy Targeted improvements will be mscussed with

relevant senior leaders and, where necessary, KPls and milestones

will be agreed to encourage progress.

To ensure the highest standards of fire safety management
are implemented consistently throughaut the Group and that
ions fi d oth di g,

luated and set out in Group standards, i

in each and
our property safety and. wmpllam:e audit process.

To cantinue to increase our facus on health and wellbeing by

" providing resources, information and opportunities for Group

‘companies to devise and implement sirategies to improve
employee health.

To i property safety and pli standards
across p by camrying out planned evid: d audit
10 monitor d iance and

support 1o Group businesses where necessary to improve
standards or assist on accident reduction projects,

The Group has agreed to be an eadyadnp!er of the Building a Safer
Future Charter.

‘This will centify the

made by the G in buildi

compliance safety and further dsvelop the blueprint of compliance far
the future. The Charter will be rolled out across the Affordable Housing
and Development businesses first and then the wider Group.

Colleague'WeIIbeing

We are continuing 10 develop a sustainable culture that enables all our
colleagues 1o realise their potential and thrive in all aspects of their *
personal ing lives. This is ing
strategy which is custamised to the diverse needs of our colteagues.

Our wellbeing strategy is aligned to our inclusion and belonging
approach ensuring the needs of different/diverse groups are understood
and addressed, and that stigma and discrimination are challenged.
Feeling valued, respected, a sense of community and sociat connection
i the warkplace supports individual wellbeing and is fundamental

to our People First approach.
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"Places for Pe;)ple Group — strategic risk map

Principal risks and uncertainties

: . Inherent/Gross risk rating . Residual risk after the effect of rﬁiliga!inn

Risk title
1 Health and Safety & Business disruption
2 Customer experience. 7 interest rate and liquidity
3 . Data management and security 8 Political, environment and macro-economy
4 Legal and regulatory compliance 9 Legal and regulatory compliance
H 10 Governance and strategic planning

Governance and strategic planning
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Risk Mitigation Change inyear

1. Health and Safety
~ The Group could suffer an incident impaciing Health igk s The demi to impact the Group,
the health, safety and wellbeing of its reported to the Group Board ona 0 ensuring the safety of our colleagues and
customers, calleagues or contractors, Where  quarterly basis. ~ is th ioril i
harmis suffered by stakeholders, the sanctions " R . to provide clear guidance to help customers
faced are severe. - dcoll ! in
. . : and safety policy and our associated
Th \d fail th health and fici plans. Healthand  approach. :
safety standards set by sacial housing y monitoring i ide,
regulators. range of activities from fire safet 2 team
through to g icing alongside staff  continues u y persor
training by P i ip so that i
, assurance reviews. towork safely.

During the year, the Group appointed a Group
Director of Property Safety & Compliance who
will set policy and guide our businesses in
setting standards and frameworks of
comptiance, assessment and monitaring. This
will ensure consistency acrass the Group and

across afl activities. We eontinue to monitor the
Draft Building Safety Bill and Fire Safety Bill
and any associated requlatory changes that

- * couldhave animpact on our processes.

2.Customer experlence

p strategythat  The Group has sustained essential services
puls customers at the heart of everything  while moving to anew agile delivery madel and
‘wedo. i i ding to the significant operational
challenges assaciated with Covid-19.

Amajor failure 1o meet customer
or acustomer service failure coutd occur
leading e i isfacti

andfor ial tos t their feedback to
shape decision making, .
. As part of the People First strategy, 900
cotleagues taok part in our accredited people
first workshops gaining a certificate from the
Instil f f Service,

This approdch is supported by tocls to
fnanitor customer experience including
the Net Promoter i

how likely our customers areto
recommend us to others.

We also run a National Custamer Group to-
gain customers' feedback on products
and services, and maintain complaints
handling standards and sell-assessment
using the Housing Ombudsman -
Camplaints Handling Cade.

Fartherinformation can be found i the
affordable housing section on page 48,
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Risk Mitigation

3.Data management and security

Change in year

The b ©

i that our colleagues
108 cyber security breach. Our cyber security  -are-our first line of defence against cyber
"

waorkforce 10 allow working from home while

measures may not detect or prevent all 1o

atlempts to compromise our systemsorthe  remain vigilant for phishing emails, calls
security and integrity of the datawe maintain.  ana other suspicious requests for

. infermation, and to repart any such
attempts 1o our data security team.

Acyber security breach coutd lead to
unauthorised access 1o aur systems,

misappropriation of aur users’data, detetion  The Group regularly reviews our data

i d supporting al
essential services. :

As part of this, our business continuity
arrangements have been lested extensively

+ and proven to be robust.
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. regutations,

or 3 to monitor L
to business operations. und: d i and
training, and tests our i and Yy 1o identify and acton
tfour data and bl improvements where they can be made.
meet information needs and regulatory
i his d 1o di I The Group has a dedicated insurance
failure and/or i quate cy y
4.Legal and regulatory compliance
The il y withits legal/ i of The Group has increased its assessment of the
qulatory requi i . perty & Compliance, Director  risk of major legal/regulatory failure to lake
i i dards, the delivery - of Regulati d gal services  account of the ini
afvalue for y iance wi t identi ith all .access yout essential
i dmadern relevant y gas and other safely work during Covid-19.

slavery regulations, sateguarding, the Welfare
Reform and Work Act 2016, and rent * The Group has a rabust framework of
licié: d

that reflects

The Group has sustained high levels of

relevani standards and is reviewed by a
This could lt i i d: : i . The Group
regulatory supervisian ar lagat .

censure and/or financial loss.

gL Y

environment ta see any changes in
practices.

The Group also runs an independent,
risk-tased business assurance
progr y

g
that our mitigati bust.

However, we have kept our assessment in the
arearaised due to the continued impaci of

isolaling and deny access.

We are monitoring the impact of proposed
legistati ing. b .

requirements are reviewed regularly.

" and fire safety and have prepared an action

plan for how we will respand to these.

el
w
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Risk

5. Governance and stretegic planning

i Mitigation

Change in year

There is a risk that a number of risk Th of risks

events across the Group, or within individual  stress testing of impact  during the

business units, crystallise together and impact i safety istaiction, and

financial i i he i levels above th quired.

that th hieve key 10 plans in place fora .

objectives. number of risks crystallising together. - This gives us confidence thal our framework
The Group also maintains a prudent of palicies and procedures to manage risk is

Thereis also arisk that robust and resilient to external ecanamic ~ *

to deliver its business plan or achieve
performance targets set by the Group board

y strategy of at least 18 months’
liquidity. :

shocks,

oy

ity plan:

Using our id-19, we

or Pt

disruptians 1o customer service and a

* have buitt flexibility

business planto
mitigate the risk that future lockdowns and

maintains adequate levels of

act delivery of

targets,

During the year the Group completed a
self-assessment against the English Social
Housing Regulatory Framework.

Each year, the Group Board also completes a
self-assessment against the UK Corporate
Governance Code.

6.Business disruption’

Thereis a risk that anew or resurging
pandemic impacts the delivery of our business
plan due to significant disruption and

The 6.

ol
in each business to ensure na major
heach, > major

y it Y 3
Covid-1 be f

d 4 {ervp
prolahged business restrictions.

inctude tearnings from Covid-19.

fidence that we

. peri 1
could respond eflectively in future.

1n 2020, the Group developed a robust respbnse
to the pandemic, We subsequently drewup a
pandemic lessons learnt report,

As aresult, we have reviewed and refreshed
our. business continuity planning. We have also
instigated a new ways of warking project that
aims to draw on our learning from Covid-19

10 deliver a new framework and infrastructure
to support agile working and caliaboration in

“the future,

‘Wewant to pramote work life balance at the
same time as making our workplaces more
agile and flexible 50 we maximise innovation.
creativity and productivity.
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Risk

7.Interest rate and liquidity

Mitigation

Change in year

The Group's strategyis to contain interest rate
risk within 30 per cent of the debt book, being

The Graup mana

ges its exposure 1o this

risk through a mix of debt at fixed rates

E£2.9bn, with the d

- ofinterest

ging
each 0.25

by£1.0m

control over derivative ons. Atthe  techniques. It

year end, 77 per cent of debt was either heldat per cent increase in interest rates would
d ral fint Lor i rate i i

movements. per annum.

Liquiity risk is the risk the Group will The G h i

encounter difficully in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities settled by
iveri another i 1

lquidity is 1o ensure, as far as is possible,
it will always have suffcient liquidity to

meet its liabilit

under both normal and

stressed condilions, without incurring
| isking d.

- During the year, the Group successfully

secured a number of new financing deals
incluging the Covid Corporate Financing
Facility. -

This allowed us to maintain sufficient liquidity
ta cover-the worsl-case scenarias relaling,
to Covid-19 that had béen modatted i stres’
testing,

However due to the ongaing strength of the ~
G 's liquidity position, the Covid C
Financing Facility was repaid in March 2021.

to the Group’s re,

pulation,

The Group's policy is to ensure that
sufficient cash and committed {oan
facilities are avaitable and immediately
accessible 1o finance a minimum of 18

months’ cash flo

w.

environment 10 ensure we can adapt (0 any
changes as they arise.

8. Political and

Y

Changes in government policy and practice,

The Graup undertakes challenging stress _

in 2020, the UK experienced a significant
! enceda

inctuding welfare reforms, changein housing testing of i lan, including the

policy, and changes in tax /e ic poli impact ing and policy changes ie. local and national

among others, could impact negatively macroeconomic horizon scanning. lockdowns, which had an impact an all areas.

on the Group’s products and services and of the business. The stress testing undertaken
target business pl. y i the on the business plan for the financial year ta

<continue to tobby both March of scenarios

A general downturn in the UK or worldwide direcily and through the National Housing  involving Covid-19, considering bath warst case

economy could adverselyimpact the Group’s  Federation that housii and lausibla scenarios. This is detailed

ability to achieve i ' remain: priority. turther in the Going Cancern and Viability

objectives. Statement. The Group continues to monitor the

* current Covid-19 restrictions and the impact

they are expected to have on our aciivity.

0n 31 January 2020, the UK left the EUand in

- December 2020 the UK Government concluded

negatiations an a trade deal. The Group had
identified a number of risks associatedwith
Brexit, primarily borrowing costs and sales and

of access to components, failure or under
performance of key suppliers, and customer
‘hardship. To date, the risks identified have not
materialised to the extent expected, however the

y
Brexit on our businesses.

npact
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Risk [ Mitigation Change inyear
9. Sustalnability and uneconomic assets
The Group takes a long-term view of its - Wehave inplacefor  The i nal
> Hroup 1ak g-lerm view ‘ : A : o
risks, which hangesin the envi \aws and poli
factor. The sustainability tandscape is overall risk management framewark. changes.

constantly evalving and while we consider the

impacts of business, we
recognise that ongoing analysis is required 10

Environmental Sustainability Strategy
ith ing target i

in new buitds from 2025, and the Group's

s plans
KP: against this o deliver
The Group has identified iwo categories of strategy. The Group also carries out
climate change risks — transitions risks; those  regular reviews of our products and
relating to the transiti ca as
economy, specifically the costs in meeting Group and is continually reviewing new B
decarbonisation targets, and physical risks; technology and innavations to ensure
those relating o the physical impacts af ongoing development of the business and
climate change specifically the incidence and  ways of working.
cost of stranded assets because of climate
change, . This has helped us ta embed climate
° related risks and opportunities within
There s a further risk that the Group isunable  business, strategy and financial planning
to deliver its asset management strategyto  * processes. The Group undertakes regular
th repairs and mai giving us
standards. In addition; the cost of improving confidence in our ability to identify, track,
Piiielberumet i Yy
‘material impact on the financial plan and sacietal and/or technatogical change and
achievement of strategic goals. Thereis alsoa  torespond 1o these changes.
risk that the Group could fail to effectively
anticipate and respond to changes in societal
and/or technolagical trends meaning our
praducts and services become ifrelevant or
unprofitable.
10.C Including joint .
‘The failure of a local authority, major < Th Th

contractar, joint venture ar other major partner

diligence on new joint venture

imposed restrictions and the wider economic

ould impact d its abilit

todeliver business objectives.

" Therels also arisk that the Group's operational

performance is campramised due ta merger
faiture or in pursuing the acquisition of other
businesses.

to
identify possible dilution of performance:
Any risks identified are controlled or
miligated.

The Group also regularly reviews and
monitors performance against initial

pi flect this may have
on our joint venture businesses.

We also work closely with the individual
businesses o further mitigate these risks
where they arise.

the

business plan, and work: h

perionce of working

with local

i y for each
project ensuring they are approved
s At

aver the lockd: iod b

and ly

we have an effective framework for the
t major

y rutes.
is continually reviewed to identily any

* changes with local authorities,
contractors and other major partners that
may impact the Group.
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Modern Slavery Act

The Graup publishes an annual slavery and human trafficking siatement
to comply with the Modem Slavery Act 2015. The Gmup is completely

‘The latest iteration of the Group's statement is published via a link an the
homepage of our website and has alse been added to the Govemment's

apposed o i y practices. y registry.
While we that there are difficulties in contralling the Theilalzmemhasbeenadvmedbvlheﬁmupandeadmlaur
position, particularty within the Group's itted d to make

to working with our suppliers to hetp mitigate such pmces from
taking place within any part of the business.

pursuant (o the
Modern smvm A:l 2015, as sel out in the statement.

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting (SECR)

2019/20 2020/21 YOY% Change
Scope  Fuel KWh 1o kWh t0e  kWh 1O
Scope | Combustion of gas, 257,671.915 48,893 187,272,725 35,798 -27% -27%
. Purchase of fuel, Business !
travel in Company Cars and
in-house fleet
Scope2  Purchased electricity inc. 74,439,986 19027 44,800,865 10,445 -40% -45%
electric vehicles
Scope 3 Businéss travel in rental cars ~ 2,457,248" 588 1,658,222 412 | -33% -30%
or employee-owned vehicl2s
Total 334,569,149 68,508 233,734,812 44,656 -30%  -32%
Intensity Metrics 2019/20 2020/21 YOY% Change
1CO2¢e per Emturnover  77.69 51.01 3%
tCO2e per employee 1218 - 9.67 -21%
Places Leisure (generation)  2019/20 2020/21
Generation type kWh 1C0:e kWh tC0e  YOY% Change Location
SG Electricity 3,884,131 884 8,240,238 2,106  -58% On site
SG Heat" 6,265,916 1086 15,181,976 2,791 -61% Onsite
Total 10,170,067 1,970 23,422,214 4,897 -60%

The savings made during the year reflect changes in workiag pattems during

the Covid-19 pandemic, ie reduction in business raileage/tsavel due to

govémment resirictions and colleagues working kom home. As the effects of

. the pandemic ease, we are likely to see an increase in thes2 numbers.

“Self generation figures are for the Leisure businasses only
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Places for People Group
total greenhouse gas emissions

18,445

19,027

Scope 3— Business travel in rental
cars or emplayee-awned vehicles

Scope 2 — Purchased electricity
inc. electric vehicles

Scape | — Combustion of gas,

“purchase of fuel, business travel

in company cars andin-hause ieet
Scope 3— (2019720}
Scope 2— (2019/20)
Scape 1 = (2019/20)

35,798

Places for People Group
total kWh

1,458,222

44,808,845

187,277,725

2,457,248

74,439,986

Industry recognition

Ths SECR reporting periodisfrom | Ap 20201031 March 2021

p aptured by the SECR
requlremenls Places for Feople Group, Places for Peaple Homes;
Places for People Living Plus, Derwent Housing Assaciation,
Chorus Homes, Castle Rock Edinvar Housing Association, Allenbuitd,
Millwood Designer Homes, ZeroC Holdings and Places Leisure.

Al I tivities for whl:h h

has financial L are i dinthe
exclusions statement, as required underme Companies (Dmecmrs
Report) and Limited Liability ips gy and )

Regulations 2018.

Inaddiion, generaion from osite corbined heal and power (CHF)
“plant has been i ily far our Le

No F-Gas cansumption has been used or recorded.
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Intensity ratios
We have used two intensity ratios: turnover and FI'E These

have been selected 10 comp:

Electricity
—  SSE—estimated reads

—  Allenbuild (based on cos:s)

growth and for,
review of the marke! position.

Emission factors and methodology

Fuel type Emlssions conversion
factor saurce

UK Electricity — Depanmem for Business,
focali

\ransmission and distribution),
UK gas, petrol, diese,
hybrid, gas it

Slrillgy 2020

This report has been compiled in line with the March 2019 BEIS
i ines: Includi " and

—  Millwood (Pro-rata)

Nntun;i gas i

—  Gazprom — estimated reads

— Alonbuild (ased on costs)

— . Derwent AJR Meters G4 (Pro-rata)

—  Millwood (Pro-rata)

Mileage, transport fusl and on-slta fusl
— Zero Holdings (based an costs)

The esti based here raw d

carbon reporting guidance’,

We have used the Energy Savings Opportunity

Exclusions . X
All mandatory fuels have been included with no ex:luslnns‘i

available.
An example is Allenbuitd, where energy was estimated tased on
etectricity and gas tariffs. For Zerof, the mileage estimaion was based
on cost claims and Payroll rates (E/mile). The fuel estimation for ZeroC
was caried out usiiw the costs and the natianal fuel rates (£/litre).

" have b the
estimations by usuw figures available for one period of tme to get
average figures for a sharter period (Total asage 'urpenud

The electricily and heat generatidn lmm the onsité C|
our leisure facilities have been accounted for separately to the main

scopes. The input fuel is grid natural gas and this is included in Scope 1.

Scape 2 purchased electricity does not include the transmission
and distribution element as this is owned by the supplier and would bo

Scope 3.

Estimations

Estimations 2019/20 2020/21 YOY%
. Change

KWh T 7sesau 10,662,906 4%

% estimated 5% % -

The estimation of energy arid transport data (where required) equalled

five per cent of the tolal energy and transport kWh consumptian, The fist

below gives a summary af the estimates:

/days in periad * missing days).
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Year-on-year emissions changes

nh: y y
o inst the porting year.

. %6 decrease of (COze

-45.11%

Year-on-year emissions changes
Additional energy eficiency actions (Corporate and Leisure).

The pandemic stowed the roliout of energy eficiency measures.
Despite his, we ensured facifles were mamlalned and plant was

actions s presented below:

Corporate — 305 Gray s lnn Road,
London

—  Installation of ¢

,,aﬂl{.ienlhailer tems (10 per cent

more energy efficient in August 2020.
—  installation of LED lighting and new double-plazed units.
— Modification of the air handling units enabling 75 per cent of the

heat'to be gained from extracted air reducing the heat stingut
required from bollers.

—  Replacement of heating, ventilation and air conditioning controls.

17 Craven Dnvs. Preston v
- gy LED lights to replace ol
ﬁuoresgem firtings.

Overall

Scope 3 — Business travelin rental
cars or emptoyee-owned vehicles

Scope 2— Purchased ele:mmy
inc. electric vehicles

Scope 1 — Combustion of gas,
purchase of fuel, business travet
incompany cars and in-house fieet

Asset identification reglme

the energy d equi This
syslem will be used for the early detection B s e
efficiency to aid sof start-up mechanisms and reduice energy spikes.

" Further ptans have been proposed for the Group's South Rings office

with upgrades 1o be carried out an the chiller plants at the beginning

of the 2021/22 reporting year.

" Places Leisure

— Due to the closure of facilities, the focus was on efficient plant
control and maintenance while activities were halied. .
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Board of Directors

The Group board at the date of

» slgmng the annual report,

comprises the Group Chair, six
non-executive directors and five

executive directors. Details of the

w board members can be found

| woday dibareng

auewy | podey

listed on pages 101 to 108.
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- Board of'Directors )

- 01 Grahim Kitchen - 06  Graham Waddell ~ 11 AndyWinstantey
02  Nigel Hopkins 07 -DavidCowans - <12 Chris Martin
03 Angela Daniet 08  LynetteLackey 13 Regina Finn
04 Scott Black 09 Richard Gregory
05 DebiMarriott-Lavery 10 Tim Weightman

The board members have diverse |
backgrounds in industry and public
life, and share a strong commitment
to applying their expertise, skills and
experience to ensuring that Places
for People’s business is sound.

All the non-executive directors are
independent of management and
have access to the Group Company

‘Secretary for advice.
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di are subject atintervals
of no more than four years and are expected 1o serve for na more than
nine years. The terms of appointment of all directors are available
for inspection from the Group Company Secretary during normal
business hours.

In ccordance with the Companies Act 2006, the directors comply with

aduty ; kill duty to promote
the success o ihe campany (lease refer topage 79 fo the Graups
section. achieve this

in prxln). a dmy ta act within their powers; a duly to exercise

independent judgement; aduly to vaid confits.ofntarest; oty et
10 accept benefit da duy y

in a proposed transaction ar amangement.

‘The board meets at least five limes a year to direct overalt sirategy and
Iake key financial and business decisions. Given the complex nature of
the Group's business, members of the board also meet in standing

. Non-executive

directors

The board has adopted guidelines for the appointment of non-
executive directors, which have been in place throughout the year.
Those guidetines include a requirement far there to be a formal role
profile in‘relation to each non-executive board appointment.

The board seleets the best candidate for any vacancy. ft has no targets
for board composition by reference to gender, ethnicity, sexual
ation or any ather y
It will be proactive in seeking to include in interviews for Group board
i didates whi he board
p

would add to it diversity,

commiltees or warking parties to examine specifi f operation.

The Q\mamg committees are:

— Audit & Risk Committee

= Remuneration & Nominations Commitiee

— Development Committee

—Treasury Committee

Details of committee membership and alundanz; atboard and

committee meelings during the year are reported on page 118.

Decisions to approva proposed financial transactions can also be
delegateto the boards of Paces for Peaple Finance p and Places for
People Treasury pic as reporied below.

Detalls of the board members can be found isted on pages 10} to 108,
These details are also available 1o view on the Group’s website
al www.placesforpeapte.co.uk

Th My use diversity as a decish
with any appail if twoor did
10 be evenly matched in other respects, Last year, we reported the
board's rationale for extending the term of office of Chris Phillips as
Group Chair for up to  further year in order to ensure a smooth

* transition to his successor.

On 1 November 2020,
following an externally-
supported search,

-Richard Gregory OBE was

appointed non-executive
director and Chair-elect.

Ahandover timetable was developed and Chris Phillips stepped down as
Group Chair and resigned as fian-executive director on 31 January 2021.
Richard Gregory assumed the role of Group Chair from | February 2021.

level, ths ta inform
me Group Company Secretaryifhe a she has an nterest that oughi 1o
be declared.
Such include offices heldin i
1o other matters that coutd affect the individua director’s conduct.
Through the register of i interests, which is made avaiabl to boord
members at each of
indidual directors and remains sausﬁed that dunng the year under
review, have been property

bul also extend
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Delegatlon of
responsibilities by the
board of directors

Ultimate authority for all aspects of the Group's activities rests with the
baard, the respective responsibilities of the Group Chair and Group Chief
Executive arising as a consequence of delegation by the board.

The board has determined
a clear division of
responsibilities between
the Group Chair and the
Group Chief Executive.

The board i esponsible fo seingsralegio and plcis o he
the G

sausﬁed that its policies, nmllces and behavmur mmugnnul the
{see page 15), values

(see page 14) ar\d strategy (see page 21).

The board achieves that through a combination of an established sel of

matters that are reserved to the Group board, intra-Group agreements,

schedules of delegated authority, anpmnlmml of board ‘members to
‘and the appli f Group-wide policy standards

on key issues.
Where matters are not reserved o the Group board, the scheme of
delegation operates 5o that management has all necessary authority
to run the Group’s business. R
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Non-executive board
members

Key to Board and Committees
Group Board

Audit & Risk Committee

Remuneration & Nominations
Committee ’

Treasury Committee
Develbpment Committee

Ventures board

Richard Gregory OBE
(Chair)

Richard has held the roles of chair, senior independent director and
non-executive director across a range of private and public sectors.
Currently Richard is also Chair of the specialist tender, Together Personal
Finance Ld.

Former roles include Seniar Advisar to Virgin Maney PLC, Senior
Independent Director and Risk Committee Chair of the Clydesdale and
Yorkshire Banking Group {CYBG PLC) and Chair of the Yorkshire Bank
Pensicn Trust.

In the NHS, two foundation trust chairmanships, a board member

of the Foundation Trust Network, member of GovernWetl and the NHS
Leadership isory . In regional Deputy
Chair of the regional development agency Yorkshire Forward, Chair of
the Science and Industry Council, Yorkshire innavation, and Chair of
Science City York,

He is a farmer board member of Business in the Community and its
Yorkshire Chair, former Chair of Sheffield Hallam University and
d eld Hatlam Univ

director of i Lid.
His i was in isit ing first with dz
Tin and then Yorkshire isic ired.

Managing Director Broadeasting before becorming Chair of the digital
media company Imagesound PLC.

Other former memberships include the North West Business Leadership
Team, the Yorkshire and Humber Council of the CBY, the Team Hunber
Marine Alliance advisory board and the Innovation advi

Sheffietd Hallam University.

Richard joined the board of Places for People Group an | Navember 2020,
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Graham Waddel!
(Senior Independent Director)

Graham's i was with Nationwide Building Saciety, during
‘which time he held a number of Senior Executive pasitions. He was also
the Managing Director of a Nationwide subsidiary company, which was
alarge private tandlard and praperty awning vehicle, He was Chair of
Council of Mortgage Lenders in Scottand and is a Fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Bankers. Graham joined the board of Castle Rock Edinvar in
September 2013 and became its Chair on 1 March 2018,

Graham joined the board of Places for People Group on 1 September
2018 and was appointed senior independent director in 2019.

AVAVAVAVAY
Angela Daniel

works for a global ir npany and heads
up the firm's finance team within the Eurape Asset Management division.
Prior to joining. she worked as the EMEA Controlter for Custody &
Securities Lending (WSS) in JP Morgan Chase and before that worked as.
a Client Financial Management Specialist (Oil & Gas sector) in Accenture.
Angela trained as an accountant within & small ta medium-sized practice
andis a Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered Certified

(FCCA). She received a B.A. (Hons) degrée in Accounting
and Management from Cardiff Business School and holds a Masters
degree from the University of Oxford. She also currenily holds 3
non-executive rote as Treasurer at The Uratogy Foundation.

Angeta joined the board of Places for People Group in October 2019.

AVAVAVEY
Regina Finn

Regina is Chalr of the Low Carbon Contracts Campany and the Electricity
Setilement Company, which play a critica role in the delivery af the UK's
clean, sustainable, affordable energy goals. She is also a Director of
Lucerna Partners, a consultancy speciatising in public poticy, economic
it e Soticy and gono
director of Motor Fuel Graup, the targest independent forecourt operator
in the UK. Regina has hetd a number of other non-executive roles
including Chair of Mutual Energy Limited, and nan-executive director of
Irish Water and the C Authority.

She was the first Chief Executive of Ofwat, the water regulator for
England and Wales, held the position of Commissioner for Energy
Regulation in Ireland, and set up and ran a regulator for the energy, post
and tetec ectors i in the British Channel
Istands. She also led the establishment of ireland's firsi economic
regulator for the lelecommunications sector.

Regina joined the board of Places for People Group in October 2019,

AVLAVAVEY
Nigel Hopkins

Nigel i " of imited and Chai
abInstructus, a skills charity. He Is also an associate with Cancerto
Consulting providing adi ices 10 regi iders -
af sacial housing. Previously, he had a wide-ranging international
career, living and warking in the UK, Europe and the USA,

He is a qualified tant and has held senfor
positions with the Confederation of British Industry, Fia, Abbeyfild,
Laporte (Chemica, Burmah Castrol, United Technotogies, Coopers
& Lybrand, Emst & Young and Remploy. At Abbeyfield he ted the
strategic review of its living and care businesses. At Remplay he
was Finance and Strategy Director at a time when the company was

being fros h lusivel loyer of
disabled people in'a wide range of industries, to one that placed
15,000 di d di i rk each year.

Nigel joined the board of Places for People Group in October 2013.
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Graham Kitchen

Most recently, Graham was Global Head of Equities at Janus Hendersan
Investors. Prior to joining Janus Henderson in 2005 as Head of UK
Equities, 2nd he spent
13years al INVESCO Asset Management as a UK Fund Manager and
Co-Head o Investment.

Graham s Chair of Trillium Asset Management UK Lid and Pérpetual
Assel ive Director at The
Mercantile Investment Trust plc and AVI Global Trust. He was previously
Chair of invesco Setect Trust plc. Graham is also a member of the
Investment Committee of the charity Independent Age and acts as
mentor for The Prince’s Trust and The Sociat Mobility Foundation.

h d the board of Places for Peopl in October 2017.

AVAVAVAY

‘Lynette Lackey

Lynette is a chartered accountant with over 25 years’ experience in real
estata finance, corporate reporting and financial management. Lynette

is also  Director of Warehause REIT plc and a member of the Council of
London Chamber of Commerce. She was, untilrecently, anon-executive
director and Chair of the Audit & Risk Commiltee of the London Chamber
of Commerce and Industry and a Trustee of Landaid Charitabte Trust.
She is also a past UK Chair of the National Wamen in Property
Associstion. She also spent 10 years as a Pastner with BDO Stoy
Hayward, where she specialised in international real estate transactions.

Lynette joined the béard of Places for Peaple Group in 2011 and briefly
left the board in 2019 returning in April 2020.

~
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Executive board
members
Key to Board and Committees

AW Group Board

" AW Audit & Risk Committee

AW Remuneration & Nominations
Committee

AV Treasury Committee

AW Development Committee
AW Ventures board

AVAY

Andy Winstanley
Group Executive Director, Finance

Andy was appainted Group Finance Director in August 2017, having
previously operated as the Group’s Financia! Contraler since joining
Places for People in 2010. Andy qualified as a chartered accountant
at Emst and Young where he spent nine years in its North-West
assurance practice.

P/ 4

David Cowans
Group Chief Executive

David has extensivo experience of hausing, urban regeneration,

') and mixed use property
‘marketing and financial management, and leading strategic change
in large and small organisations.

David is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Housing, a Fellow of the
Royal Saciely of Arts, a Fellow of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors, a Fellow of the Institute of Directors and a member af
the Institute of Residential Property Management. He has an MBA

m Birmi University and is also ian of The
Academy of Urbanism and completed his term as a Visiting Fellow
of Cambridge University.

i/ 4

Debi Marriott-Lavery .
Group Executive Director,
Affordable Housing

Debi has been in her role as Group Executive Director of Aflardable
Housing at Places for Peaple since July 2019 and has been with
Places for People since 2015. Prior 10 housing, Debi spent a decade
inhealth i as Debi
has hetd a number of senior management rotes since joining Places
for Peaple and saon became Chief Executive of Places for Peapte
Living Plus; focusis iding all round accommodation. care

d tohelp ble people with complex needs live
independent, futfiling lives.

Debi now has over 20 years' experience working at a senior level in
the health, social care and housing markets, strategically leading
teams and businesses to provide innovative high-quality services in
diverse and i both public, and
not for prafit sectors, Debi's former roles include that of Managing
Director Communily Services, Care UK and Chief Operating Officer
atAnchor Trust. :
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2 Scatis a chartered architeci with 25 years' experienceinthe ) o BN 3
o industry and with a passi dosian and the creati . . 5
- bl ities which are inelusive for all He has
3 o1 les in hi leadinguptoa itie
3 Director of New Business al Crest Nicholson PLL.
s N . .
e Prior 1o Joining Places for People 35 Group Executive Director, . - . : R L.
Development he was Managing Director af Crast Nichclson L - : A - .
Regeneration which was respansible for the croup's major mixed-use - ) . i . o SN
' regeneration projects, partnership schemes, and both the PRS and L o - R .
commercial portfolios. Ha held this position fer five years and during this ~ * . . . - . DT . : Co . - . K
time was responsible for the delvery of some of the rost conic miajor : - . .
projects and schemes in the UK, g 200 staff . . . . B R R
- with an annual turmover of between £250m - £300m ayear. : )
. . X EN - ‘.
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Audit & Risk
Committee

Activity

‘The comsmittee receives and reviews reports from Business Assurance
on a regular basis. The programme of reports reviewed in the year is -
informed by, and atigned with, business planning and ensures that the
committee covers all material areas of risk on a regulir basis. The
external it reports ta th

The executive directors are respanslhle for maintaining and
the Group's systems of intemal cantrol. The Audit & Risk Committee is
responsible for disch: in respect of
audit, risk and intemal control and reports 1o the board, as appropriate,
1t oversees, reviews and monitors the Group's application of accaunting
policies and standards, the appointment and remuneration of the
extemnal auditors, the resources and wark pragramme of Business
Assurance (the internal auditors), the risk management framework.
and the adequacy of intemal control.

"The members of the committee during

the yearwere: .

from
on the operation of controls throughout the business. It takes
initiatives to satisfy itself that risk avoidance measures are fully
embedded within the Graup structyre and to determine the
effectiveness of management actions.
The initiatives for this year inctuded:
—-a pmsemalmn from the Group Chisf Executive on the monitoring of
risk reporting i
haw strategic risks are identified and recorded and to the allocation
of ity for monitoring risks.

d jate
of cyber security.

de in respect of

— N Hopkins (chair)

= A Daniel
(from 15 February 2021)

—RFinn
(from 15 Fabruary 2020)

— G Kitchen
— G Waddell

— A Hussail
(until 31 January 2021)

— T James
{until 12 January 2021)

by members of

 ~an update an the work being undertaken in preparalion for the

Regulator of Social Housing’s in-depth assessment.

TPe Gmup has awhisllehlnwing policy. Its terms, lhc manne( ofits
f its use are ly
by me Audu & Risk Committee on behalf of the Gmup boani.

The palicy provides for the mechanisms for a praportionate and
independent investigation and for the protection of any whistleblower
against subsequent unfair treatment. Any aiings in values, policies
or conduct identified by such an investigation are addressed by the
line management and/or the board.

" The i | Business

Assurance and external audllnrs on at least one occasion in each year
without any members of management being present.

1Z0Z Swno3oy pue 1oday jenuuy dnosg ajdoad Joj sade)d

-
=

suawaels jerueuly | woday asuewecg | woday aibajess

‘External audit

The of the G uditors i reserved
10 the Group board. The d s reached with the benefit of a

the Audi & Risk Commi rking alangside
the Graup Finance Director. .

Following mmmmgndallnns made by \he Audit & Risk Commiliee,

58 of the audit during the
2019/20 ﬁnan:lal yea(.resulllng in the reappointment of the incumbent,
KPMB, for a period of three years with an option to extend by a further
two years,

- Valuation of investment properties

The valuation of the Group's investment properties is inherently
subective as it is undertaken on Lhe basis of assumptions made by
valuers which may not prove to be accurate. The Group appointed an
independent valuer ta undertake the valuation of the properties for
the current financiat year.

The vatuer attended ting with the chair of thy ittee and
management and also met the auditors subsequent to the year end
to discuss the assumptions used in the valuation and the results of
their review.

reviewed lhe outcom d

Atthe close of each ial year, the commif ives a report
on the extemal audit process and reparts to the Group board its
findings regarding the mdepmiu\:e and effectiveness of the external
audit process.

Non-audit work
The Group has instructed KPMG to cay out £108,000 (2020: £89,000)
of ndn-audit wark in the year where advantages of effciency, cast or

expertise were identified.

The Autit & Risk € the nature and scate of such
instructions during the year and its approval is required for totat
nan-audi fees in excess of a threshold agreed by the board.

As a resull of these control mechanisms, the board s satisfied

as o the independence of the external auditor.

Issues considered by the Audit &
Risk Committee

Matlers of significant importance and risk (o the Group financial
statements were presented to and agreed by the commitiee.

A number of detail p dto th i
and discussions were held to ensure that the members had
sufficient understanding of the issues and their potential impact
on the presentation of the financial statements.

Discussions were also held with the extemal auditor to ensure
that resolutions of these areas were in line with accounting and
auditing standards.

vm;m nk tieved do 0. The satisfied with
h the i it fthe Group's
exteral valuer and the results of their work.
Going' Concern
has reviewed the Group® h to the new going
concern audi standard and the adequacy of managemcnls assessment
of going concern. T 85 p the
itsel, and the ﬁmup. s
auditor. jided details of the they had
undertaken themsety f this.

concluded that the assessment was adequate and robust and provided
sufficient evidence 1o support the going concemn assumption.

Afe reviewing the presenialions and reports from management and
y with the auditors, th is satisfied
that the ﬁnnncml statements appropriately address the significant critical
judgements and key estimates (both in respect of the amounts reported
and disclosures). The committee is also satisfied that the significant
assumptions used for determining the value of assets and liabilities have
been appropriately scrutinised, challenged and are sufficiently robust.

Misstatements
confirmed to the ittee that they w aware of
ial or i ial mis de i i to achieve

aparticular presentation.

The audmm reported to the committee the misstatements lhal
their work and al amounts

remain unadjusted.
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Tre'asury

Committee

Development
Committee

The Devetopment Committee monitars detivery of projects, approves

‘The Treasury Committee scrutinises on behif of the Group board the
strategic management of the Group's financial assets iities and
its liquidity position. The Group board has delegated (o the commiltee

delegated limits and scrutinises and helps management refine and

authorily 10 appr y behalf of ihe G
including but not timited to, the terms of new or extendad borrowing
facilities, It has harged the i i S i
of the approach 1o Ireasury matters In all parts of the Group.

The Group clear disti it

new projects falling
autside those limits. :

Management keeps the commillee informed through scheduted

that merit detailed

id brought

'gs of 9

busi (being its registered providers of social h in England
and Wates or registered sociat landlord in Scotland) and its
tated ing it driven entiti

ta i, scrutinising management proposals to add value.

The commiltee acts as a sounding board and critieal friend that supports
and challenges by bringing an informed, externa perspeciive. If

Places for People Treasury plc raises finance only for the regulated
businesses and
(o its board 10 approve treasury transactions on their behalf. Places for
Peopte Finance pl¢ raises firiance only for the non-regulated businesses.
and i ir authority Lo its board to
approve treasury transactions on their behalf.

Overall treasury strategy i ith and
decision-making in relation 10 specific ireasury transactons rests with

s any opportunity that
ir authority” approval, the committee will review it and seek to become satisfied with
any ensui o that it

the Group board as
having the committee’s endorsement. .

The members of the committee during
the year were:

120Z S1uno22y pue Juoday jenuuy dnosg ajdoay Joj 5a3e1d

up Places for People
Treasury plc or Places for People Finance ple for the Greup subsidiaries.

The members of the committee during
the year were:

- G Waddell :
{chair from 1 February 2021)

- R Gregory
(from 1 February 2021}

- G Kitchen
- L Lackey
- C Phillips
{cheir and committee member
until 31 January 2021)
by membars of

- G Kitchen
+ (chair from 15 February 2021)

- A Daniel

- R Gre?ory
(from 15 February 2021}

S— N Hopkins

(from 1June 2020)

- L Lackey
(from 15 February 2021)

—  AHussain .
(until 31 January 2021)

- TJames
(until 12 January 2021}

- C Phillips .
{chair and committee member
ungil 31January 2021)

by membars of
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Remuneration
& Nominations
Committee

On 15 February 2021, the Group board decided 1o combine its
i &

mmittee and

e ommittee
to create the Remuneration & Nominations Committee. As the butk of
work in the year through the's itis
reported separately here.

" The members of the Remuneration

& Nominations Committee from
15 February to 31 March 2021 were

- R Finn (chair)
- A Daniel
- R Gregory
- G Waddell

d by members of Regina Finn had

served on a remuneration committee for 12 months prior to
her appointment as committee chair.
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Remunerat'oh
Committee

‘ Remit

The Remuneration Cormumitee sets the reward polcyfo the Group.

leview of lhe

I reviews the application of the palicy during the year
whether change is necessary to achieve the purpose of the policy. The

that it wished to
emphasise, noting the Code npectalmns of clarity, simplicity, risk
mitigation, predictability, proportionality and alignment 1o culture. The

commiltee takes decisinns an reward for senior mamqemtnl membcrs
10 the board

The purpose of the reward palicy is to attract and retain the people with
the talent to design and the Group's strategy
long-term sustainable success.

The policy is 10 set salary. benefits and a framework for performance-
related payina way |hal is competitive far each of the mlevam tatent

o0ls. The G rate in a range of sect
locations and the pwcy is intended to reflect that variety.
tigned ta the Group' and values
d is linked te y g strategy.

Fee levels lor non-executives are set (o attract candidates with the
skills and experience to add value {othe board They reflec ime spent
anGroup

Activ_ity

a review of terms (ie. pay,
Mneﬁls and essential contractual terms) for executive directors and
the company secretary.

The i i qitestion of salary ali staff,

In the absence of material market factors for any role or location or

p!ﬂum\am:e factors that are confined to an individual business, annual
through the

pmﬂlagz uplif for all stafl.

i businesses wher priryear performance hasbeenstong and where
withno
slgnlﬁunl eliance on the furlough mechanism, the commitiee approved

*31.5% pay increase which will take effect in the 2021/22 financial year.

Cansic i deferved from

did not retais for the 2020721 year but
expects to engage with a consultant during 2021/22 on a range af
maters including in relation to performance-related pay.

Long-term incentive arrangements are in place for only two of the
ive di ad ‘of growth sh

created in 2017/18 based on the performance of setected non-regulsted
subsidiaries. No beneﬁls have been earned from those growth shares

ta date. The d the psition and the
hould be all 10 their expiry date.
™ is limited by d a

Group level are not designed in a way that promates tong-term
shareholdings by execulive directors. .

The commiltee reviewed the CEO pay ratio report, aoting that the Group
s under no abligation o report. It approved the report for publication

1o include 2019/20 comparative data.
Only basic salary i i ion cantribution rates for
executive directors, or in lieu, are aligr jith th itabl
1a the wurk’an:e

other

of basi d
i i particularly for di
{o elirement,ar carefll cansidered by the commilee,

Th that no eontract with

requires a period of notice in excess of 12 months.

The committee reviewed and recommended changes Lo its terms of
reference. The board approved those changes.

The memibers of the committee until
15 February 2021 were:

May until November 2020 so that the impact an the business of Covid-19
coutd be better understoad. The 2020/21 year was considered in May
2021. 0n both occasions, the committee received i ion on

busin s of hard
measures linked 10 business plan targets and softer measures tinked

to demonstration of SPIRIT values and peer and team feedback.

The committee reached decisions on the total bonus pot and on the

share of the available pot to be allocated to members of the senior
team includi h of the h Details of

directors’ emoluments are set out in nole 5 1o the financial statements.

—AClesl

(chair and committee member until 31 January 2021}
— G Kitchen

—L Woolman
funtil 31 January 2021)

Adam Cleal had served on the Remuneration Committes
for more than 12 months before assuming the position of
committee chair.

.| duRUly | Hoday

1202 51020y pue 1ioday |enuuy dnog a)doag Joj sade)g

p—y

| vioday aibajens

5

Nominations &
Governance Committee

Remit
The committee is responsible for, reviewing size Th ittee hi
and composition of the baard including its leadership needs and
for succession. The itors training and on work done by b
needs of all Itis al: ible f ha btai

f the board duri
2020/21 and reported on this lo the buani. The review plamd mllance
rd membs

maintaining the Group's governance framewark.

Activity

Prior 10 the start of the 2020/21 year, the need to recruil to the role of
Group Chlr was denifed. The board set up a panel o load tho search,
Members of
by the extemal search consultant, Warren Partaers,

Through that search process, Richard Gregory was appainted to

the board in November 2020 and to the pasition of Group Char in
February 2021.

He ted an evatuation of the board, including its size and composition,
following which faur board mermbers stepped down during the year.

Non-executive directors are subject lo reappointment at intervals of

d the board’s support lar its recommendation that there be
an externally facilitated review in respect of 2021/22. The committee has
developed enhanced self-assessment madels to feed into future board
effectiveness reviews.

The Group had relamed the services of Wasmen PaRners in 20‘9 to
recruit 1t there was no other

Group and any search consultant engaged during the year. Indmdual
board members have worked with the search cansultants at various
times in their personal and professional capacities.

Th iitee reviewed and
reference. The board approved those changes.

to its terms of

The members of the committee during
the year were:

o more than four years and are expected to serve for
nine years in total.

The i blished a fresh ies matrix for
non~ele¢ullve directors and reviewed against it the skills of the

members and the length of their service. Th
made

directors and identified the need for recruitment at non-execulive.
tevel to repla terms of office wilt expi

18 months. ed fylde to support

it in the search for new non-executives.

‘The Graup Chief Executive announced his intenticn to retire in March
2022 and the committee is working on the search for his successor,
The committee will continue to work with the Group Chief Executive to
maintain a high parfamung managemenl teamwith slm\gm in d!p\h
1t has reviewed relation

warked in tandem with olh:r «committees on identifying skills gaps.

to be addressed by training or recruitment.

The commiitee has regard to the benefits of diversity on the board and
in the workforce generally. It seeks candidates for senior positians with
diverse characteristics and also seeks to appoint the best candidate for
any board post.

— G Waddel .
(chair until 31 May 2020 and re-joined as a committes
member on 16 February 2021

‘— G Kitchen

(chair from 1 June 2020 until 14 January 2021)

—ACleal
(until 31 January 2021)

—-R

inn
(chair from 15 February 2021)

— Angela Daniel
(From 15 Fabruary 2021)

- — Richard Gre?ory

(from 15 February 30211

by membars of
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Chief Executive
Officer Pay Ratios

Chi

£07) Pay Rati P

i Committee, The inder no
abligation to repnn on its CED Pay Ratios but the Group wishes to share
the information.

The table below sets oul the satary and total pay and benefits for the *
three identified quartle paint employees:

Yo 25th 50th 75th
The table bel the 2020/21 1otal pay ing Percent Percentile Percentile
Group CEO with that of the Group employees who are paid at a2
quartite), 50th pe 75th percentile Salary £21,224 £23,657 £36971
(upw quartile) of its UK employee population.
palPayad s es0 £3860
Method 25th 50th 75th enefits
Ending Perc Pe-centile | Percentite
March Option
021 ’a - 231 19:1 12 T " Mors that s consistent
with the relative rol 1 the CEO and the identied
employee. Large parts of the Group's operations are in n sectors where
The remuneration figures for the employee at each quartie were e rima s of a market tary,
10 the financial 31 starch 2021. 3 d voluntary
Broader element ‘in the form of

Option B was used to calculate these figures. Th i i

that this approach provides a fair representation of the Group CEO to
employee pay ralios and is apprapriate in comparisop to altemative
methods, balancing the need for stalistical accuracy with internal
operational constraints and complexities. Under this option, the latest
available gender pay gap data (i.e. that from April 2020) was used to
identify the best equivalent for three Group UK employees whose hourty
rates of pay are at the 25th, 50th and 75th percentiles for the Group. This
was also sense checked against a sample of employees with hourly pay
rales either side of the identified individuats to ensure thzt the identified
employees reflect the best equivalents for each quartile. A fuli-time
equivalent otal pay and benefits figure for the 2020/21 financial year
was then catculated for each of those employees. The pay ratios outlined
above were then calculated as the ratio of the Group CEQ's total pay and
benefits to each of these employees.

Ew. employee’s tolal pay and benefits wers calculated using the single
applicable 1o i wpanies, with the exception
nl banuses where mn amount pam during the year was used Inslc:d n!
that eamed duri
teave at less than IW% D’ |helr normal pay' mm exdnded from the
calculations. Small adjustments were made 10 the total pay and benefits
figures 10 allow for the up-rating of pay element where appropriate 10
achieve full-time and full-year equivatent values. No components of pay
have been omitted.

allowances and ather benefits are less typical across the majority of the
Group’s colleagues, with the highest bonuses payable to management
and senior management roles, The calleague identified at the 50th
percentile, however, was in receipt of a smafl bonus in the 2020/21
financial pmnd The Gmup is :nmmmed 10 affering its employees

ion for employees,
including Executive Directors, is determined with reference 10  range
of factors including (but not timited to) job banding, market practice,
geography and seclor.

Due to the nature of the role, the Group CEO's remuneration package has
higher weighting on performance-related pay compared to the majority
of the workforce. This means the pay ratias are likely to fluctuate
depending on the determination of the Group CEO's bonus in each year.

The committee also recognises thal, due to the nature of the Group's
business and the Aexibility permitted within the regulations for
identifying ann calmlanng the total pay and beneﬁls for Employees the
rati b

companies.

Pevious years’ CEO Pay Ratlos are shown below. The main reason for
the change in the ratios fram the year ending March 2020 1o March 2021

v

" is because the vatue of the lotal pay and benefits for the émployees

identified at the relevant percentiles increased by proportionally more
than the value of the Group CEO's total pay and benefitsin the period. By
their very nature, th not comparing identical empl

over a period of time and 50 some year-to-year variation in the results -
reportis to be expected because of this.

Year Method 25th 50th 75th
Percentile | Percentile | Percentile

March * Option g .

2020 B 29: 221 141
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Regulatgd board

Th the

Ventures board

y
boar)with considering the opemlmnal performance and complisnce

Follawing ch towards the end
of lhe financilyer, Placesfor People Ventures Limited assimed

with applicable standards of the 6

Following the 2020/21 Group board evaluation, the regulated board was
discontinued with the Group board becoming the forum for discussian
and decision on matters relating ta the performance and obligations

of the affordable housing businesses within the Group. Attendance at

regulated board mastings duiring 2020/21 is displayed for completenass.

Prlm 1a this, 'dusm’ hoin‘ls had pnwld:d oversight for the acllvlhes

and
characteristics. Places for People Ventures Limiled is a direct subsidiary
of the Group parent and within the Group structure it is the senior
company that is not involved with sacial affordable housing provision.
‘The campahy has a controling interest in a aumber of subsidiaries

that make up the Group’s non-regulated businesses. To ensure that
the non-regutated businesses receive similar levels of scruliny o that

of the reg . the the same
that of the Group Board outlined on pages 101 10 108,

it monit tional and financial "

basis agains1 the prevailing busvness plan having regard to value

ina number of
ways including pmﬁlahlblyleadmg o diidend, capital growh, éacil
impact and the enhancement of the Group’s wider placemaking activity.

Board meetings providk with the opportunity to
canstructively challenge the individual operating companies as to
perfonmance levts and slso provide an opportunity to monior the
f any joint ventures ar i
non-regulated businesses.
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Attendance at board and committeé meetings

Directors’ attendance at board and committee meetings, in retation to the number of meetings held, during the year ended 31 March 2021,
is set outin the following table.

1202 Siuno22y pue 1ioday jenuuy dnoug ajdoag 1o) sadeld

Board member Group | Audit & Risk | Remuneration | Nominations | Treasury | Development | Regulated
board Committee Committee’ | & Governance | Committee | Committee Board
Committee”

Richard Gregory!, W NIA n n " n NA
Chris Phillips? o NA NA NA ) ) NA
Adam Cleal? m N/A 22 w NiA NA NIA
Angela Danel 1010 " n in NIA wh %
Regina Finn 10710 Iz n. 3 NIA NA I
Nigel Hopkins 1010 I N/A NIA NIA wh 7
Amjad Hussain' m 5/5 NIA NA NA £ NIA
Tracey James? m 575 N/A NiA NIA ) NA
Graham Kitchen 1010 wn 12 n a4t ont n
Lynette Lackey - 1010 N/A N/A N/A 44 n 33
Graham Waddell 1010 o6 " wn I NA un
Liz Woolman? m N/A 22 N/A. N/A N/A "VUA
David Cowans 1010 NA NIA NA N/A N/A n
DebiMamriott-Lavery  10/10 NIA NIA NIA NiA N/A 3
Scott Black! 919 NA TN NA - NIA NA I
Tim Weightman 10110 NIA NiA NIA N/A N/A 33

 Andy Winstanley 1010 A’ NiA N/A N/A ‘A 3
Mary Parsons* 20 NA NIA NIA NIA N/A NIA

* Th & ' h 1 Nm{emhar 2020

Commillee il Y
when roup rd d that the i ommi ’Mnm Cleal, Amjad Hussﬂlh Tracey James, Chris Phillips & Liz
1d b g _. i .L' & Gaver s ,oni\'r.niu:e W January 2021.

N/A =not a board/commilttee member

35cott Black joined the Group board on 1 May 2020

“Mary Parsons resigned from the Group board on 27 May 2020,
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ach board

‘The Group Chair has carried out
member (and the Senior Independent Director has carried out an

Subsidiary boards

Places for People subsidiaries have governance arrangements
appropriate to their size and field of activity. All of those governance

- appraisal of the Group Chair) following the end of the financial y

Those appraisals have generated agreed objectives for each baavd
member, building on the work done through the board evaluation.

The board has conducted an evaluation exercise during the year using
only Group rescurce. The board has resolved that the annual evatuation
for the 2021/22 financiat year wilt be extemalty faciltated.

None of the directors who left the board during the year expressed
concerns about the operation of the board for circutation on their
departure to fellow board members.

The G ied with the UK Corpo ‘ode {the
Cade) 2018 version) except for Code ‘provisions 3,4, 18, 19, 36 and
aspects of provision 5.

Provisions 3, 4, and 18 te

or decisions bemg mlerred to sharehalders on matters of dueanr

d the use

of the AGM to. cnmmum:ale with investars, Pravision 3 encaurages the
li company and interests through long-term

shareholdings. .

The Group parent s acoripany Liited by g and does not issue
shares or have ex the by the
Code. I addresses the need for scrutiny and evaluation through the
board or an approp: f the board and it engag
investors dnm.lly and mmugh an amual mvesmrs lnmm

interests are aligr /s through the
perfarmance-related reward policy.

Provision 19 deals with the engih o serviceof th Group Chairman.
the 6 th that provision

for part of the year is set out in the sccllon on non-executive directors
(page 102).

Part of provision 5 prescribes the options for workforce engagement.
The board has concluded that its methods for engagement (described
n the investing in our colleagues section on page 39) are effective and
more suited to the Graup’s needs.

feed into the Group's

The registered provider subsidiaric quired to adopt

code. Places for Peopte Homes, Places for Peaple Living Plus, Castte
Rock Edinvar Housing Assaciation, Derwent Housing Association and
Chorus Hames Group have each adapted the UK Corporate Governance
cade (the Cade). Cotman Housing Association has adopted the National
Housing Federation (NHF) cade of governance, which cantains principtes
that the Group considers to be broadly cansistent with those af the Code.
With effect from 1 April 2021, Cotman Housing Associalion has agreed
1o adopt the Code as its governing code.

Regulator engagérhent

There is engagement throughout the year with the relevant regutators af
the affordable hausing providers: the Regulator of Social Housing (RSH)
in England and the Scattish Housing Regutator (SHR).

for include quarterly and 1 dat
regulator i

and engagement wilh non-executives.

Compliance with
the Governance and
Financial Viability
Standard issued

by the Regulator

of Social Housing

P firmed that of the Group's.
pliance wit wd Financiat Viabitty beer
e s that nanca o

The Group Chief Executive
participates in the RSH’s CEO
Forum and representatives of the

. SHR attended Castle Rock
Edinvar’s February board meeting.
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Going concern
viability
ntS

The Group produces a strategic business plan
each year. This process includes review and
challenge by the board, alongside consideration
of principal risks and uncertainties. When the

"business plan is approved it is then used as

the_‘ba‘sis for monitoring business performance
and providing guidance for our external
stakeholders, including regulators and investors.

The Gfoup robustly assesses both its risks

~and mitigating actions through the use

of a comprehensive risk mapping process.
Principal risks and uncertamtles aresetout
on pages 90 to 95.

S
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Going concern

‘The going concern assessment :mslders whether it is appropriate to I ing the Group's ts and resilience,
prepare the financial stal basis. The globat i vhich idered the Group's
Covid-19 pandemic has i presented a series of positlon and isk appetite. The projections have undergone igerous
d’|allmqes into aspects of all our businesses. single and multi-variate stress testing through it of several
. events, scenarios and mitigation factors, wmm identiy the mix of
that could itic Iurlhe

. The Board continues to monitor

the pandemic, is focused on
mitigating the risks for the

Group and has assessed the going

concern in light of the risks .
raised by the pandemic.

Al 31 March 2021 the Group had cash and undrawn facilities of £954.6m. -

The Group continues to actively manage its cash flows in order to
mitigate any reductions in income.

Trie directors have reviewed the flows covering a period
of 12 months from the date of the approval of the financial statements,
which indicate that the Group will be able 10 operate within the tevets
of iu'wgraed facitities and the compliance with debt covenants.

For the f both Viability and Going Cancern, the Di h
i were but plausible, mulli-vari i specific
considerations for the potential impact of the angoing Cavid-19 pandemic.

These scenarios inctude a shun IErm unpan nn m\l :nllecllan further
closure of lei:
affecting property sates.

As a result of these assumptions, and befare any cost reductions are

applied, management believe the liquidity of the Group at 31 March 2022

would be £750m and £462m at 31 March 2023 if the Group did not raise
any additional finance 10 that which is curently available.

has adequate resources to continue 1o meet allliabilities. as and when
they fall dus, for 12 manths from the date of approval of the financial
statements and therefore consider it appropriate to adopt the going
conce basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

. Loy

Viability

The Code requires the directors to make a staternent with regerd to
ility of the Group. Thi i of

" liguidity over a longer periad than the going cancern assessment,

The Group's stralegic plan covers a 10-year period, over which the
directors have made assumptions regarding the Group’s reveques.
operating costs and cash requirements.

The projections far the first three years of the plan are based on curren

opportunities and include an expectation of the rental incomes for the
Group. There is inherentlyless centinty in the projections from year four

taten. C th prioryears, the i d ed .

thal three years i is viabilty

ibed abave, the dir fident that the Group -

Group, including a downturn in the hnusmg market.

These avtnls and scenarios have been selx(ad from an analysis of lhe

Group risk register; and analysis of economic and d nanciel market lmnds :
and risks: The resul inue 1o be abla
10 settte projected liabilities as they fall due wer a three-year period.

Therefore the directors were satisfed that measures were i place
10 miligate significant risks to the Group’s aperations.

The directors continue to specifically cansider the impact of the
ongoing Covid-1 pandemic. Tis is deemed a prinipal isk as st out
on page 90 and of the si

[ detail within the sh i

considerations above. .

The key financial risks identified trom the Covid-19 pandemic, in the
prior year, have be thus far. The board to review

i i losely, to'ensure mitigati in relevant
and consistent due to the continuing uncentainty arising from the
Covid-19 pandemic.

During the year, the Regulator of Social Housing gave the Group ratings
for Gavemance and Viability of G1 and V1 respectively.

Extemnal assurance of the Group's viabiliy is demanstrated by the
Group's credit ratings (Moody's: A3 snd Standard & Poar's; A-).

Having assessed the prospects of the Group, including the Group's
cument funding, forecast requirements, existing commilted bomowing
facilitie d the principal risk: lined 90 to 95 of the
Directors’ Repart, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Group ill be able to continue in operation and meet its tibilities as they

- fall due over the period to March 2024.

In making this statement the directors understand that there is inherent
uncertainty in ail business planning and therefore as a result it is not

. possible Lo consider every risk and eventuality that the Group may face.

| The board is satisfied that the

stress testing that is performed
on the Group’s business plan
includes all the major risks that
the Group may face and therefore
provides strong assurance of the
Group’s financial viability.
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. The board is responsible for the Group"s"

system of internal control. This has been
designed to manage, and mitigate as far

- as possible, the risk of any fail_ure to meet

business objectives. It can only provide
reasonable assurance — not absolute
assurance — against material
misstatement or loss. The board’s

~approach to risk management is

supported by a structured assurance
framework which includes the Audit
& Risk Committee.

->
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a iy, eval — Senior i ked at each year end
ignificant risk v . This was in place throughout the year toconfim hat they have appropriatointemal coirol srucures, polies,
the approva of the The key place for the financial
elements of this process are as follows: ymmwrmmspmss.sgmmmnmmumkcnmm
ARk and for the year in question, All relevant .

. 'threelines of defence’ Assura'nrmdei.rskhasedmlenulndllmd

Eachriskis allocated t

weaknesses were identified.

atasenior — The continuation of the Cavid-19 crisis during the 2020/21 financial year
hat risks are being has diien changes insome aproaches (0 aur nemal contrl
managed efectively. isms buttesting ofi Business
ach ich he key the period,
Risk toutthe . !
fskma . ssiness which 5o for s tocontro
iiga sk are  aro any further actions considered Executive and the Audit & Risk Committee.
y naps
at their senior management meetings. ‘The Audit & Risk C
N systemin pla:e throughout the year aui is satisfied that the sources of
P onse e o appropriate, adequal provided
for g year, along suffcient evidence j of the desi i
hase ob and act
of the interal control system in place.
- i tite is revi
part of the business planning process. Donations‘
= i Value for|
to consider A o review pdalethe Broup | b ing the year, the Group made charitable donations of £142,762 (2020:
e £363,601). The Group made no pofitica! donations (2020 Eni.
summary at heir nrisk

rating:

Exmnmbvelaslnlhemdlnwnsldﬂwmmwemmgmks. :

, y the

- Audit & Risk Committee.

- i it plzn is dr the Group
ic risk register, which the key

vAr.mua.I Generalv

Meeting

1 September 2021.

seeks to ensure that appropriate controls are in place to mitigate and
manage risk to an acceptable level.

Th eeling was

| Statement of disclosure

s for " ion of risk reports has unds N
ing the year, taking i views of Executi

rmwmmsoneisdieee | 0 the auditor
has & i i v Audit & Risk
o been i Koy ik ins ich highiightthe rkage At the time of approval of this report:

P ic i i —Sotaras the din he

isks and the U i u itor is unaware.
of associated controls,
- N

— The Group' ach to isk 1 e di ake themsel 'anymlevanlmdrllr\lom\anon
in late 2020/21 by he G dit & il

Risk Committee in April 2021, While some areas of minor improvement
were identified. the report was posiive, confimning thalthe Group's
appmamlnnskmanagemenllsmhnevnlhbesi practice.

hat the Group’s auditor is aware of
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The dir responsible for preparing i the
govema d the financial statements i with
i nd regulations. Company res the directors.

10 prepare financial statements for each financial year.

Under thtLawthey haveelectedto prepar he Fnancialsatements
UK accounting stand;
(UK Generally Accepted Accounting Pracice) including FRS 102 - the

Financial JK tretand.

Under company law the direclnrs must not approve the financial
stalements unless they are satisfied that they give  true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the
company for that peried. In preparing these financial statements, the
directors are required to:

—  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
—  makejudg d estimates that ble and prudent

~ state whather splcable UK accounting sandards havebeen
follawed, subject to any od |
in the financial stalements

—  assess /s ability
disclosing, icabte, matters retated

—  use the going concern basis of accounting unlcss \heylnlmd ellhe(
10 liquidate
aftemative but ta do so.

The directors consider the report and accounts, taken as a whole, to be
fair, balanced and understandable.

The directors sponsible for ing adequale rd:
that are sufficient 1o show and explain the company’s transactions and
disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position
of the company and enable them 10 ensure that the financial statements
‘comply with the Companies Act 2006, They are responsible for such
Y y

of are free ial mi ¥ whether
duelofmudnr rror, and b l ibility for ich st

y open to them f the comgar

and to prevent and detect fraud and omerlrreqmanues

‘The directors ible.for th ity of the
iat information i M bsite.
ug.slanm in the UK governing the pmpamnnn and dissemination of
tion in other j

By order of the board.

Chis Martin
Group Company Secretary
1 September 2021
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Independent auditor’s report
For the yaar anding 31 March 2021 :

To the members of Places for People
Group Limited

1. Ouropinion is unmodified . -
wenave s h nanciatstemens rpiaces orpecrie [

Group Limited (“the Group™ ar “the Group and Company”) for the

year ended 31 March 2021 which comprise the Consolidated :""';.:“\"_a' E16m (2020; EVém)

o N roup financi .
Statement ofACamprehens:w.- Income, (heCampanySme.men(.ul ctatements asa 296 2020: 1,890 o Group Turnover
Ci income, the Ci of Financial holo B
Position, the Company Statement of Finarcial Position, the .
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Reserves, Eonsolidated Coverage 83.19 (2020:93.79%) of Group Turnover

Statement of Cash Flows and the related r-otes, inzluding the

accounting palicies in note 1. Key audit matters vs 2020
. . Recurring risks Recoverable amountol “
In our opinion: . development programme
— the financial statements give a true ani fair view of the state schemes and assoclated land
of the Group's and of the parent Company’s affairs as at 31 - =
March 2021 and of the Group's profit and the Company's Valuation of definedbenefit . b
result for the year then ended; pension scheme liabilities
— the Group and parent Cnfnyany financial .sla_iemenls haye Vatuation of investment S
been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting properties
standards, including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Repablic of Ireland; and Parent Company fraud LR
— the financiat have b din risk from revenue
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the . . recognition

Housing and Act 2008 and the
Direction for Private Registered Providrs of Social
Housing 2019,

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) (‘I5As (UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsibilities are described betow, We have fulfilled our ethical
responsibilities under, and are independent of the Group in

with, UK ethical including the FRC
Ethical Standard. We believe thal the audit evidence we have *
obtained is a sufficient and appropriale basis for our opinion.
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Independent auditor’s report
For the yoor ending 31 Morch 2621

2. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks
of material misstatement
Key audit mallers are those matters that, in our i Thi

were in of our audit of

judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the financial
slaternents and include the most significant assessed risks of
material misstatement (whether or not due 1o fraud) identified by
us, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall
audit strategy; the allocation'of resources in the audit; and

the financial'statements as a whale, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters, In arriving atour audit opinion above, the key audit
matters, in decreasing order. of audit significance, were as
fotlows {unchanged from 2020):

directing the eforts of the engagement team.

The risk Our response

Forecast-based valuation

development programme  The Group has a significant development
schemes and associated programme inctuding a significant portfolio of
land. ) properties developed far commercial sale and
. rent, the recoverable amount of which could
potentiaily be affected by changing market
conditions'during the year.

Recoverable amount of

Stock: £408.3 million
(2020: £434.2 mitlion)

The Group has appraisal processes in place to
Risk Committee Report), determine the recoverable amount of each
pages 145, 146 and 147 development scheme (and help identify any
{accounting policy) andpage  potential impairment risks).

163 {financial disclosures).

Refer to page 111 (Audit and

" The accounting of these schemes contains a
number of assumptions and judgements
relating to the recoverability of assets for sale
and work in progress, capitalised costs
(including internal staff and other costs),
allocation of casts between tenure types, as

1 1 i

We have undertaken a fully substantive approach
to the audit. Our procedures included:

— Mothodology choice: Assessment of
the appraisal processes that are used to
determine the scheme current asset stock
and work in progress carrying values to check
that these are consistent with our sector and
entity knowledge;

]
of the assumptions that have been used to
underpin the appraisal processes to assess
their appropriateness, including consideration
of the planned tenure mix for the development
scheme being considered, and comparison

of key assumptions {e.g. market value of
properties, cost inflation, rental assumptions}
to current third party enline data , including
appropriate online indexes (e.g. the Building

third party contractors and partners.

The Directors review the assumptions and
appraise the developments regularly, and at the
year end, to determine the recoverable amount
of the assets. This also includes the
consideration af impairment an significant
developments due to time delays, increases in
construction costs, falling land values, and/or

. budget overruns.

Thereis arisk that the appropriate valuation
and accounting treatment is not applied to

leading to material
misstatements in the valuation of stock held by
the Group.

. — Tests of detal

Cost ion Service index);

~ Our sector experience: Consideration
of the Directors ' assessment of whether
there has been an impairment indicator and
assessment of this based on other evidence
obtained during the audit including the
sales performance of schemes and market
indicators; and

Agreeing the underlying data
used in the appraisal processes, including
consideration of the sates history and costs.
incurred during the 2020/21 financial year,
back to sales certification documentation

and other third party documentation, such as
invoices. N
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Independent auditor’s report
For the year eating 31 March 2021

2. Key auditmatters: our

ment of risks of material misstatement (continued)

The risk Ourresponse

Valuation of defined Subjective valuation . We have undertaken a fully substantive approach
benefit pension scheme The Group is a member of various defined to the audit. Our procedures included:

1202 Swno3oy pue 1oday jenuuy dnosg sjdoag Joj saeld

1lability benefit pension schemes, which are material to
the Group, including: the Social Housing
Pension Scheme, the Scotlish Housing
Associations’ Pension Scheme, Places for
People Group Retirement Benefit Scheme and
Cambridgeshire County Council Local

. Government Pension Scheme.

Pension liabilities :
£368.2 mitlion
(2020: £325.8 million)’

Refer to page 111 (Audit and .

Risk Committee Report), The valuation of such schemes relies ona

page 145 (accounting'policy)  number of assumptions, most notably around

and pages 17310 179 the acluarial assumptions.

(financial disclosures). :
{tis important that the assumptions used
reflect the profile of the Group's employees, It is
also important that assumptions are derived on
aconsistent basis year to year, or updated to _
reflect the Group's current position. There are
also generic financial assumptions and
demographic assumptions used in the
calculation of the Group's liabilities.

There is arisk that, if the assumptions used are
not appropriate, the amounts shown in the
financial statements for the pension scheme
liabilities could be materially misstated.

actuary’s
the competence, capability, abjectivity and
independence of the external Actuary used.
. o .

with the support of our own actuarial
specialists, the key assumptions applied, being
the discount rate, inflation rate, and mortality/
life expectancy against externally derived data;
and .

Assossing transparency: Considering the
adequacy of the Group's disclosures in respect
of the sensitivity of the deficit to these
assumptions.
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Independent auditor's report
For the year ending 3! Morch 2024 .

2. Key sudit matters: oura

sment of risks of material misstatement (continued)

‘Valuation of Investment

The risk Our response

Subjective Valuation: We have undertaken a fully substantive approach

Properties The Group's property portfolia includes a to the audit. Our procedures included:

number of market rent and commercial units.
Investment properties: N

£572.9 million Under FRS102 these i A

Assessing valuer’s credentials: We assessed”

(2020: E574.9 million) Properties’ due to the intention of

the capability, abjectivity and

. rental values or capitat appreciation. The
Refer to page 111 (Auditand  standard requires this class of assets to be held
Risk Committee Report), at fair value.
pages 144, 145 and 146
(accounting policy) and
pages 161 16 162 (financial
disclosures).

The fair value of these assets is sﬂhjecl to
movements based on current market
conditions which could impact the overall
operating surplus for the Group. Also,
dependent on the type of valuation undertaken,
there are a number of assumptions used in the
valuation of the assets which are subjective,
and could impact the overall valuation at the
year end and movement during the year. The
valuation of the assets could be further
complicated by the changes in the market due
to the Covid-19 pandemic. )

Management undertook an appropriate
valuation process as at the year end to provide
- assurance that the value of the assets as at 31
" March 2021 reflects the fair value of these
assets.

Thereis a risk that inappropriate assumptions
are used leading 1o a material misstatement in
the valuation of investment properties.”

6f the Group's external valuer.
Methodology choice: We crilically assessed
the assumptions used in preparing the full .
valuation of the Group's investment properties.
to ensure they were appropriate.

Test of detail: We tested the accuracy of the
investment property base data provided to the
valuer to complete the full valuation to ensure
itaccurately reflected the Group's investment
property portfolio.

Methodology implementation and

- re- performance: We compared the

investment property value movements from
the valuer's report 1o the entries in the financial
statements to confirm that any material
movements in the value of invesiment
properties had been accounted for correctly.

i we idered the
.adequacy of the disclosures about the key
judgements and degree of estimation involved
in concluding whether there has been any’
material movement in the value of investment
properties since 31 March 2020.

Test of detail: We critically assessed .
management’s review of the investment

_properties as at 31 March 202 to identify any

materiat changes in value.
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Independent auditor’s report
For the year anding 31 March 2621

2. Key sudit matters: our assessmont of risks of material mi

The ri:

Parent Company revenue  Provislor. of support services
recognition

far the Graup and provides central support
Turnover: £42.7 million services to each of its subsidiary entities.
{2020: £34.8 million) . .

As such, the entity will incur charges for these

Refer to page 145 " centralised costs and recharge these to other
(accounting policies) Group companies.

and page 139 (financial

disclosures). This results in the majority of the Company

Statement of Comprehensive Income being
driven by costs incurred on behalf of the Group
and related income.

Therefore he revenue generated from the
services provided lo subsidiaries is seen as the
key area of audit focus.

atement (continued)

Ourr

ponse

. We have undertaken a fully substantive approach
* Places for People Group Lid is the holding entity  to the audit. Our procedures included:

Review of costs incurred

— Review of cosls incurred: Reviewing the
costs incurred and comparing the movement
year on year to determine the cost base;

Review of Parent Company income

— Review of Parent Company income: Testing
the Parent Company income to determine
the recharges that have been applied to
relevant costs. ~
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Independent auditor’s report
For the yeor ending 31 March 2021

iality and an overview

of the'scope of our audit ’
Materiatity.for the Group financial statements as a whole was set
at £16m (2020: £16m), i ith reference to'a

The companents within the scope of our work accounted for the

of Group turnover (of which it represents 2% (2020: 2%)). We
consider Group turnover to be the most appropriate benchmark
as the Group is a not-for-profil organisation, therefore the focus
is on turnover and any surplus generaled is variable and
reinvested.

Materiality for the parent company financial statements as a
whale was set at £1.25m (2020: £0.34m), determined with
reference to a benchmark of company total revenue, of which it
represents 2% (2020: 1%).

In line with our audit methadology, our procedures on individual

account balances and disclosures were performed to atower -

threshold, performance materiality, so as toreduce toan _
level the risk that indivi immaterial

misslatements in individual account balances addup to a

material amount across the financial statements as awhole.

Performance materiality was set at 75% (2020: 75%) of
maleriality for the financial statements as a wholé, which
equates o £12m (2020 : £12m) for the Group and

£0.94m (2020: £0.25m) for the parent company. We applied this
percentage in our determination of performance materiality
because we did not identify any factors indicating an elevated
level of risk. . .

We agreed to report to the Audit and Risk Committee any
corrected or uncorrected identified misstalements exceeding
£0.8m (2020: £0.6m), in addition to other identified '

i that reporting itative g ds.

Of the Group's 202 (2020: 202) reporting components, we
subjected 88 (2020: 91) 10 full scape audits; 10(2020: 12) of these
were required for Group reporting purposes and 3 (2020: 2) we
performed audits of account balances. The latter were not
individually financially significant enough to require a full scope

audit for Group purposes, but did present specific individual risks

that needed to be addressed.

The full scope audils required for Group reporting purposes
accounted for 83.1% {2020: 93.7%) of Group turnover and 98.9%
{2020: 99.2%) of Group fotal assets.

1 component {2020: 0) for which we performed work other than

audits for Group reporting purposes were not individually

significant but were included in the scope of our Group reporting .

waork in order to provide further coverage over the Group's
results. . .

We subjected 3 (2020: 1) companents to audit of account
bal, revenue (1 (2020: 0)) and stock

" (2 components (2020: 1)). .

illustrated on the next page.

For the remaining components, we performed analysis at an
p level to ine our that there
were no significant risks of material misstatement within these.

The Group team instructed component auditors as to the
significant areas to be covered, including the relevant risks
detailed above and the information to be reported back. The
Group team approved the component materialities, which ranged
from E4.5K to £12m (2020: £3.3K to E1lm), having regard to the
mix of size and risk profile of the Group across the components.

Video and telephone conference meetings were held with these
component auditors. At these meetings, the findings reported to
the Group team were discussed in more detail, and any further
work required by the Group team was then performed by the
component auditor.

The work on 28 af the 88 components (2020: 41 of the 91 -

was performed by co? ent auditors (all of
wham are camponent leams from the same audit firm as the
Group audit team) and the rest, including the audit of the parent
campany, was performed by the Group team.
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Independent auditor’s report
For the year ending 31 March 2021

Group turnover Group materiality

£€816.5m £16m
-(2020: £866.7m) . {2020: 16m)
£14m

Whole financiat statements
materiality (2020: E16m)

£12m

Whole financial statements
perfarmance materiality
{2020: £12m)

£12m

Range of materiality across
audited components
(E45k- E12.m)

B Group wmover (2020: £3.3k to £1Im)

W Materiality -

£0.8m

Misstatements reparted to the
Audit & Risk Committee
(2020: £0.8m)

Group revenue

Group total assets

83%

(202094%)

Full scope for 2021

Specified risk. i 02
I scope f i 2020

Specified risk i 2020

=1 Residual components

4. Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statemenls on the going
concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the Group or the
Company or to cease their operations, and as they have
concluded thal the Group's and the Company's financial position
means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there
are no material uncerlainties that could have cast significant
doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern for at least
ayear from the date of approval of the financial statements ("the
going concern period®).

We used our knowledge of the Group, its industry, and the
generaf economic environment to identify the inherent risks to its
business model and analysed how those risks might affect the
Group's and Company's financial resources or ability t i

The risks that we considered most likely to adversely affect the
Group's and Company'’s avaitable financial resources over this
period were: .

— Theimpact of further rent reductions;

— Adownturn in the development market;

We also considered less predictable but realistic second order
impacts, such as the impact of Brexit and the erosion of
customer or supplier confidence, which could result in a rapid
reduction of availabte financial resources.

We considered whether these risks could plausibly affect the
liquidity in the going concern period by assessing the Directors”
sensilivities over the level of available financial resources
indicated by the Group's financial forecasts taking account of
severe, but plausible adverse effects that could arise from these
risks individually and coltectively.

Our procedures also included:
— assessing whether downside scenarios applied mutually
i d i gregate, using our
assessment of the possible range of each key assumption
and our knowledge of inter-dependencies;

— wae compared past budgets to aclual results to assess the
directors’ track record of budgeting accurately;

— we evaluated the achievability of the actions the directors
consider they would take to improve the position should the
risks ialise, which included, ion of developed
units into market rent, the sale of commercial subsidiaries
and investment properties and reduction in capital
expenditure, taking into account the extent 1o which the
directors can control the timing and outcome of these; and

— we assessed the completeness of the going concern
disclosure.

Our conclusions based on this work: .

— we consider that the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of ing in th ion of the financial is
appropriate;

— we have not identified, and concur with the directors’
assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty related
10 events or conditions that, indivi or i may
cast significant doubt on the Group's or Company's ability to
continue as a going concern for the going concern period; and

— we have nothing material to add or draw attention to in
relation to the directors’ statement in note 1 to the financiat
statements on the use of the going concern basis of
accounting with no material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt aver the Group and Company's use of that
basis for the going concern period, and we found the going
concern disclosure in note 1 to be acceptable.

However, as we cannot predict all future events o conditions
and as subsequent events may result in autcomes that are
i with j that were it the time

operations over the going concern period.

they de, the abe arenat tee that'
the Group or the Company will continue in operation.
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Independent auditor’s report
For the yeor ending 31 Morch 2021

5. Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations —
ability to detect
1dentifying and responding to risks of material

As the Group is regulated, our assessment of risks involved

gaining an ing of thi it
the entity's for

inctuding
with regulatory

due to fraud
To identiy risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“traud

requirements.

w icated identified laws and

risks") we d or itions that indicate an
incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an oppartunity
1o commit fraud. Our risk assessment procedures included:

— Enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation

ol
our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial

as 1o the Group’s high-tevel policies and to
prevent and detecl fraud, as well as whether they have
Kknowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud.
— Reading Board and Audit and Risk Committee mintites.
— Using analytical pracedures to identify any unusual or
unexpected relationships.

y.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that
directly affect the financial statements including financial
reporting (including related company legislation) and
taxation legislation. We assessed the extent of compliance with
these laws and regulations as part of our pracedures on the

the audit

We communicated identified fraud risks
team and remai toanyi of fraud
the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account
possible pressures to meet internal performance targets, we
perform procedures 10 address the risk of management override
of controts and the risk of revenue ition, in

statementitems.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and
where the of non- i could
have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial
statements. We identified the following areas as those most
likely 1o have such an effect: health and safety, anti-bribery,

law and certain aspects of company legislation

particular the risk that i from other ial)
income streams is overstated and the risk that Company
management may be in a position to make inappropriate
accounting entries.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.
In determining the audil procedures we took into account the

results of our f the design'and it ion of
some of the Gi ide fraud risk

controls.

We also performed procedures including:

— Identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria”
and comparing the idenlified entries to supporting

hi fthe Company'’s activities and its legal
form. Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to
identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations to
enquiry of the directors and inspection of regulatory and tegat
correspondence, if any. Therefore if a breach of operational
regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant
correspondence, an audit will not detect that breach.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud
or breaches of law or regulation
Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an
unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some material

i in the financial even though we have
properly planned and performed our audit in accardance with
auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-

These included those posted by
individuals, journals containing specific words, journals
posted to seldom uséd accounts, and journals posted to
cash and turnover that were considered outside of the
normal course of business. .

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement
due to with laws and

h laws and is from th ts and
transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely
the inherently limited pracedures required by auditing standards
would identify it. )

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of
non-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion, forgery,
i i issi i or the override of

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonabty

internal controls. Our audit procedures are designed to detect

be expected to have a material effect on the financial
from our general commercial and sector experience, and through
discussion with the directars and other [¢ ired

material Weare not ible for
non-compliance or fraud and cannot be expected to detect
non- i with all laws and regulations.

by auditing standards), and discussed with the directors and
other management the poticies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.
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independent auditor’s report
For the year ending31 March 2621

6. Wa have nothing to report on the other
information In the Annual Report
The directors are responsible for the other information presented
in the Annual Report together wilh the financial s:atements. Our
opinion on the financial staternents does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion
‘or, excepl as explicilly stated below, any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other informationand, in doing
s0, consider whether, based on our financial statements audit
wark, the information therein is materially misstated or
inconsistent with the financial statements of our zudit
knowledge. Based solely on that work we have nat identified
material misstatements in the other information.

Strategic report and Directors’ report

— we have notidentified material misstalements in those
reports;

— in our opinion the informatian given in the strategic report
and the directors’ report for the financial year i consistent
with the financial statements; and

— inour opinion those reports have been prepared in
-accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks anc longer-term

Our work is limited to assessing these matters in the context of
onty the acquired during our financial

audit. As we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as
subsequent events may result in outcomes that are inconsistent
with judgments that were reasonable at the time they were
made, the absence of anything to report on these statements is
not a guarantee as to the Group's and Company's longer-term

 viability.

Corporate governance disclosures

We are required to perform procedures to identify whether there
is a material inconsistency between the directors’ corporate
governance disclosures and the financial statements and our
audit knowledge. ) -

Based on those pracedures, we have concluded that each of the
following is fatly with the financial
and our audit knowledge:

— the directors’ statement that they consider that the annual
report and financial statements taken as a whole is fair,
batanced and understandable, and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's position
and performance, business model and strategy;

- the section of the annual report describing the work of the
Audit Committee, including the significant issues that the
audit idered in retation 1o the financial

viability
We are required to perform procedures to identify whether there
is a material inconsistency between the directors’ di in

respect of emerging and principal risks and the viability
statement, and the financial statements and our atdit
knowledge.

Based on the knowledgé we acquired during our firancial
statements audit, we have nothing materiat to add or draw
attention lo in relation to: . .

— the directors’ confirm within the Going concern and Viability
statements on page 121 that they have carried out a rebust
assessment of the principal risks facing the Grcup, including
those that would threaten its business model, future
performance; solvency and liquidity;
the Principal Risks disctosures describing these risks and
explaining how they are being managed and mitigated: and
— the directors’ exptanation in the Going concern and viabifity
statements of how they have assessed the prosects of the
Group, over what period they have done so and why they
considered that period 1o be appropriate, and their statement
as 1o whether théy have a reasonable expectaticn that the
Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its
liabilities as they fall due over the period of their

statements, and how these issues were addressed; and

— the section of the annual report that describes the review of
the i of the Group's risk and
internal control systems.

7. We have nothing to report on the other matters

on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you

if, in our opinion:

— adequate accounting records have not been kepi by the
parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

— the parent Company financial statements are not in

with the inti ords and returns; or

— certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by
law are not made; or

— we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit. :

Weh: sthi

including any related disclosures drawing attention to any

necessary or

toreportin th pects.
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-Independent auditor’s report

For the yeor ending 31 Morch 202+

8. Respective responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities R
As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 125, _
the directors are responsible for: the preparation of the financial
statements including being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view; such internal control as they determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error; assessing
the Group and parent Company's abitity to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless -
they either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent Company
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
todoso, : .

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our
opinion in an auditor's report, Reasanable assurance is a high

level of but does not g that an audit
conducted in accordance with iSAs (UK) will always detect a
material mi

when it exists. Mi: arise
from fraud or error and are idered material if, i l

9. The purpose of our audit work and to whom we
owe our responsibilities .

This repart is made solety to the Company’s members, as a body,

in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act

2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state

to the Company's members those matters we are required lo

state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose,

Ta the fullest extent permitted by law, we do nat accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company’s members; as a body, for our audit work, far this
report, or for the opinians we have formed. .

Harry Mears

{Sentor Statutory Auditor) for and on behalf
of KPMG LLP,

Statutory Auditor

Chartered A

in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial

statements.

Afuller iption of our ibilities is provided on the
FRC’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

15, Canada Square
London
E1456L

3September 2021
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ending 31 Morch 2021 . .

Group and share of joini ventures turnover
Less: share of joint ventures turnover

Group turnaver

Costof sales

Operating osts

Profit ansale of fixed assets

Gain on revaluation of investment properties
Operating profit before Intorest

Share of operating profit on joint veritures
Interes! receivable and similar income
Interest payable and simitar charges

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Taxation

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation
Loss attribitable to non-contralling interests

Profit attributable to members of the parent company

6 the financial y joint venture:

Share of joi for the financial y

Total profit for the financial year

Fair aps

interest rate waps
Delerred tax on interest rate and currency swaps

Actuarial din

Actuarial loss recognised in the pension scheme
onmovement in

Deferred tax arising on gift aid transfer
Total comprehansive Income for the year

The notes on pages 144 to 188 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Al activities are cantinuing. .

Notes

PRV

2021
£m
885.7
(39.2)
8165
(198.5)
(422.8)
7.4

39
2087
17

97
(139.0)
791

7440
73.2
0.9
74
(54.8)
523
0.4
0.6
(43.6)
21

- 38.4

2020
£m
ooel
21.4)

© 8687
(2037
“135)

9

77

283

4

m
M)
9.2

0.8)

B89.4
—w
903

907

0.6)

903

120

(20.8)

20

282

0.4

12.0)

03

99.4
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Company statement of comprehensive income

For thayeor ending 31 Morch 2023

Notes
Turnaver
Operating costs
Operating profit X
Interest payable and similar charges . 8

Result on ordinary activities before and after taxation
The notes on pages 144 to 188 form anintegral part of these financiat statements. .

There is no other comprehensive income other than that reported above.

202t
£m
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" R Grogory, Group Chair

Consolidated statement of financial position e
50131 March 202!

2021

2020
. - - Notes : £m em Em
Fixed
Goodwilt 12 8.4, 87
Hausing properties 3 3,959.7 3.868.4
Fixed assetinvestments 15 757.8 717
Equity laans 1 - 68 704
Other lixed assets : % 113.5 1044
49015
Non-current assets
Debtors: amaunts falling due after one year 18 339 538
Pension surplus 25 0.1 259
36.0
Current assots X
Stock . 7 . 4083 4342
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year . N 1390 2.4
Investments ! 20 12.8 23
Cash and cash equivalents 95.2 183.6
455.4 7845
Current liabillties .
Creditors: amaunts falling due within ane year 2 (408.2) 3459
Mot curvent assats * 247.2
Non-current liabilities S . :
Credi falling due h yer 22 (4,468.3) (.675.1)
Pension liability 25 (22.6) i [(E1))
X *(4,490.7)
Not Assets : . 698.0
Capltal and reserves
Revenue reserve . . : 737.2 i
Cashftowhedge reserve L (37.0) ’
Restricted reserve 2
Totsl capital and reserves . 700.6
Non-contralling (nterests - - (2.4
4698.0
The nots 14410188 1 integral part of The financial statements of Places for Peop!
company number 03777037, board of di 1 September 2021. They i

w®> o Dy b

D Cowans, Group Chisf Executive

48298

79.7

" 4386

(4,688.2))

8599

6620

@0

4599

ip Limited,
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Company statement of financial position

As a1 31 Morch 2071
2021
Notes . Em
Fixed assets
Investments ) . X - 15 0.5
Current assets .
Debtors: amounts falling due within ane year | e 16.3
Cash and cash equivalents ) 0.3
. 186
. Currant liabilities
Creditors: amounts fatling due within ane year : . 2 ary
Net current lisbllliles . (0.5)
Not assets -
Capital and roserves : N
Revenue reserves : . . -
The nates on pages 144 to 188 | integral part of i
The financial statements of Places for Peopl p Limited, company number 03777037, were approved by the board of directors

" on 1 September 2021.

They were signed onits behal by:

b\ Dy G
Srou Chit Execatva

R Gragory
Group Chair

2020
Em

27
1.2
89
(9.4)
{0.5)
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Consolidated statement of changes in reserves

Fortheyear ending 3) March 2621

Balance at 1 April 2020
Total comprahensive Income for the year
Profit for the year

Fair value loss on interest rate and currency swaps

i rate and

Deferred tax on interest rate and currency swaps

twari

Batance at 3t March 2021

Cash Flow .
Revenue Hedge Restricted Total
Reserve Reserve Roserve Reserve:
€m £m €m &m
484.8 7.2 0.2 §62.0
744 = bl 740
- (54.8) - (54.5)
52.3 - - _52.3
9.9) 103 - 0.4
0.6 - - 0.6
(63.6) - - (43.6)
o1 - - 21
737.2 {37.0) 0.2 700.4
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the yzar ending 31 Morch 2621

" Net cash generated from operating activitles

Additionat pension contributions

Cash flow from Investing activities
Purchase of housing and Y i

Praceeds from the disposal of housing and investment properties
Purchase of ather fixed assels

Proceeds Irom the disposal of other !

Purchase of fixed and current assel invesiments

he di taf asset i

Cash received from acquisitions
Receipt of Government and other grants
Interest received

Dividends received from investments

Net cash flow from investing activitios

Cash flow from financing activities

‘Interest element of finance lease rental payment
Capital element of finance rental lease payments
Interest paid

Toxpaid

Setitement of financial instruments

Orawdown of loansin the year

* Repayment of loans and debentures in the year

Nt cash flow from financing activities
Net changa In cash and cash oquivalonts
Cash and cash equivatents al beginning of year

Cash and cash oquivatents st and of the year

Notes

2021

Em,

219.7

(5.0)

(149.3)
428
(22.0)
(25.5)
709
04
107
09

18

69.3)

" us2)

(1.8)
(126.3)
1.4
(22.8)
58.3

(128.6)

(233.8)

(80.4)

183.6

8.2

2020
Em

2178

5.0

{308.8)
289
(28.6)

@2
3.6

833
a7
1.8

{186.9)

(%]
.0
(123.8)
14.8)
ns
824

(142.0)

95
s
66.2

183.6
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Notes to the financial statements
Forthe year ending 21 March 2021

1 Principal accounting policies

A of the principal
cansistently, is set out below.

which kave been applied

Basis of accounting

ith
ting standards, inctu3ing Financial
Repartlng S|andard \ﬂl “The Flnanclal Renon\nq S|andarﬂappll:ahla in

Alisting of subsidiari ings is provided in note 29.

exist »
he basis of th

parent idiasies, which
and enable the Board of Directors ta control tha Group. All subsidiaries.
have coterminaus year ends. Places far Peaple Livings Limited, Places
impact, Casile Rack Edinvar Housing Association, Colman Hausing

of Derwent Community Limited, Chorus
-actice for Regi ial He valdars 2018 Homes Limited (s rly L Hi Limit
(SDRP) the ing Direction 2019 far i Providers People Lei: ij h haritably
of 2015, and with th i 1 2004
that are in sub: ifi 1o the
The financial Group are. accnunled for by calculating the excess of the fair vatue of the
1 d the fair f liabiliti ired. This gainis
Golng Concern inthe S e
The goit it
prepare th i basis, The global Significant Judgements
Covid inevitably uresenl:d a seri The fallowi the significant jy aparl fi
hall int f all qur The Boarc conti 1 i Loutl below), e

monitor lving si d itigating the risks for the i f applying the entity's accounting policies and that have the

the goil in light of the risks raised by most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
the pandemic. statements.
A1 31 March ZMI the Bmup had cash and undrawn faciliies of £954.6m. Goling Concern
Th to age its cash flows ir-order to Inorder for the Group pi
mitigate any reductions i i , having

3
The di i h flows coveri iod d the ' . In arriving at
of 12months from the date of the iapruval of the financial slalemems this jud t there her of i
which mdl:ale lhil il P itkir i ulating future cash flow projections. This inctudes.
it d the i i Forthe management’s expectations of both property sales and rental turnover,
f both Viability ing Concern, laid peraling . timi ital it d
but plausible, multi-vari i ith if estimates and cost of f funding. The Di h:
for ial impact of the ing Covid-19 li-variant scenarios with

pandemic. Th i0s include a sh s onrent for i impacl of ing Covid-19 ic, in respect of
coltection, further ctosure of Leisure centres and a dowrturn of the th i andtoaid

housing market affecting property sates.

As aresuit of these and before any cost reducti

applied, management believe the liquidity of the Group a: 31 March 2022
would be E750m and £462m at 31 March 2023 f the Grouo did not raise
any additionat finance to that which is currently available.

On the basi i di the Group
has adequate resources to continue to meetall labilies a5 and when
they fal due, for 12 months from the date of approvalof e financial

sensitivity analysis. As 8 resnll of (hne consxdemmns |he financial
tatements h

Investment properties

The & of different property types. This requires the
Group to asszss which properties should be classified as investment
properties as these properties are hetd at a market valuation, not at
depreciated cost.

 The Group considered the FRS 102 definition of investment property

it 10 adopt the going which refers o property heldto earn rentals fr capital appreciation.
basisi i i takement cather than for admini for salein
ofbusiness. The Group has also reviewed Secion 16 of FRS umhau
Basls of consolidatlon @ jon of proper i f
The financial statement 4 social ing classified as invastment property. P
by consolidating the esult of the enties wibinthe Placssfor People pplied this by judgi es wi ic subsi
had dtheequity  attached to them are investment properties.

methe for ot venture entilies as approprite.

The i ise the financial stat s of Places
for People Group Limited and its subsidiary undertakings. control of
which are achieved where Ptaces for People Group Limited has the
power the financiat policies of anentity so as to
obtain benefits fram its activities.

Lease elassification
Ouring the year ending 31 March 2019, the Group purchtzad the
freeholds of anumber of properti

should be classified as a finance lease.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the yeor endiag 31 Moreh 2021

1 Princlpal accounting policles (continued)

The Group considerad the requirements of FRS 102 Section 20which Yurnover

1t the risk: Turnover land ge i ivable (net of
of ownership, it should be treated as a fi lease. lt was income from the sale of properties, i he sale of
thatb e 1p will retai hip of theend the first tranche of shared ownership properties, fees and grants from
of the 45 year | i ide holding the risk of local authorities and Homes England, leisure facilities management

owning and managing the properties during this period, the Group
substantiatly halds the risks and rewards of ownership.

Accounting estimates

The f estimati that i differ from the

fees, equity loan fee income and other income. The turnaver of the parent

ing People are

Charges for suppy Suppo
ised as they fall duo under th, 1

estimates made.

Rosidual value of sociol housing proporties
Itis consis

with Administering Autharities.

Rental income is recognised from the point the property becomes
avallable for lelting.net of any voids. Income from land and property

asignificant impact of social

ks and rowards o wnership have.

housing assets. Th i 1l
ropertysiructure 10 b cos,The nt ook vatueof completed socil

passed to the purchaser. L revenue i
based on the total contract value and the stage of completion af the

housing ies is £4.0bn. Th contracl. Mortgage fee income is recognised over the term of the
property. Slmclure is £3Mm above the carrying value as at 31 March coniracl. Other income is recognised upon the delivery of services.
2021 A duction i ld resultinno b tothe ant i i aver the i
depreciation charge. the assets to whichit relates.
Defined benefit pension schemes All urnover It
The h; bligations relating to six pel\sim
schemes. Note 25 sets out the details for Reporting
assumplions made (o a!sesslhu net scheme hnnuﬁ! as at'the reporting FRS 102 i ities wi i debt
date. Th i iate to applytha reparting requirements IFRS 8 Operating Szgmenls The
discount rate. A di the discount d of 0.1% is estimated ip Board to be the chief opet g ki
toincrease scheme deficits by £4.6m. (*CODM") as defined by IFRS 8. Theiinfarmation in lhese financial
that has b line with
rnvasrmem properties s i f the ling Direction for Private Registered
itian ta judging whether or ti Providers 2019, aligns with internal reporting presented to the CODM.
investment properties, the Group s also required to estimate the fair
value of i t bnsls To C tion tax
estimation, thy adviser, to The Group is liable to United Kingdom Corporation Tax. The charge far
use RICS gui the Red Book pl taxation for the year is based on the profit for the year i
full valuation of the Group’s investment properties. The results of the current tax on the taxable profit for the year and
tuati i i i Deferred taxationis recognised n respect of all iming diflerances
challenge. by hy f certain i ion and far accounting .
purp h butnot of
Recoverability of stock financial position date.
T'hEGanp has E4D8.3m of stock at 31 Mar:h 2021 (2020 E&34.2m),
£105.4m, ti f £225.6m and VAT
completed properties of £75.0m. FRS 102 smmn 13 uqumes stocktobe  Themajorily of the Group's turnaver is exempt from VAT. However,
d at the lower of cost and esiis Ul to certain acti subject to VAT and give rise to VAT recovery. Where
lete and sell. The G 1 itivi is and costs are stated including i
h: that that a sh dropi prices of
our ies of resulti terial Pensions
impairment charge, “ There are thirl i he sixof? defined benefit
penslan schemes based on final pensionable salary. There is a

Th sale id Details of the sch ot

basis and | techniques to estimate outin Note 25. Employees jolning the Places for Peopte Group have the
h amount of stock. ial projections are used aption af joini for Scheme
on an individual site basis to allow management to estimate that land ( Scheme’), a defi cheme. The costs of
and prqper\y are held at the appropr The 1o th ted for as an exp
i thy ievab ling price for properties

including assessing the views ul spe:lallsl advisers an Ihe UK huuslug

inthe year in which they occur. Contributions trom the Group and
par ! intoi ini

| P

mnrkel aM fut

latir d ype. As
such the Group judges that'stock is hetd at the tower of cast and
i 10 pl
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Notes to the financial statements
For Ihe year anding 31 March 2021

basis over th ife of the
ent. is not iated. The esti

assets and components is as shawn in the table opposite.

1 Principat policies
t i expertsusing Assats Depraciation period
3 ion scheme liabiliti ing a (years) B
projected unit method and discounted at the current rate of return ona Rented housing and commercial praperties:
i i it 0 the
liability. Kitchens 2
Bathrooms 20
Pension sch . gni here s an Boilers 5
unconditional right to a refund of that surplus. Pension scheme deficits Externatwind
are recognisedin full. The movement in scheme surplus o deficitis split - EXternatwindows and doors 3
b ing charges, and. in other i Roofs 4
income, actuarial gains and tosses. g Fire safety systems 2
Fenci 30
Places for People Homes Limited, Colman Housing Association Limited -0
and Derwent Housir jation Limited (the English Assaciati Digital TV aeriats - - 10
participate in the Sociat Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS). a multi- Lifts 20
employer defined bencfit scheme. Castle Rock Edinvar Limited and Socialalarms From20-40
e b H Surveys . 15
Initial and replacement scheme assets From1-5
Other elements (new build) 100-125
Housing Propartlos i Other elements (rehab) 80
9p ion of social
- benefit, Housing praperties are stated at the lower of i O Oiherek (leasehold) Lesser of term of lease
it amount. Cost is take h together or 100 years
T o
e ‘ncurred, including and Sharod owriershlp housing:
administrative costs and interest payable. ’ All elements (new build) 100
. All elements (rehab) 80
. ' " S isin .
f
herth isingusvlue ol h proertya e disosal Al lement easchold Lesseralurmatless
value of the properly.
. Other fixed assets:
tnvastment proporties m -
Properties held for p al arenothetd  Offices (new build) 100
primarity for thy are held as invesiment Offices (rehab) 80
properties at fair value, h 1o fair value the i i From 10-20
statement of comprehensive income. . Lesser ol termof lease
. Offices (tang leasehold)
or 100 years
tand
Landis slated at lower of cost or its recoverable amount. Land. Offices (short leasahnfd) Terms of lease
the of properties whi dtobe Plant and equipment 5
dedinhousing  gorg andcommercialvehiclés 5
properties. L ] tobe sold .
s held within stock in current assels, Computer hardware, software andinfrastructure From 3-15
Othor fixed assets
Other are L
atthe lower of depreciated cosl or its recoverable amount.
Deprectation
Fixed assets, other than freehold land and'investment properties, are
i rates calculated book value of each
telement i N . onastraight line
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Notes to the financial statements
For the yeor ending 31 Morch 202}

1 Principal accounting policies (continued)

Fixed asset investments

Long term contracts

acquisition and atiributable overhead costs.

Allland and property held within stack is subject to regutar appraisal 1o
confirm the assets are recoverable at least at the carrying value.
Included within stock are amounts inrespect of the expected percentage
of sales under first tranche disposal for shared ownership properties.

Fixed asset investments are measured at cosl. An annual review is Long d at cost plus profit afier
carried out by management ta assess if there are any triggers that would idi ! Pragress
d to an impail review. In th of any impail the 1! ived th ts. Cost includes
investment d at the lower of i orits overheads. Long workin
luei in joi progress is ncluded in deb amounts n
and ing the equity
Cash retentions relating to customers and contractors are recognised,
- Stock . ‘within debtors and creditors respectively, in line with the terms and
Properties for sale are treated it stage of the rele contract. Cost accruals for works completed but not
assets andall i i treated as tangible fixed etinvoi iers and costs esti it
assets. Properties held as current assets are stated at the lower of cast recagnised in line with prafit recagnition on the project and held until
d esti I t: andsetl. actual costs are incurred.
tock i hy to sell, including Social Housing Grant and Other Capital Grant
1 P for i priorto s i ithis ditors s of
sale, Stock is stated at the lower of cost i financial pasiti h
1 ampl provi: by h d of L Lh lives of the assets to which they relate
sales. The cost of stock is the purch ice together wit ts of oril iods in whi i d.

When Social Housing Grant (SHG)in respect of housing praperties in the
i h 1o date of i
properties, the excess is shown as a current liability.

Where SHG or other grants are retained following the disposal of

Proceeds from first tranche disposal ognised in turnover. The property, it i the Disposal Praceed: itat

ity of shared hip properti ised withi Grant Funds within creditors. These funds wilt be used for the provision of
housing properties. i ing lor rent if unutilised.
Goodwitl Concessionary Loans
Goodwill represents th f the cost of an acquisit thefair  The h idered tobe a
value of the net identifiable assets and liabifities of th i y
or company at the date of acquisition. Goodwill has no residual value and
he fini life of goodwillis indivi is for Under th h g
each acquisition, with i 10years. The i h ket purchase price of a
6 i d inorder 1o advance interest ree | The

indicate that the useful life may have changed since th ! h it \cessianary
last ing date. Goodwill and intangible tested for and are shown as fixed assets investments on the statement of financial
i i i 102 Section 27 impai of position. The HomeBuy grant provided by the Government Lo fund ali or
there is an indication that goadwill may be impaired. partofa yloan i i acreditor due i
Y year

Impairment

review
assel may be impaired. lf assets are found to be impaired, the amount of
impairment is disclosed in Note 3. .

Whi ing impai iews

Financial Instruments.
ted ly th it

3as

or ns of Y
102 sections 1l and 12. Financial instruments are initially recorded at fair
h fion of the

value.

assels or
cash generating units are held at the lower of cost or recoverahle

instrument as follows:

amount tis defined as its value inuse.

amount is normally assessed using discounted cash flow techniques for — Deb service reserves held in trust as security against debt holdings

all i anetp ity ised
using the effective interest method.

Cost i It sch inctuding mixed -t ivabl isedas| d

tenure schemes. receivables and measured al amortised cost using the effective
interest methad. N

The Group defi b — Amount: 1s are included with

except where il t sufficientlylarge enough in siz debtors. .

anditi i ider individual assets, Thi h . — Other assets, including trade investments and jaint venture

supports eflective appraisal of housing schemes as it aligns with the
management and operatian of the business.

and assets that
d recei i i loans and
receivables and measured al amorlised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ending 31 March 2621

1. Principal sccounting policies (continued)

— Di are shown at their i less deferred Leases
interest, Deferred interest represents the discount on the issue of the Th ifies f ! as the risk and reward
Di it ised in of of i transferred ta the Group. Other

g
Comprehensive income on an effective yield basis.
— Derivative ising i

ps, are hetdat

teases are classified as operating leases.

fair value. Where a derivative financial inslrument is designated Assets obtained under finance lea: tangible fixed
hedge of the variability in cash flows of a orliability, ~ assets i the shorter of the tea i
or ahighly pi i partofany i tives, Obligati I areincludedin
gain ar loss on the derivative financiat ised di of the f 10 future periods. The
directiy in reserves. Any ineffective partion of the hedge is recognised i 1 of the rentalis charged to th of
SECA L " p ingthe
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and .

Coslsif ing | harged to th of

qualifyas g inth f

imme together with any ges in
the fair value of the hedged item that is atiributable o the hedged

ight line basis over the lease term.
Incame in respect of operating leases where the Group i the lessar is

risk. iated cumulative gain or red f it
d ised i i account in
the same period or periods during which the hedged forecast
transaction affects profit or loss.

— The cost of raising finance is amortised over the period of the
assaciated financial instrument. The deferred costis offset against
the liability recognised i the statement of financial positian.

— Financial liabilitie: it it ised

using the effective interest method.

straightline

basis over the lease term, reduced by the cost of any lease incentives.

Restrictod Resorvos
Th ve which i ”
with the wishes of the funder. The transters toffrom restricted
reserves are shown in other comprehensive income.

Operating segments :
FRS 102 requires entities with publicly traded debt to apply the reporting

Th ive it e includes interest and all di IFRS the Group
and casts. Derivati ire fair val Boardto be th decisi ker ("CODM") as defined by
eachyear y bi isationunderthe _ IFRS8. Thei in these financial statement:
hierarchy approach. notes, that has by duced in tine with i fthe
A ing Direction Registered Providers 2019, aligns with
Cashand cash equi inth of financial internal reporti CODM for and review
items that mature or are convertible within three manths or less. The purpases.
it ” . Lot N
tais ti 1o teasehold are Notes 2 and 3 present segmental information on income and expendilure
hetd i k account to whichi i Tor the diff ions of the Group. The CODM do not review
deducted. Amount in the fund il : of assets and fiabilit

assetinvestments and within creditors in the statement of financiat
position.

Other debtors, including arrears, and credi i d
interest rat i payable wi ded at
Anyl isis ised i
the statement of comprehensive income.
Foreign Currancy
ions in forei the rate of
h ling a1 the date of th i it hedg: ,

at ih fexch: der th
. e

translated using the contracted rate or the rate of exchange ruling

althe f financial losses on

of

this is not presentedin these financial statements.

— 1202 S1UN023Y pue 1i0day |Enuuy dnoug ajdoay Joj 5338)d
>

sjuawayels jePuRUY | oday aaueuiancg | 1iodey dibaleas

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ending 31 March 2021

2 Turnover, cost of sales, operating 2020
costs and operating profit Turnover Cost of sales Operating Other
costs  operating ltems profit
£m £m £m €m £m
Saclat housing lettings (ot 3) 380.4 - (190.5) - 109.9
Other social housing activitles .
Sacial housing property sales 10.7 (X)) (1.8) - 18
Shared ownership property sales 24.2 019.9) (2.2) - 22
Charges for support services 8 - 3.6 - 0.6
Other ) 12 - (0.3) - 05
4203 (269) V(m.zi - Tows2
Nan-soclal housing activitles 96.2 171.8) (224.6) - ) =
8165 (198.5) (422.8) - 195.2
Surplus an sale of Axed assets (nate £) - - - 7.6 X
Bain on revaluation of investment properties _ - - . .
{nots 1) . . 3.8
Total . 8165 (196.5) (622.6) "8 206.7
- 2020
Turnover Costofsales  Operaling costs Other Operating
: : operatingitems profit/loss)
£m £m £m Em T Em
Social housing lettings (note 3) . : 3614 - 181.5) - 1794
" Other social housing activities ’ ’
Social housing property sales 80 3 ©s5) - 02
Shared ownership property sales . 132 ®n ©n - 38
Charges for support services . 43 - a9 - Too4
Other - 07 - 0.8 - 01
3873 16.0) 197.2) - LBk
Non-social housing acti . s aern (2863) = 54
866.7 (203.7) w3s - 1895
Surplus on sale of fixéd assets (note 4) . - - - 9.1 91
Gail Lwation of i ties (not
s - - -~ 127 17
Total ) (203.7) (4735 %8 283
Analysls of turnover . . 2021 2020 -
£m £m .
Social housing turnover 4203 3873
Non-sacial housing activitles
Non-social housing development 12 1925
Leisure facilities management . 877 1535
Property management services A .597
Non-sacial housing letlings . 36.6 32
Non-social construction services . Kt 180
: Other " . ) . . 2.9 125
Total . . = 9145 8667 ..
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ending 31 March 2021

3 Income and expenditure fram saclal

housing lettings
Income
Rent receivable net of

Service charge income
Revenue grant
Amartised Governmeni granis

Other income

Turnover from social housing lettings

Expenditure on soclat houslng lettings
activities N

Management

Service charge cosls '
Routine maintenance

Planned maintenance

Major repairs expenditure

Bad debts

Depreciation on housing assels

Other costs

Operating costs on soclai housing lattings

Operating prafit on soclal housing lettings.

Vold tosses

2021

2020
Supported
N houlln'»ﬂ

Genoral needs housing for .
housing  older people Other Total Tatat
Em €em £m Em &m
2625 216 270 3 2971
219 ‘138, 23 8.0 367
29 - - ‘29 55
216 25 04 248 125
1 25 0.3 39 &3
3100 404 30.0 3804 3611
(40.1) on () (56.5) 67
) 12.2) (29 (33.8) 52.6)
(40.2) a9 an “r.2) s
e 2 ©.8) 1.4 ‘060
3.9 ©5 (©.2) (6.6 61
(20 ©n ©n @2 @5)
{27.3) .0 (1.0) (s1.3) (25.6)
8 - - a8 28
(145.3) (28.6) (16.6) (190.5) «181.5)
1667 ne’ 124 1099 1794
(2.8) 0.4) 1.3) (5.5) 38
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Notes to the financial statements
For the yeor ending 31 Morch 2021

4 Group profitonsale of fixed assets

. 2021
Sale procends Cost of sales Othar aales Surplus/
" oxpenses (loss)
€m €m . £m em
Sale of hausing assets 5.4 7.0 -0 7.2
Sale of fixed asset investments 5.8 @288 0.8 0.4
Totat si.2 61.8) 1.8) .78
) : 2020
Sale proceeds Castof sales Other sates . Surplus/
expenses (loss)
Em £m £m &m
Sale of housing assels 220 (132 05 83
Sale offixed asset investments 70 LU T 08
Sale of other fixed assets 04 ©3 ) -
Total 24 09.6) Ny 9
\
5 Directors’ emoluments N
™ is admini i The dif tout below. ) 6roup
. 2021 2020
€m £m
\ggreg: cludir _
Expenses not chargeable to United Kingdom income tax reimbursed
10 diltﬂm" S: - .

Non-executive directors 0.4 03

Executive directors (8] 22
Pension contributions:

Executive directors 0.2 o1
Total remuneration _ 23 26
The number of executive di ived inth 2021 2020

. No. No.
£120,000 < £129.999 1
£130,000- £139.999 = 1
£200,000 - £209.999, . - 1
£210,000-£219.999 . - 1
£230,000 - £239.999 - z
£240,000 - £269.999 . : 1 -
£270,000 - £275.999. 1 1
£260,000 - £289.999 ' -
£300,000 - £309.999 1 -
£510,000 - £519.999 1 -

£520,000 - £529.999

Due 1o the Covid-19 pandemic, the specific allocation of the bonus for the year ending 31 March 2020
was agreed after the approval and signing of Ihe financial statements. The remuneration received by
execulive directors for the prior year has been restated to include the actual bonus paid, as a result of
this the remuneralion paid to the highest paid director for the year to 3) March 2020 was £525,000.
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Notes to the financial statemerits .
For the yaar ending 3) March 2021

§ Dlrectors’ emoluments (continued)

\ggreg Group
" directors as foltows: . 2021 2020
Salary Bonus Benefits Totat Total
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
SBlack 29 54 15 298 -
D Cowans . 9% ) "85 519 s25
0 Marriott-Lavery . 0 . 3 27 218 207
TWeightman . 189 3 o2 284 209
AWinstantey . o 2% 50 ° 23 s07 a8
MParsans * Resigned 27 May 2020 98 - ] 120 169
JohnCarleton Resigned 29 February 2020 - - - - 2
Patrick Egan  Resigned 4 September 2019 * - - - - 139
Colin Rae Resigned 24 May 2020 - - - - 201
1367 -, 2 163 1,761 1810
i i the fullyear wizh th don1May 27May 2020,
The Group Chief Executive, D Cowans s the highest paid director as disclosed abave. D Cowans s not of o heme, and daes
ot receis d or special terms i y indivi i
di as foltows: 2021 2020
. €000 £000
SBlack & -
D Cowans - -
D Marriott-Lavery 30" 27
TWeightman 32 %
AWinstantey 32
MParsons Resigned 27 May 2020 18 N
John Carleton  Resigned 29 February 2020 - n
ColinRae Resigned 24 May 2020 _ W
: 159 140
Aggreg directors as foll 2024
-Salary Expenses Yotal
. . : £000 £000 £000
CPhilips Chair - Resigned 31 January 2621 .- : N - ]
RGregory  Chair~ Appointed | November 2020 3 - 33
ADaniel . . . - 2 - 2
RFinn : Co . 2 - 2
N Hopkins . : 2 1 30
G Kitchen 2 - 2
LLackey Appainted | April 2020 ' 2 - .29
6 Waddell - 2 - 2
ACleat Resigned 31 January 2021 ° o . 3 1 n
AHussaln  Resigned 31 January 202} an - n
T Janfts Resigned 12 January 2021 . B = N
-EWoolman  Resigned 3} January 2021 . o co 31 - Ell
| N 2 399

Richard Gregory was appointed to the board on] November 2020 and became Chair on 1 February 202).
Aggreg:  £24K relating & forloss of office.
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Notes to the financial statements .
For the geor endlng 31 Maich 202!

6 Employee Information

The average number of das fulltime
(including the executive directors) employed during the year was:

Group Group Company Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
No. No. No. No.
Managing housing services 2,443 238 29 »
Developing and selling houses 326 w3’ 12 0
Central administration services 78 %0 307 263 -
Care services 234 238 - -
Letsure service activities 2,206 2,39 - -
6178 348 2937
g f ampl taining for each
calendar month in the financiat year, the number of persons, by category, N
loyed by the Group. Th y th
and divided by the number of manths in the financial year. Lo
: 2021 2020 2021 2020
Staff casts (for the above persons): Em £m £m Em
Wages and salaries 180.0 1974 2 139
Severance pay 3.0 24 0.1 03
Sacial security costs 15.6 166 " i5
Pension payments ne 107 8 14
200.6 271 210 171
Staff costs (for the non-executive members ofthe board):
Wages and salaries [X] 04 - -
07 04 - =
.
banding for key personnel i
ichis considered ple Group to be members o the
Group a team ible for 1f of the Group's
Registered Providers. Analysis of the executive directors s disclosed in note 5.
c 2021 2020
No. No.
£70,000-£79999 1 -
£80,000-£89999 - 1 -
‘£90,000 - £99.999 1 3
"£100,000 - £109.999 - 4
£110,000-£119.999 5 5
£120,000- £125.999 2 -
£130,000-£139.999 [ -
£160,000-£149999 i 3
£150,000 - £159.999 ' 2
£170,000 - £179.999 . - 1
. H —_— ————
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"Notes to the financial statements

Forthe year anding 31 March 2021

7 Intorestrecelvable and similarincome

On financial assets not at fair value through the statement
-of comprehensive income: N

Interest on fixed asset invéstments
Dividend received
Diher interest receivable from deposits

8 Interest paysblo and similar charges

On financial liabilities not at fair value through the statement

of compréhensive income:

Bank loans and overdralts
Fi h: i hi lease
In respect of Recycted Capital Grant Fund

On defined benefil pension scheme:
Expected return on pension assets

Interest on scheme liabilities

Share of joint ventures interest payable and similar charges

Less: capitalised interest

9 Profiton ordinary activities before taxation

Profit on ardiriary activiti ion s stated after charging:

Depreciation and impairment:
Tangibe fixed assets
Amortisation of goodwill

ble i

Profit on disposal of angi

Payments under operaling leases:
Housing properties
Motor vehicles
Other aperating leases
Hire of equipment

Auditor’s remuneration: -
In their capacity as auditor

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£m £m &m £m
7.6 148 - -
18 18 - -
o3 05 - _
9.7 171 - -
6roup . Company

202 2020 2021 2020
em £m m Em
1268 128.2 - 02
145 %3 - -
- 03 - _
140.3 1428 - 02
[0 “en - -
79 84 - -
©5 0s - -
(2] 7 - -
0.5 0.4 - _
139.0 136 - 0.2
6roup Company

202 2020 202 2020
£m £m Em m
444 393 - -
13 13 - -
.04 08 - -
2. 91 - -
5.3 .51 01 0
19 22 - -
s 07 0.2 0z
07, 07 - -

Auditor's cemuneration in respect of non-audit sérvices was £108,000 (2020: £89,000). _
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Notes to the financial statements
For the yeor ending 21 Morch 2021

10 Taxon profit on ordinary activities

(s) Analysis of charge In perlod

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

United Kingdom corporation tax - )
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods
Gift Aid

Share of joint venture current tax

Deforrod tax (note 10e)

Origination and reversal of timing differences
Adjustrents to deferred tax in respect of prior periods
Effect of tax rate change on apening batance

Total tax charge

(b) Tax expense included in other comprehensive income
Deferred Tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences

(©) Factors affecting tax charge for period

The different than th

The differences aré explained below:
Taxable Group profit

“Profit ary activi iplied by th

tax in the UK of 19% (2020: 19%).

tax in the UK of 19% (2020: 19%)

Fixed asset differences

Expenses not deductible/(income not taxable).
Chargeable gains

Exemp! charitable income

Movement inunrecognised deferred tax

Amaunts charged directly to STRGL or otherwise transferred |

Rate difference

Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods.
Other movements.

Deduction for Gift Aid

Tax on profit on ordinary actlvities (note 10a)

Group
2021 2020
Em £m
51 38
.y (5.6
- 03

- 04
&0 0.2
16 14
©.3) 21
- {5

i 30

5.3 18
[ 96
791 N2
15.0 123
0.2 05
02 . - @n
0.2 0
8.1) 7.6
09 Cae
0.4 -
- n
.8 @9
(0.8) . -
©.8) - =
5.3 18
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ending 31 March 2621

10 Taxon profit on ordinary activities (continued)
{d) Factors that mey affect future tax charges

thi

The main rate of corporation tax is currently 15%, however this is due to increase to 25%
S . y

using the current

current and deferred tax charge accordingly.

(o) Provision for deferred tax
Accelerated capital allowances
Other short-term timing differences

Other timing differences

tax rate of 19%. Thi:

Taxlosses .
Interest rate and Y through other
Gift Aid

Provisiain/(debtor) at | April
Eifect of tax rate change on apening balance

y

P y t

ict of prior

(Debtor)/provision at 31 March at 19% (2020 19%) (noto 19 & 21)

5.5}
(0.2}

(1.4}

6roup
2020

Em

49
0y

G.h
&6
{0.3)

68
04,
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Notes to the financial statements
For the yeor ending 31 March 202i

11 Statement of cash flows

2021 2020
£m £m

Note 11a— Cash flow from operating aclivities
Profitfor the year 741 90.3

j s i 7 the yeor
Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets 4.5 393
Amortisation of grants (24.5) 17.5)
{Profit)/loss from investment in jaint venlures. 0.4
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests o9
Amariisation of intangible fixed assets ~ 13
Appreciation of fixed asset investments. (1.5
(Lass)/gain on revaluation of investment properties L)
Decrease nstock 157
Decreaseindebtors 37 341
Decrease intrade and other creditors (87.3) (62.6)
Profit on tangible fixed asset disposals {1.6) @1
Pension adjustment @.3) @5)
Interest payable A 139.0 1436
Interest receivable ©n [
Taxation 5.3 18
- 2197 i
) A1 Aprit Cash Other non- At 31 March
. : 2020 Flows  cash changas 2001
Noto 115 - Analysis of changes in not dobt €m “Em £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 183.6 (88.4) - 98.2
Borrowings

Debt duse within one year 334" (26.8) 1219 1289
Debt due after ane year . 81824 C (58.0) ‘1259) 2,998.7
3,216.0 (84.4) (4.0 3,127.6
Total 3,399.6 (172.8) [ 32228
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ending 31 March 262

12 Goodwill ' .

Not book value

ALY April 2020

Additions in year
Impairment charged in year

Amortisation charged in year

At 31 March 2021

Assets and liabilities acquired in year

Fixed assots.

Fixed assets

Current assots

Stock :
Debtors

Cashat bank

Creditors : Amounts fatling due within one year

Creditors : Amounits failing due after more than one year

cquired

During the year the i ini ftwo joint bringi i
10 100%, both acquisiti for nil consideration. The net assets acquired of Smith's Dock has been
reduiced by £4.0m through a provisian that had ised, the ining
goodwill b £1.6m. The gaodwill of Brio Reti t Living (Chap

been reduced by £2.5m through a provisi ised, the

remaining £2.5m was fully impaired in the year.

Group
£m

“@n

0.4
. Brio
| Retirement
Smith's Dock Uing
(Chapetton)
£m £m
20
%]
0.3 X

. ns 22
.6 a5
(23.8) a1

(8.5) (5.0

1202 SN0y pue Jioday |enuuy dnoug ajdoad Joj sade)d

o

9

SIUBIAIEIS JePURUY | 110day aueulaaog | ioday dibalens

Notes to the financial statements . N
For the yeor anding 31 March 202§ :

'li Housing pmponiu

ties in the course

directly spent on the activiie: 0 £2.9m (2020; £6.2m).

Expenditure on majar warks ta existing properties during the year was E49.9m (2020: £53.5m).

Additi housi ties in th "

the year i italised i of 1

LSE & shared
Houslng ownership
MHousing ownership properties in properties in
properties housing the course of the course of Totsl housing
and land properties . construction construction properties
Em £m £m £m em
Cost
A1 April 2020 .o 40008 2844 8.6 74 4,361.4
Additions . = et 1229 10.2 13341
Transfer 1o compteted schemes. 1448 . 89 (144.8) @89 Co-
Change of tenure 0.6 : ay 39 22 5.6
Transfer to sales account on disposal (10.8) (X)) - - (12.8)
At 31 March 2021 4,135.4 2655 70.8 ni 4,482.6
Depreciation i . .
A1 April 2020 i . “rn.n (5.9 - - (493.0)
Charge for year : . .
Depreciation (32.4) - - - (32.4)
Eliminated on disposal
Depreciation . 2.1 0.4 - - 2.5
At 3% March 2021 : . (507.4) {18.5) - - {522.9)
Net book value at 31 March 2021 3,628.0 250.0 70.6 " 3,959.7
Net book value at | April 2020 . B 35237 N 2485 B 88.6 76 3.868.4
LSE denotes Leasehold Schemes for the Elderly.
2021 2020
Em Em
“Housing properties comprise, at cost:
Freehold ° 4,008.8 38949
Long leasehold 464.5 457.7
Short leasehotd 9.3 88
4,482.6 43614
Additions during the year include an apportionment of staff time



Notes to the financial statements ) ' . Notes to the financial statements

For the yoar ending 31 March 2021 : For the yeor ending 31 Morch 2021

14 Group other fixed assets ’ 15 Fixed assets — investments Group - Company
. ) . 2021 2020 2021 2020
Commarciat and offico propertias
£m £m £m, £m
Plant and
3 Motor  spocialist  Computer  Freehold Long Short  Fixtures - Externali i ings ¢ 186.9 2028 05 05
2 vehlcles  equipment  eguipment offices leasshold leasehold and fittings Total g vestment property (&) . 5129 . _ _
8 £m Em | Em £m £m £m Em £m & . -
2 . ] Total fixed asset investments 157.8 7717 0.5 05
v ]
3 Cost 3 . Lo
7 AU Aprit 2020 . ) W5 527 322 e e 523 1909 S (a) Extarnal d in related 9
g Additions - 0 01 187 (Y 03 08 6 220 ~ E Group Company
1‘. Change of tenure . - ) 0 02 - on 08 o s 2021 2020 2021, - 2020
> > £m £m Em £m
3 Disposals ©3 «2 [ - () [ s P Gn 3"
5 g .
B At 31 March 202 17 4.3 4 2.4 12.6 33.5- 53.2 2091 F] Costat 1 April : 203.2 1938 05 05
s
H g Cost at 31 March i 185.1 w32 os © 05
% Deprecistion ) . . g .
S AL April 2020 [y @9 (222 08 @8 any - 683 (837 S Aceumuloted impalrment at 1 April (0.8 ©2) S -
I N .
g Charge for year ) @8 () () () 0] wy 022 g Provision raised in the year - 02 - -
2 Changeaftenure C - o ©h = - - - - 2 Reversal of impairment . 0.2 - - -
S i in di . . - - - 12 14 . 8 :
g Eliminated on disposat 03 X . 0 g 191 Mareh 0n 0o _ -
At 31 March 2021 ) 33 (26.5) @ a9 (16.3) (1.2) 92.9) . ’
160 . 161  Netbook vatue at 31 March T 1eas 2028 0.5 . 05
Impairment . T
@ A1 April 2020 - - - 03 ©5). an (] @8 "
g Charge for year — - - - - - 01 [XI 8 Debt service reserves. 266 29 - -
5 B 3
-3 3, : 2 - -
5 At 31 March 2021 - - - (0.3) (0.5) . (0.2) @n . A Grace GillettTeust . o o2
g E 5’ Trade Investment 0.2. - - -
K . g Other external investments : 50.7 575 0.3 03
- R Y Investment in associates . 0.0 R 1] . - -
:e;‘li::.l:lhnlzu;u 01 10 559 300 9.2 155 e nas ) g Investment in related undertakings - - 0z 02
F] Investment in joint venture underlakings 81.2 107.3 - -
5
F N .
8 b . L . B 1089 2028 0.5 © 08
E: et book value F
b 21 Aprl 2020 01 15 305 30, " 191 L 1064 2
2 I in Debt Servicing R heldin trust for the jati e Trustee Company as security against the 6.625%
5 H Euraband 2038, and the 5. Bond 2024, and b National y as security against a fixed rate toan of €47 million.
g g The reserves equate lo one year's payment of interest and principal.
I A
g Trust resulted legacy left ta suppart i i ascheme in Bristol. . 0
3
H
3
@
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Notes to the financial statements
Forthe yaar ending 31 March 202! : . .

15 Fixed assots — Investments (cantinued)

(b) Investment praperties

£m
AL April 2020 8749
Additions "7
Change of tenure ) .6
Revaluation inyear 3.9
Aborsive @y
Disposals as.9)
At 31 March 2021 8729
For the year ended 31 March 2021, biained anii ion of the i property
portialio. This was p i ith the Appraisa and Val 1 of the Royal instituti
Chartered Surveyors (a 'red book' valuation). i y Savills, who are RICS
qualified, have a strang i ion wi perience i i
valuatians.
Adiscounted cash flow method was used ta estimate the fair value of the portfolio. This used up-to-date
+ aperating cash ft i fate yield ta this data based
the market and the individual ci  each part of the portfalio. Comparisons have al ith
similar properties in recent transactions to give additional comfort around the valuations. Where applicable, an
sssessment s made on a similar basis for any related commerciatincome in respect of these properties.
; hallenge has b ied to both ion method and th
used, including in respect , CPland HPt
16 Equity loans . Sroup Company
: 2021 2020 2021 2020
em Em £m £m
Gross valustion
AU Agril 86.4 9.7 - -
Additions in year . (L2 24 - -
Netappreciationinyear - 26 18 - -
Dispesals in year (8.2) . (12.5) - —
At31 March ) 625 86.4 - -
" Other associated liabilities
A1 April . . (15.8) 182) - -
Additions in year . oy -
Nt appreciation in year . . ©.2) K] - -
Disposals inyear . - 27 - -
A1 31 March : N I 158) - =
Not book value at 31 Mareh 8.1 704 - -
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ending 31 March 2021

17 Stock

Land

Praperties in canstruction
Completed properties

Rental properties held l‘nr sale
Other

18 Debtors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Derivative financial i

profile and curcency risk

Trade and other debtors.

Agency leases

Loans and advances lo customers
Mortgages

19 Debtors: amounts falling due within one year

Rental debtors
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts

Other trade debtars

Mortgages

Deferred tax

Corporation tax

Capital debtors -
AU held

profile and currency risk

Amounts due fram réfated undertakings

Amounts due from joint ventures undertakings
‘and

Y 3
Loans and advances to custamers.
Loans to employees

rate

rale

Group Company
202 - 2020 2021 2020
€m £m £m 2
105.6 . 981 - -
225.6 2603 - -
577 507 - -
1.3 29
13 2.2 - _
408.3 4362 - -
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
€m C o Em £m 2]
45 489 - -
28.2 -
- 29 - -
- 02 - -
- 02 - -
12 16 - -
339 ] 538 - -
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£m Em £m £m
150 13.6 - -
(3] ©3 - -
20 73 - -
365 252 2.6 X
0.4 o1 - -
[ - - -
3.2 85 - —
359 CEIN - -
0.9 81 - -
- - 09 19
17 ] - -
498 9.2 5.8 3]
0.2 08 - -
0.4 S 02 - -
1891 142.4 16.3 27
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Forthe year endting 31 March 2021 . . : For the yeor ending 3 March 2021
20 Current asset investments Group Company . 22 Creditors: smounts falling due sfter more than one year
2021 2020 200 2020 . . Growp Company
£m £m £m £m : . . 2021 2020 2021 2020
o Cash held as security 128 %3 . - - . Em Em Em ) £m
2 2 Dobt :
H H
3 3 Housing and bank loans 1.669.7 - -
g g Debenture stock/bonds 1.239.5 - -
hJ hJ . N
g 3 Discount on bond issue (29.0) [N - -
k4 21 Craditors: smounts falling dits wikhin asyssr Group Company ) Obligations under finance leases 3 2224 2241 - -
® 2021 2020 3 2021 2020 ® AP eid . rate
. 9 .
£ Debt : £m £m Em £m £ profile and currency risk 602 80 -
] Housing and bank loans principal payable within one year 80,2 s - — 3 ’ Farei i : - 350 - -
€ I N N N
& incipal pay y 523 22 L= - ) 2,998.7 3,826 - -
K4 Discount on band issue O] ) - - g :
S Derivative financial instruments held to manage the interest rate -5 Other financlal liabilities X - .
file and isk 0.2 32 - - . .
ES profie andeurrency s ES Recycled Capital Grant Fund (nate 23) .5 7 - -
Fir ! . 17 1.8 - -
z inanceleases . 3 Deferred Government grant 1,297.8 13151 - . -
g 128.9 3[4 - . - g Falr value of breakage costs 98.5 993 - -
a ( @ HomeBuy grant 384 w04 - -
5 Other financial liabilities g -
= ntest on housing loans 2 55 _ _ = Total creditars falling due after more than one year | 44683 48751 - -
Payments received on account E - "ne 1ne - -
164 ) . 69 P _ _ 165
Prepaid rent ! -
" Corporation ax - - 03 03 “
F Deferred tax - - 8 - — H thel biectt is £75.0m (2020: £75.0m).
& Other taxes : : 34 25 0.4 Y 2 Al pported by specific ch h s housi ties and ble at varying retes of interest irom, 0.28%
F Caphatdevelopmentcreditor 8.0 - — z - 1L9S%, tinstalments. . -
g Trade creditors 182 09 06 H Included within housing and bank toans is £12.3m (2020: E14.3m) which relates to the cost of debt issue.
E Other creditors and accruals 1059 15.8 76 E .
H Deferred Government grant - ©- KR
-3 Recycled Capital Grant Fund (note 23) - _ 3
H ]
2 Disposal Proceeds Fund (note 23) - - _ a
g 4
‘g‘ 408.2 3459 1”71 9.4 ‘E
o o
3 )
2 H
H ]
2 o,
[ 3 .
4 I3
g
5
3
H
5
@
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ending 31 March 2621

23 Recycled capital grant and disposal proceeds fund

Homes England Greater London Authority
Recycled capitat grant fund 2021 2020 20 2020
. £m £m €m Em
At April ; . 35.0 36 1o - 150
Inputs 1o RCGF:  Grant recycled- 722 84 13 12
N Interest accrued - - 0.2 - 4]
Recycling of grant:  New build © ) 52 - -
Repayment of grant to the HE/GLA - - - (5.8) “
At 31 March ' 8.3 350 [X} 120
Amounts three years old or alder where repayment may be required 163 109 0.6 25,
Homes Englend Greator London Authority
Disposats proceads fund 2021 2020 2021 2020
&m £m &m Em
At April - - o1 01
Recycling of grant: Transferred to reserves . - - .0 -
AY31 March B . - - - 0
Amounts three years old or alder where repayment may be required ’ - - - ol
Recyct i fund in respect of h 4.7 45
Total recycled capital grant fund © s si6
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Notes to the financial statements
For the yeor ending 31 March 2021
24 Financial instruments

Financlal risk managoment objactives and policias

Currancy risk

The Groisp's board all ity for the The Group has idiaries and trad insterling. The
¢ d h s risk Grouph debtwhichi inated in forei The
framewark. The board of directors has established the Audit & Risk 2 is to mitig yrisk arising
Committee, whichi " i itoring the currency i This is achi i urrency
's i policies. The Committee reports regularly 1o interes rate swaps. Currency cash flow exposure is fully hedged,
the board 6f directors onits activitles. herefore a change in the forei be fully offset by
the swaps.
The Group's i policies i identify an
analyse the risks laced by the Group. to set appropriate risk Uimits and Other price risk
contrals, and to monitor risks and imits. Risk The Group Is impacted by inprice level
l iewed toreflect changesinmarket  the Retail Price Index (RPI). This is because some payments to retait
conditions and the Group's activities. The Group, throughts raining and irectly i he RPL.
\andard aims to develop a disciplined *
d i i} i inwhich all s I each ter

their roles and obligations.

interest payable costs by £0.3m per annum.

The Group Audit & Risk Committee oversees how management monitors  Crodit risk .
i i ‘s risk ici Credit risk ar: tothe risk af a toss if
d rkinrelation fails to performits obligati to

1o the Group. This rel

to risks faced by the Group. The Group Audit & Risk C:

“assistedin its oversight rale by Business Assurance. Thal team
b

with
corporates for credit granted in the course of operations and with
indivi i dl ted

th and ad: iews of risk

conlrols and procedures, the results of which are reported 1o the Audit &
Risk Committee. N

The Group's credit exposure is virtually all within the United Kingdom.

‘Whilst the Group's credit risk is best

of the i ks. lts activiti
accordance with board approved policy and are subject to regular audit,
The function does nal operale as a profil centre.

by the carrying value of the indivi 15, in most cases the fikely
exposure is far less due to the nature of the debt held, credi status of
actions taken to mitigate the risk

1o the Group as described below:

the year end

£219.7m (2020: -
£217.8m). Bank balances and short-term investments were £108.0m al — b P i d de its placed, p
In addition to this, i i its based on th llevel
available facilities of £873m (2020: £750m) and has established 3 of its investment activity and thie credit quality of the institutions with
European Medium Term Note Programme of £554m (2020: £554m) for i re placed. External re employed
i heldas

future fundraising.
Market risk

Market risk comprises interes! rate risk, currency risk and other price
risk.

interest rate risk

risk within 30% of the loan

* book, with the board exercising a strict control over derivativa

transactions; currently 77% of debt is either hetd at fixed rates of interest
or hedged against adverse rate movements,

The Group manages s exposure ta this risk through a mix of debt at
fixed rates of interest and interest rate hedging techniques.

itis estimated that each quarter percent increase in interest rates would
increase interest payable costs by £1.0m per annum.

debl reserves to credit enhance certain loan stocks; these reserves.
areheldat levels i derto
manage against the risk of shori-term movemnents in financial
markets. .

~ Inrespect of financial derivative instruments, the Group treasury

P y review of the credit ratings of
its ial institutie ies. The credit risk
L yexposure, N
risk gl ip! and the use of
counterparties of investor grade quality.
— Inrespect of indivi tenant arrears ]
y d imise debt recovery. In
addition, than half of llected directly t

authorities, reducing the Group's exposure to individual tenant's

credit risk.
L h

secured by a charge against the relevant property.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the yeor enading 31 Afgmh 2521
24 Financial instruments (continued)

Liquidity risk and refinancing exposure

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty
inmeeting the abligations associated with its financial
labiliies that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is
1o ensuire, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet ts liabilities when they fall due, under

both " o

losses or risking damage to th

Interest rate risk is considered to be a key companeni of both
market and liquidity risk. .

The Group is in compliance with allof ts nandial covenants

i inits loan documents and loan stocks trust deeds.
The Group defines its refinancing risk as loans which do not
include some form of amartisation or sinking fand.

The Group utilises short-term revolving bank debt as a
consequence of its sales programme. Currently 36.6% of debt
matures within the next 5 years, including 4.3% that matures .
during the next financial year.

Hedging

risk by taking oat

swaps to fix the GBP value of both interest and principal repayable
under fareign currency denominatéd debt. As al 31 March 2021 the

interest rate swaps with kio
inarket value of £55.0m.
Liquidity Risk .
i raterisk analysis below i idesed to be a key

companent of the Graup’s liquidity risk.

Ageing Profile and Interest rate risk of financial instruments
For each class of interest bearing financial asset and financial
liability, the following tables indicate the range af interest rates
effective at the statement of financial position date, the carrying

*amount on the statement of financial position and the periods in

which they repric

if earlier than the maturity date. The tables
b A iabilities only

The ageing profiles on page 169 include the impact of hedging
i in line with

the impact in the statement of comprehensive ircome.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ending 31 March 202! N
24 Financialinstruments (continued)

Ageing profilc and'Interest rate risk of financial assets as at 31 March 2021

. Group

. Efective Total  Within 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5  Overs
Interest  amount i year years years years yeors years
rate E
. % £m £m €m £m £m €m £m
Fixed asset investments:
Fixedrate 422% . 202 . - - - ny - L]
Floating rate 0.68% 64 - N - - - 84
Amounts due from related undertakings  11.63% 0.8 20.1 34 2.0 0.4 -~ 189
7.4 284 24 20 124 - e
Martgages and loans 15 ot [X} 01 01 01 1.0
Derivative financial instruments held to
manage interest rate risk 54 09 10 (L] 13 L6 L2)
84.3 290 45 18 1.5 17 239
All financial assets carry a fixed interest
rate unless otherwise shown. .
Comparative figures as al Effective © Total  Within 1-2 2-3 34 4-5 Overs
31 March 2020 were as follows: interest  amount 1year years years years years years
rate
; % £m £m Em £m Em £m Em
Fixed asset investments:
Fixed rate 215% 195 - - - - e 79
Floating rate *0.90% 83 - - - - - 83
Amounts due from related 293% 739 282 25 08 255 04 165
undertakings
1017 282 25 08 55 120 27
Mortgages and loans. 5] 01 o o (4] ol 12
Denvalw_e financial instruments held o 570 a1 52 n 73 107 134
manage interest rate risk -
160.4 364 88 120, 129 228 15
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Notes to the financial statements,

For the yaar eading 31 March 2021
24 Financiat instruments {cantinued)

Ageing profile and interest rate risk of financial liabili

Effsctive
Intarest Total  Within 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5  OverS
rate amount 1 year yoars years. years yoars yoars
) £m £m £m £m em €m &m
Stacks and bonds:
Fixedrate £77% 15664 52.4 s2.4 137 272, 2 10078
Indexed 3.44% 50.3 50.3 - - - - -
Discount on bond issue (34.5) - - - - - (348)
18622 1027 52.4 137 2724 38.2 9631
Housing and other loans:
Fixed rate 4.38% 18268 . " 108.8 188.7 80.2 9.6 1668 1,897
Index linked 3.76% 428 03 0.3 03 - 03 0.3 463
Floating 1.81% 4.8 [ X 1} 49 190.5 20 18.6
2,251.2 "8 2074 129.6 293.0 1690 1,254.8
Finance leases 579% 596.8 15.2 ‘152 15.2 5.2 B2 s20.8
Derivative financial instruments held to 03 04 0 . 14 27 o
manage interest rate risk
: . 4,470.5 235.9 366.0 262. 5917 2282 27895
All financial liabilities carry a fixed interest rate unless
otherwise shown.
Comparative figures as at 31 March 2020
were as follows:
Effective Total Within 1-2
interest  amount 1year years .2-3 3-4 4-5 Over5
ate h years years years years
% Em £m €m £m £m £m £m
Stocks and bonds:
Fixed rate ATM% 15988 524 52.4 524 ns 21 10558
Indexed 3.45% 500 04 94 = - .- - -
Discount on band issue (39.0) - - - - - 39.0)
1.609.8 528 1020 524 "3 721 10168
Housing and other loans: -
Firedrate 4S7%  1.800.6 %0 1069 166 88 987 13084
Index linked 347% 42 03 03 03 03 03 457
Floating rate 251% 5291 3 104 100.4 504 1995 507
23769 9346 278 2623 193 2985 14050
Finance leases 5.79% 4587 s s ns “ns ns 401.2
Derivalive financialinstruments held ta 512 22 2 20 a9 9 156
manage interest rate risk g
4.496.6 1611 3339 3282 288 5860 28384
Trade and tincluded in thy

t 31 March 2021

and are not subject to interest rate risk.

as they are non-interest bearing
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ending 31 March 202
24 Financlalinstruments (continued)

Borrowing facilities

g as follows:

As a1 3i March 2021, 2021 2020
. Em Em
Inane year o less, or on demand 285.6 2108
Inmore than one year but not more than two years 1626 3z
Inmore than two years 228.8
7513
€625mof s facilit security tenders (2020: £62.5m). .
Fair values of financial assots and financial liabilities
Set out below is a comparison by category of carrying values and fair values of all of the Group's financial instruments.
None of the financi abilities b ified during the year.
Group
2021 2020
Note Book value Fair valuo Book value Fair value
Financial assets €m ) £m £m
Fixed asset investments 15and 16 263.0 190.2 2734 2764
Current asset investments 2 12.8 12.8 2.3 2.3
Cash and cash equivalents 96.2 95.2 1836 1034
Long-term debtars 8 - - 3 3
Mortgages and loans 18and 19 R B N - 15 27 27
vative fi gei raterisk  1Band 19 5.4 5.4 570 57.0
&l ) 28.2 28.2 - -
Amounts owed from joint venture undertakings 19 (%] K% 11 1
Financial assets falling due within one year 19 © 83.7 83.7 74,8 X
4845 4187 L6198 6228
Financlat liabilities N
Debenture stacks and bonds 21and 22 1,260.2 1,447.9 12617 13977
Discount on band issue 21and22 (34.5) (34.5) 39.0) (39.0)
Hausing loans 21 and 22 1,637.3 1,697.3 17012 17012
: of foreign y 22 - - 50 350
i held gei raterisk  21and22 0.4 0.4 512 512
Other financialliabilities 2vand22 -276.0 276.0 ms s
Financial liabilities falling due within ane year 2 180.6 - 180.5 183.4 183.4
3,360.0 3,567.6 34510 3,607.0

d £28.2m (2020: Enil) i

Of the financial assets above £5.4m (2020: £57.0m)
i debt with ini ts bei

of foreign currency

Of the financiat liabilii

bove £60.4m (2020: E51.2m)
o e ben
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Notes to the financial statements
Ferthe year eading 2t March 2021
24 Financial instruments (continued)

The fair value of hetd-lo-maturity investments is determined by
reference lo their quoled bid price at the staterent of inancial
ition d: Thefalrvaluu fheld fi
disctosuré’ !

Financial assets falling due within one year,

long-term dobtors and mortgages .

The fair value of these assets is estimated as tre present vatue of
future cash flows, discounted at the market rat2 of inter2st at the
statement of financial position date if the effect is material.

Financial Uabllities

The fair value of trade and other payables is est.:mated as the
present value of fulure cash flows, discounted 2t the market rate
ofinterest at the statement of financial position date if the effect is
material,

Cash and cash aquivalents

The lair value of cash is estimated as its carrying amount where
th hi bl demand. Where it :

demand then the fair value is estimated at the present vaiue of
future cash flows, discounted al the market rate-of interest at the
statement of financial position date.

Interest-bearing barrowings .
Fair value is calculated based on the present value of future
principal and interest cash flows, discounted at tae markel rate of
interest al the statement of financiat position dat2. -

Derivative financial instrumenta
The firvalus of iteres ate swaps s based on braker quates.
q are tested for

the term:
each contract and using market interest rates for a similar
instrument at the measurement date.

Fair value hierarchy

™ of faif value for financial i has b
done using alevet 2valuation échnique. The defiition f tis

i her than
quoted marketprices ithin tevet | that bl

far the asset o liability, either directly or indirectly.
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Notes to the financial statements
fnllne}wr!ndl’w.’i/ Morch 202!
25 Pension abligations

loyees and former empl b

The pension costs for Places for Peopte Group relate to 13 sch t
Detaits of each scheme are set aut below. .

Group defined beneft schame surplus
PEPL (Holdings) Limited PFPL (Holdings)
Places for Panyle Group Retirement Benefit Scheme PFP Group
f the Citrus i RMG)

Group defined benefit achome liabilitios
Places for Peaple Group Retirement Benefil Scheme “PFP Group”
The Social Housing Pension Scheme "SHPS®

Housing ASsaciati ion Schemes 'SHAPS"

Cambridgeshire County Council Pension Fund ‘CCCPF*
Residential Management Group section of the Citrus Pension Plan “RMG*
PFFL {Hotdings) Limited “PFPL (Holdings)*

h
2021 2020
€m Em
: 04 ) -
- 255
0.4
259
.8 -
(8.6) %4
@9 w2
(2.0) ()
0.9} -
0.6

|

(22.8) a3

The Places for People Group Retirement Benefit Scheme The mnnalily assumption used at 31 March 2021 is 105% S2PA CMI_2020
Thi p calledthe with along- 1 of 1.0%. The
Ptaces for Peap! murlallly assumpnan used at 31 March NZII was |05% S2PACMI_2019

ral of 1:0%. Based on
This schemn is operated hy he G d i e i a mle currently aged 60 years old has a life

scheme based on final

Y.
‘The scheme was closed ta new members as at | September 2004 and
was closed to future accrual in October 2010, The most recent format
actugyiatvaluation was completed as at 31 March 2018 and has been

actuary tof

of FRS 102,45 partof the actuarialvaluations as at 31 March 2018, the
Group agreed a schedul
paying £16.31 i March 2019 and further anual contributions of £5m
between 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2025. The Group expects to
contribute £5m 10 the scheme during the year to 3) March 2022,

The Group is working with its advisers to resolve a number of issues that

2 25,4 yaars), a femal ly aged 60
years oldhas alfe expectancy of 27.8 years (2020: 277 years), amale
currently age 4D years otd will expect 1o have a ife expectancy of 26.7
years (2020: 267 y  they reach age 60 and a femal ly
aged 40 years old will expect to have a ife expectancy of 29.0years
(2020: 29.0 years) when they reach age 60. )

The Places for Peaple Lelsure Group

Retirement Benefit Scheme

PFPL (Holdings) Limited operates a defined benefit scheme.
The asses of the scheme are held ina separately administered

have been identified with the Scheme Rules in the Group's Retirement i an trustee
Benefit Scheme. This may result in increased liabitiles in respect of - body whichi i is
some benefits, At this stage the value of any additional liabilit t ufficiently current and future obligations.
be quantified.

The liahilities have b he results of the.
The Trust i p wi ional right to a refund 'ullSchemeFundlngAsseumemasal3I March 2019, altowing
of surpl 1 i of planliabilities in the for id. The present value
event afaplan wind-up. in the ordinary ofbusiness - of the defined benefit obtigation and the related current service
the Trustee has no righ i windup, or ise aug using the projected unit credit methad.

fi fthe scheme. Based on these rights, any !

net surplusin the UK scheme is recognisedin full.

PIPL (Holdings) Limited has agreed a funding plan with the Trustees of

period. ¢

. - 3 , inary contrit
The fundirig planis for th ltothevalveolthe  based ! active employees® salary. Additional
benefi ployees, based i greed with the Trustees 1o reduce the funding deficit
The fundi ions differ fromthe .
gures for thes 1 dh
(Fthere is a shortfall against thi thenthe
. GroupandTr & on defici ibutions ¢ 1 this deficit overa
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year 2nding 31 March 2021
25 Pension obligations (continued) *

The mortality assumption used at 31 March 2021 is 95% of SIPxA
CMI_2019 core i 20% p. along-term rate). Based on
these assumptians, a male currently aged 65 years old has a tife
expectancy af 22.7 years (2020: 22.6 years), a female currently aged 65
years old has a e expectancyof 5.0 years (2020 249 years), amale
currently aged 45 dh p Oy

years) 5years od hos a i

Social Housing Pension Scheme

Places for Peopl Limited, C i iation Limited
Hi i in the Social
Housing i-employer scheme which

provides benefils to mm-assnmled employers.

SHPS i n schemein the UK and is subject to the funding

46.3years (2020: 46.3 years).

Residentiat Management Broup Limited
Retirement Banefit Schame
Residential Group Limi
pensian schame, the Residential Management Group sectian of the
Citrus Pension Plan (‘Citrus”), with assets held in separately

ini The i i benefi the

legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into force on 30
December 2005. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions
Regulator and Tec! | Actuarial Standards issued by the Financial
Reporti il, set out the funding

accupatianal pensian schemes in the UK.

The last trienni ion of the scheme for f
carried out as al 30 September 2017. This valuation reveated a deficit of
£1.522m. A y plan has been putin place with the aim of removing

basis of members' final salary.

The Trusl Deed provides Residential Management Group Limited with an

this deficit by 30 September 2026.

SHPS it i ‘last-man standi ", Therefi h

cight 1o a refund of surpl ing the full * participting employer is potentially liable for other participating
settiement of plan iablites i the event of aplan wind-up. Furthermore,  employers'obligations f those employers are unable to meet their share
in the ardinary business the Trust ights to of the scheme deficit 5 fromthe sch
i y wind up, or otherwise augment the benefits d Participali aré egallyrequiredto meeuhzlrsharenl the
‘f the scheme. Based on thes rights, any plus in the UK scheme heme defici from the
infull. An actuari ion of the scheme.

carried out as at 31 March 2021.

beinli ith CMJ 2017 model with i to allow

For inancilyears ending on o before 28 Fabruary 201 had ol been

fori hoothing and a b of at15%
p.a. tor males and females. The mortality assumption used at 31 March
2021 is 90% of S2PxA CMI_2017 core impravements (1.5% p.a. long-term
rate]. The mortality assumption used at 31 March 2020 is 90% of S2PxA
CMI_2017 core improvements [1.5% p.a. long-term ratel. )

1 1o enableit 1o
accaum for the Scheme as cheme, theref
has previously accounted for SHPS as a defined contribution scheme. Fur
financialyears anding on or aﬁer 31 March 2019, it was possibla 1o ablain
ufficient i bl loyers i

account for the scheme as a defined benefit scheme.

Based ¢ ! ly aged 65 1dh: ™ usedat 31 March 202 is that amale currently
life expectancy of 22.5 years (2020: 22.4 years), a femal y ag aged 45 1d has a if tancy of 21.6 years (2020: 2.5 years). a
65 Idhas a life expi 237years (2020: 234 years) amale  female currently aged 65 years oldhas a e expectancy of 235 years
curvently aged 45 years aldhas alfe expectancyof 45 years (2020450 (0205223 years). sl 5 \dh:

1 h.

47.4 years (2020: 47.3 years).

Cambridgashire County Council Pension Fund

pectancy of 429 years (2020;
48 years oldhas alfo expectancy of i years (2020: 445 years).

Scattish Housing Associations’ Pension Scheme

it method. The
latest trignnial a:luanal valuallunwas at 31 March 2019, The CCCPF is
open to the employees of Chorus Group Limited.

The mortality assumption used at 31 March 2021 is that a mate currently
aged 65 years old has a lfe expectancy of 222 years QO 220 years) o
female cu ly aged &5 years old h: P 2.4years
(2020: 260 years), amale currently aged 4Syears oldhas a ife
expectancy of 43.2 years {2020: 42.7 years) and a lemale currently aged
45 years old has aife expectancy of 46.2 years (2020: 455 years).

The CCCPFis. 1t ! - Places for Peopl Hand Limited and Castle Rock EdllwurHuuslng
County Council under IM i ing the L i Limited participate in the
Pension Scheme (L.GPS), a defined benefit scheme, Triennial actuarial Pension Sch P ti-employ vhi ide

" valuations of i h perfarmed byanis benefits to nan-aun:iul!d employers.

SHAPS is 2 defined benefit scheme in the UK and i subject to the funding
tegislation oullined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into force on 30
December 2005. This, together with documents issued by the Pensians
Regutator and Technical Actuarial Standards issued by the Financial
Reporting Council, set out the framewark for funding defined benefit
occupatianat pension schemes in the UK.

The last triennial valuation of the schi

carried out as at 2018, ted a deficit of
£198m. A y plan has been putin pl he deficit

which runs 1028 thmavy 2022 for the majority of Emylnyers, although
cent
‘last-man standing arrangement’.
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Notes to the financial statements
FM!MMNLﬂn]’ Morch 2024
25 Pansion obligations (continued)

Therefore the company s potenialyzbl for lher articpating

employers’ obligati their share
ofthe sch lnllnwlng it from the scheme.
ipating empl 1o meet their share of the
h defici basi ithdrawal from the

scheme. For fnancialyoars ending an or befare 26 February 2019, thad .
ot been possibte for the company to obtain sufficient information to
enable it to account for the Scheme as a defined benefit scheme,

herefore the Group has previously accounted for SHAPS as a defined

or ing on or after 31 March
2019,t ible to obtain sufficient inforr enable the
any to t for the scheme scheme.

The mnrlall(y assumption used at 31 March 2021 is that a mate turrently
ld has a lif yof21.5 21.5years), a
lemale currently aged 65 vears old has a life expectancy of 23.4 years

P Y

5 1d has a life exp y of 45.0 yeirs {2020

9
5 years).

The major assumptions used by the actuaries of each scheme were:

2021

PFPL
SHPS SHAPS PFPGroup  (Holdings) RMG CCCPF
% % % % % %
Discountrate - 2.10 210 210 196 2.40 - 200
Rate of RP| inflation 3.30 3.30 3.30 ) 339 . 3.48 nls
Rate of increase in salaries .88 287 2.601.90" 338 2.45 338
Rate of increase in pension payments nfa nla nla 2.80 nla 288
Rate of CP} inflation 240 2460 fa 268 245 nla

2020 R
% % . % % % %
Discount rate 240 260 250 225 230 230
Rate of RPY inflation 250 290 260 2.0 280 - nfa
Rate of increase in salaries 245 2.60 2.60/1.90' 240 190 - 240
Rate of increase in pension payments nla nfa na 210 nfa 190
Rate of CPhinflation ) nfa nfa 210 190 nfa

* RP) max 5% pa/ RP| max 2.5% pa
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Notes to the financial statements
Forthe year ending 3 Morch 2021 -
25 Pension obligations (continued)

The major categories of assets as a percantsge of tot

SHPS
%

Diversified growth funds, hedge funds
and structure funds “s
Equities 16
Gilts : -
Lisbility driven investments 30.1
Absolute return bonds "4
Corporate bonds 59
Cashandcash eguivalents -
Other fixed interest 42
Insurance linked securities 2.4
Diréct lending . 7.7
Property . 40
SHPS
%

Diversified growth funds, hedge funds
andstructure funds - 10e
Equities . 18
Gilts T
Liability driven investments 6.6
Absolute returnbonds 98
Corporate bonds - 57
Cash and cash equivalents . o0
Other fixed interést 38
Insuirance linked securities . 3
Direct lending : m

Property 40

ot assots are as follows:

SHAPS
C %

141
190

288
1n2
2.5

5.5
24
7
T4

SHAPS
%

S48
1y
13

L 304
0.4
73
00
56
27
44
43

2021

PFP Group
%

20.0
1.0

260

30.0
7.0

2020

PFPGroup
%

150
no
00
10
00
20
10
C 00
00
00

PFPL
(Holdings)
. %

.2
9.4
3.4

&9
11

1.4
24

. PFPL
(Holdings)
%

18.0%

4.4%
0.0%
0.0%
59%
2.3%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
4.2%

15.8
14.0

18.1
16.4

9.6
18.2

87
5.0

170
26
00
16.4
00
]
183
294
81

- 00

0.0

CCCPF

69.0
15.0

15.0

CCCPF

480
120

170
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ending 31 March 2021
25 Pension obligations (continued)

Amounis recognised in the Statement of Financial Pasition

Valuo

SHPS . SHAPS PFPGroup (Holdings) RMG CCCPF Total
£m €m £m £m £m £m “Em
Fairvalue of assets 370 0.0 249.2 59 [X] 299 359.6
Present vatue of the scheme's liabiities (45.4) (329) (251.0) ®8) . %9 (38.9) 381.9)
" Surplus/(deficit) in the schame (8.4) @9 (1.8) © 04 (0.9) (2.0 (22.3)

Value at 31 March 2020

. . . PFRL .

SHPS SHAPS  PFPGroup  (Holdings) RMG CCePF Total
© Em £m £m €m £m £m £m
Fair value of assets 339 28 - 2427 5.2 58 %2 3384
Present value of the scheme's liabilities 8.2) @28.1) @7y 59) (5.4) aLy (325.8)
“3 - (1.3) 254 ©7) 04 ©9 128
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ending 31 March 2621 :
25 Pension obligations (continued)

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year anding 31 March 2021

. Acluarial gain/(loss) in pension scheme . 25 07 207 0.4) -

R PFPL .
SHPS ~ SHAPS PFPGroup  (Holdings) RMG CCCPF Total
£m £m £m Em Em Em Em
Current service cost - . - — [(R}] {0.1) 0.3) (0.5)
Amount chargedin arriving i - - - 0.1 {0.1) 0.3 (0.5)
Expected return on plan assets ’ X 0.7 80 [X] 04 0.6 8.4
Interest on scheme liabitities 1.0) ©.n (5.3) .1 . (0.1 {79
Amount chargad/icredited) to other finance . ]
costs -{0.0) - 0.7 - - {0.1) 0.5
I?lal charged o the statement o _ o7 on o o8 _
Year ending 31 March 2020
. . . PFPL
SHPS SHAPS  PFPGroup {Hotdings) RMG CCCPF Total
Em. ~ Em £m Em £m Em £m
Current service cost - - - (D) on ©.4) 08 .
profit — - — ) () 0.4 0.8
Expected return on planassets 08 . 07 57 DA 02 0.4 [:A]
. tnterest on scheme liabilties . () ©8) (5.4 on 02 ©8 8.6)
Amount charged/{credited) to other finance 03 on o1 o _ 02 ©3)
cosls T -
of ive i 03 o.n ol o.n o.hH {0.6) . (1R}
Amounts recognised In Other Comprehensive Income )
Year ending 31 March 2021
PFPL N -
SHPS SHAPS  PFPGroup  (Holdings) RMG CCCPF Total *
- Em Em Em £m £m £m £m
Actuarial gain/(lassi in pension scheme (5.0 (2.6) (33.0) 0.8 0.7) T(2.3) (43.0)
Year ending 31 March 2020
PFPL
SHPS SHAPS PFP Group {Hotdings) RMG CCCPF Total
“Em £m £m Em Em Em
1.0 33 278
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Notes to the financial statements
For the ear ending 31 March 2021 :
25 Penslon obligations (continued)

The changa in the fair value of the plan assets

analysed as follo

Year ending 31 March 2021

PFRL :
SHPS  SHAPS PFPGrowp (Holdings) RMB cCePF Total
- Em £m £m €m £m €m . Em
Asat | April 2020 339 269 427 sa2 8. 242 338
Interest on plan assets ] N 50 04 3] 0.6 8.4
Company contributions | 12 T 0 8.0 0.2 0.1 0.6 8.0
Contribution by scheme participants - - - - - 01 04
Benefits paid 1.6 (1.0) .6 ©n 0. 0.8 .2
Return on assets less interest 2.6 25 31 15 0.6 8.2 185
As at 31 March 2021 370 30.0 249.2 89 6.6 299 359.6
Actus! return on scheme assets SHPS  SHAPS  PFP Group PFPL /MG ccePF Total
- (Holdings)
Em &m £m €m &m £m - em
For yoar ending 31 March 2021 3.4 32 2.1 16 07 5i8. 23.8
For year ending 31 March 2020, 14 14 157 04 o 8 18.2
The changa in the present value of the dofinad benafit sbllgations Is analysed as follows:
' . PFPL
SHPS © SHAPS  PRPOrous Tl AMG  ccceF Totat
Em £m Em N £m Em Em £m
Asat1 April 2020 8.3 284 2 89 311 3289
Current servics costs . - - - - - - -
Past service costs - - - [X (X 03 05
Contributian by scheme participants - - - - - - -
‘Administration casts - - - - - [X] 01
Interest costs . . 1o 07 53 (X o1 o7 79
Benefits paid . (1.8 ©9) .6 ©.0 [ 0.6) ann
Actuariallosses/(gains) from changes 1o 02 _ 72 _ _ 04 8
demographic assumplions . .
Actuarial losses from changes to financiat o1 . o5 . — _ - 0.
assumptions
Actuarial (gain}loss on obligation 0.8 0.4 0.8 0.8 14 ©.8) -
529 2510 68 9 38.9 3819

Asat3t March 2021 45.4
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ending 31 March 2021
26 Caopital commitments

The Group is y
relating to the Groups use of the VAT sparting examptianin its Leisure
business, Thi: i i ial liabili‘y to the Group,
al this stage the value of gotential payments cannot be quantified.

- . . - ingin th

Graup Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£m £m £m
Capitat iture that h: h 7 but has not
been provided tor in the financial statements . 1322 2424 - . —
Capital iure that has ’ y f directors 1,012.7 12584 - - -
™ i il be fi i ith th y is delaitedin th
and nate 24 of these financial statements.
labl ing leases for the the period in which each lease expires, are set
" outbelow.
Group Company
Motor Motor Motor Motor
Land and vehicles & Land and vehicles & vehicles & vehicles &
bulldings equipment buildings equipment equipment equipment
2021 2021 2020 2020 202 2020
£n £m £m £m €m £m
In one year or less 19 ‘3.8 24 8 - 0.2 03
Ipn:yearnrmnrebutlesslhan 20 100 2 0.2 02
five years - . X
tnmore than five years 33 135 31 . 0 02
205 2.8 261 9.3 05 - 07
27 Contingentliabllities 28 Related party transactions
Dofined bénefit schemes
The Graup s part ing from the sch Under Section 33 of FRS 102 defined benefit pension schemes are
rules of th i i " detai considered es. Empli fihe G dit
be found on page 173, idiari

the i schemes: The
Social Housing i i jal
Pension Scheme, The Places for People Group Retirement Benefit
Scheme, The PFPL (Holdings) Limited scheme, the Residential
ion of the Cil i vand
Cambridgeshire County Council
Details of i ith

¥
of business. While the outcome of these cases isuncertain, the directors
believe, on the basis of advice received, that no material loss to the
Group will occur. Having made due enquiries the directors are not aware
of any further contingent liabilities.

i disclosed in nate 25,

Kay management personnel of the antity or its parent
On 17th June 2020, the shares (2021: £5,000,000, 2020: £5,000,000) that
Livings held in a listed social housing REIT were sold for £4,700,000.In
the year to 31 March 2021 dividends of £129,000 (2020: £127.000) were

received Irom this investment.

As at 31 March 2021 Places for People Ventures Operations Limited had a

loan to a develapment company with £6,039.086 (2020.£6,039,086)

ing. The toan is uns iab f return.
Ouring the year the director i inthi i the
Group.

P]aces for People Ventures Operations Limited held a £200,000

(2020:£200, i inanasset
prising of a £100, d of £100,000. During the
yearthe i £105,000. No divi ived

,trom this company in the year to 31 March 2021, During the year the
director involved in this company resigned from the Group.
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Notes to the financial statements

For the yeor ending 31 Morth 2021

28 Rolated party transactions (continued) -
The Group had the following ransactions during the year with oint ventures, associates and other external investments.
Amounts .
Services Services  outstanding at Interest Dividends
provided received 31 March 2021 receivod recaived
£ E £ £ E
Bighssue - - - 625000 9,248 - -
Blueprim LP - - - 1,101,500 - -
Boxed Energy Limited 50,929 437,002 150929 7,000 -
Brio Retirement Living (Chapelto Limited - 17,498,390 - 342,335 -
Braoklands Milton Keynes LLP 21,182,670 - - 2,261,207 -
Countryside Places for Peaple (Lower Herne) LLP - - 1,526,000 - -
Eione LLP 1,150,614 449,687 130,951 - -
Fair By Design Venture Ltd Parinership B - 134985 - -
Globat Habitat . - 91,247 - - -
Ickneild Port Loop LLP - - 562970 80429 -
llke Homes Limited External - 25079 - - -
London & Newcastle Capital Limiled . - - 6,000,000 - -
PFP Urban Splash JV LLP - - 15979517 1,389,350 -
PFPCMMRLP 51,924 - - - 150499
Picture Living LP 1,201538 - - - 728,500
Romsey Extra Care Ltd - - 9,748,785 231,239 -
Triple Point Social Housing REIT ple - - - - - 129000
Utiving®Essex2 Limited 84206 - 46,252 - 55,032
" Uliving®Gloucestershire Limited 949,462 - 72,500 - 106,455
Uliving@Hertfordshire plc 5535.292 - - - 573368
31,424,515 18,727,022 36,121,389 4,208,808 1,742,854
The Group had the falowing iransactions during the year with companies associated with key management personnel and directors.
Service: Servic Amounts Inte Dividends
provided receivad sutstanding recolved recelved
£ 3 £ £ €
James Andrew Residential Limited - 20m 2027 - -
Social C icati imited = 93.189 - = =
- 95,216 2,027 - -
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Notes to the financial statements
For the yeor ending 31 March 2621
29 Disclosure of Group undertakings

The following entities ar

Subsidiarios
Name

Allenbuild Limited
Allenbuild (South East) Limited
Blueroom Properties Limited
i istrict Leisure Ce it iation Ltd**
Brio Care Landale Limited"
Brio Care Limited
Brio Retirement Living (Applegreen) Limited
Brio Retirement Living (Barton Marina) Limiled
Brio Retirement Living (Chapeiton) Limited'
Brio Retirement Living (Chester) Limited
Brio Retirement Living (Holdings) Limited
Brio Retirement Living (JV) Limited
Brio Retirement Living (Midco) Limited *
Brio Retirement Living (Poundbury) Limited
Brio Retirement Living (Sote Risk) Limited
Brio Retirement Living (Stow on the Wold) Limited
Castte Rock Edinvar Housing Association Limited ™
Centro Place investments Limited?
Centro Place Management Limited?
Chorus Homes Developments Limited
Charus Homes Finance Limited"
Chorus Homes Group Limited**
Chorus Homes Limited*** .
Christchurch Estates Limited® )
Cotman Housing Association Limited*"
Curzon Street Management Limited

"David Glass Associates Limited®

Derwent Communily Housing Association Limited™?
Derwent Facilities Management Limited?

Derwent Housing Association Limited***

East Wick and Sweetwater Management Company Limited
Emblem Homes Limited K

F &S Properly Management Limited®

Girlings Retirement Rentals Limited

Gross Fine* -

Gross Fine (Holdings) Limited®

Gross Fine Management Limited”

Gross Fine Services Limited®

Hertford Company Secretaries Limited® .
HNJV Limited

" Hope Social Enterprises Limited

JVCO Limited

Leisure & Community Partnership Limited**
Lothian Housing Assaciation Limited"
Matilda's Academy Limited

Matilda's Blanket Limited

Matilda's Planet Group Limited

Matilda's Planet Manufacturing Limited
Matilda's Radiant Heating Limited
Matilda’s Warm Homes Limited
Matildasplanet Houses Limited
Matildasplanet Housing Solutions Limited
Matildasplanet Thermal Systems Limited
MDH (Group) Limited*  * °
Millwood Contracts Limited*

ings of Places for
The registered office address for each entity is 80 Cheapside, Landon, EC2V 6€E, unless stated atherwise.

p Limited and unt

Cilass of share held

Ordinary A" & 8°
Ordinary*"
Ordinary/Preference*
N/AS

Ordinary*
Ordinary*
Ordinary A* & 8*
Ordinary”
Ordinary*
rdinary*
Ordinary A", 8" &C*
Ordinary*
Ordinary®
Ordinary*
Ordinary A* 6 8*
Ordinary®
National/Community
Ordinary*
Ordinary*
Ordinary*/Preference*
N/A
N/A
Ordinary*
Ordinary*
National/Community
Ordinary*

- Ordinary*
Ordinary”
Ordinary*
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary*/Preference*
Ordinary*
Ordinary*
Ordinary A* & B*
Ordinary* )
Ordinary*
Ordinary* .
Ordinary”
Ordinary*/Preference*
Ordinary*
Ordinary/Preference*
N/A
Ordinary*
Ordinary*
Ordinary*
Ordinat
Ordinary®
Ordinary A* & B*
Ordinary*
Ordinary*
Ordinary*
Drdinary”
Ordinary A", B*,

rdinary A" & B*

Ordinary*

0, & F

, are

100%
*100%
100%
100%
100%
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Notes to the financial statements
For the yeor ending 31 Morch 202!
29 # Group g

Subsidiaries (continued)
Name

Miltwood Designer Homes Limited*
Mifiwoad Designer Homes Kent Ltd*
Millwood Designer Homes (Southern) Limited*
Mintan Healthcare (Buckingham) Limited
ModularWise Limited

Officers Fietd Development Limited
Osterna Limited*

PFP Capital Limited

PFP Cosec 2 Limited

PFP Cosec 4 Limited

PFPC 1 GP Limited

PFPCILP™

- PFPC MMR GP Limited’

PFPCMMR | LP*

PFPESCO 1 Limited

PFP Spatia GP Limited

PFP Spatia LP

PFPL Developments Limited

PFPL (Holdings) Limited

PFPL Projects (Epping) Ltd _

PFPL Projects (Hinckley) Ltd

PFPL Projects (Gosport) Ltd

PFPL Projects (Sandwell) Ltd

PFPL Projects {Sparkhill) Ltd

PFPL Projects (Surrey Heath) Lig

PFPL Projects (Wyre Forest) Lid.

PFP-Igloo (General Partner) Limited
PFP-gloo Limited Partnership*****
PFP-igloo Nominees Limited _

PFP MMR Developments Limited"

PFP Manco Holdings Limited

PFP SW Avon Limited

Places Developments (Holdings) Limited
Placefard Properties LLP

Places Academy Limited

Places for People Arrangemens 1 Limited
Places for People Capital Markets Plc
Places for People Developments Limited
Places for Peaple Developments (PRS) Limited
Places for People Finance ptc

Places for People Financial Services Limited
Places for People Green Services Limited
Piaces for Peaple Homes Limited**
Places for People International Limited
Places for People Financial Services Limited

- Places for Peaple Green Services Limited

Places for People Homes Limited***
Places for People Internatianal Limited

Places for People Investments Limited

Places for People Landscapes Limited

Places for Peaple Leisure Community Association Limited**
Places for People Leisure Limited**

Places for People Leisure Management Limited

Places for People Leisure Partnerships**

Places for Peaple Living+ Limited***

Places for People Pension Car Limited -

Plaes for Peaple Pensian Trustee Limited *

Class of share held

Ordinary A" £ B°
Ordinary*
Ordinary*
Ordinary*
Ordinary*
Ordinary*/Ordinary A"
Ordinary*
Ordinary/Preference*
Ordinary
Ordinary*
Ordinary*

N/A

Ordinary*

N/A

Ordinary
Ordinary*

N/A

Ordinary*
Ordinary* -
Ordinary*
Ordinary*
Ordinary*
Ordinary*
Ordinary*
Ordinary*
Ordinary*
Ordinary*

N/A

Ordinary*
Ordinary*

" Ordinary

Ordinary* .
Ordinary*, Ordinary B* & Preference®

Ordinary*

Ordinary

Ordinary .
Ordinary*/Preference*
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary/Preference”
Ordinary*

Ordinary

Ordinary*
Ordinary/Preference*
Ordinary*

Ordinary

Ordinary*

Ordinary

Ordinary*

N/A

N/A

Ordinary*

N/A

Ordinary
Ordinary/Preference*
Ordinary’ ™ ..

Propartion of shares held

100%
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Notes to the financial statements

For theyeor ending 31 Morch 2021

29 DI f Group

Subsidiarlies (continued)
Name

Places for People Retirement Limited

Piaces for People Scotland Limited"

Places for People Scotland (GP) Limited*
Places for Peaple Scottish Limited Partnership™
Places for Peopte SPV 1 Limited**”

Places far People SPV 2 Limited™

Places for Peaple Treasury plc

Places far People Ventures Limited

Places for People Venturés Operations Limited
Places Homes Limited

Places Leisure Limited

Places Living+ Limited

Places Management Limited

Places Students Limited

Residential Management Group Limited”
Residentiat Management Group Scotland Limited®
Residential Management Property Limited*
RMG Asset Management Limited’

RMG Client Services Limited®

Sam Jones (Clubs) Limited

Shrubhilt Investments Limited'

Smith’s Dock LLP

Stow Care Village LLP

The Engine Yard Edinburgh Lid

The Places Foundation®*

Tila Commercial Limited

Touchstane Corporate Property Services Limited
Upper Sirand Developments Limited'

Urban Matrix (Ditton) LLP

Wood Carewell Managements Limited®

Waod Group Trustees Limited®

Waod Management Trustees Limited”

Wood Managements Limited®

‘Wood Managements Group Limited

Wood Trustees Limited®

2eroC Acheson Cansartium Limited

Zero C Holdings Limited

ZeroC Group (2008) Limited

Class of share held

Ordinary*/Preference*

Ordinary A"/Preference”
Ordinary*

N/A

NIA

N/A

Ordinary
Ordinary/Preference®
Ordinary*/Preference®
Ordinary

Ordinary*

Ordinary

Ordinary”

Ordinary®

Ordinary* & Ordinary B
Ocdinary*

Ordinary*

Ordinary*

Ordinary*

Ordinary*

Ordinary*

N/A

NIA

Ordinary & Ordinary C*

Ordinary* .
Ordinary* & Ordinary
Ordinary*/Preference”

N/A

Ordinary*

Ordinary®

Ordinary*

Ordinary*

Ordinary*

Ordinary* & Ordinary Deferred*
Ordinary*

Ordinary* & Ordinary A*
Ordinary", Ordinary A" & B*

Proportion of sh

100%
100%
100%
N/A
N/A

1Z0Z SWno23Y pue 1ioday jenuuy dnosg a)dosd 10} 3k

1 Hay Avenue, Edinburgh, EH18 4RW

1 Centro Place, Pride Park, Derby, England, DE22 8RF

, Essex Road,

Unit , 95 Morrison Street, Glasgow, G5 BBE

6 Alexander Grove, Kings Hill, West Malling, England, ME9 4XR

Chelford House, Gadhraok Park, Northwich, Cheshire, England, CW9 7LN
/o Places for People, | St Andrew Square, 2nd Fioor, Edinburgh, EH2 28D
4The Pavilions, Portway, Presion, Lancashire, Usited Kingdom, PR2 2Y8

. Shares held by other Group entities but ultimately hetd by the Group.

“  Acomp

the

AScoltish limited partnership.
wst=+ Alimited partnership.

¥ g any
“r* Aregistered society registered under the Co-operetive & Community Benefit Sacieties Act 2014. Through ssparate written agreements,
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Notes to the financial statements
For the yeor ending 31 Morch 2021
29 of Group i

Joink Ventures/partnarships

‘Abade Modular Living LLP

Alumno Group Limited****

Bigg Regeneration Limited Partnership™

Bigg Regeneration (General Partner) Limited'
Blueprint Limited Partnership™?

Blueprint {General Partner) Limited®

Blueprint (Nominees) Limited®

Boxed Energy Limited® .

Brick House Port Loop Residents Management Company Limited®
Brooklands Miltan Keynes LLP®

Cityscape Edinburgh LLP*

Countryside Places for People (Lower Herne) LLP7
East Wick & Sweetwater Projects (Holdings) Ltd™"®
East Wick & Sweetwater Finance (Holdings) Ltd®
East Wick & Sweetwater Projects (Finance) Lid®
Global Habitat Housing SL*

Icknield Port Loop LLP*

Lakeshore Timber LLP*

Lighthouse Court LLP*

Namegrace Limited®

National Places LLP

PFPUS(IPL)LLP®

PFPUSIVLLP

. PFPUS JV (Nominee 1) Limited*

PFP US Residential (Park Hill) Limited*
Phase 1a Port Loop Residents Managemant Company Limited"
Picture Living LP****+*

Port Loop Estate Management Limited*

Port Loop Phase 2 Limited*

.
Part Laop Phase 2 Residents Management Company Limited"
PPSL (Keynsham) Limited

Reside Student Living LLP

Ruskin Square Phase One LLP"

‘Shrubhill NHT LLP*

South Ridge Development LLP

Swedish By Design LLP v

Stephenson Works LLP?

Urbian Splash (Park Hill) Limited*

Class of shares hald

NA
Ordinafy A"
N/A
Ordinary A*
N/A
Ordinary*
Ordinary*
AOrdinary
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
AOrdinary*/A Preference®
Ordinary*
Ordinary*
Ordinary
N/A

N/A

N/A
Ordinary 8*
N/A

N/A

N/A
Ordinary*
Ordinary*
N/A

N/A

. N/A

Ordinary (one share is hetd
by PIPUS IVLLP)
NA

Ordinary*

NiA

NA

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Ordinary*

Proportion of
nominal valus of
sharo class hotd
A -
100%

NiA

100%

NiA

50%

50%

100%

N/A

NIA

N

NIA

100%

0%

50%

50%

NA

NA

NA

100%

NiA

N/A

N/A

50%

50%

NA

NA

NiA

NiA

N/A
50%

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
50%

Proportion of all share
classes

N/A
50%
N/A
50%
N/A
50%
50%
50% -
N/A
N/A
NA
NiA
50%
50%
50%
50%
N/A

- NIA

NIA
50%
N/A
N/A
N/A
50%
509%
NIA
N/A
N/A
N/A

© NI

50%
N/A
NIA
NIA
NiA
NA
N/A
50%
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Notes to the financial statements
For the yoor ending 3! Morch 2021
29 of Group g

Other Graup Interests/Investments

Symlconnect Limited"

Ansaar Management Company (Private) Limited"*
Sunamp Limited"

Impact Social Value Reporting Ltd*

ike Homes Holdings Limited"

Romsey Extra Care Limited!®

AOrdinary* 100% 30%
Ordinary 5% 5%
Ordinary 1% %
Ordinary* 8% 8%
Ordinary* 8% 8%
Ordinary* % 1%

**  AScoltish limited partnership ‘
“»+ Alimited partnership

* Shares held by other Group entities but ultimately held by the Group

lumno Group Limited has i afurthert

Atumno Student Management Limited

Alumno Studedt (Barn) Limited

Alumno Student (Manchester) Limited

Alumno Student (Lewes Road) Limited

Alumno Student (Park Hill) Holdings Limited
Alumna Student (Mgmt) Limited

Alumno Student (Rockingharm) Limited

student sites:
Alumno Student (Alscot) Limited
Alumno Student (Essex) Limited
Alumna Student (Pershore) Limited
Alumno Student (Whitelock) Limited
Alumno Siudent (Park Hilt) Limited
Alumno Student (Jack's Lodge) Limited

wvees EastWick & Projec Limited has i
of the Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park development:
East Wick & Sweetwater Prajects (Phase 1) Limited
East Wick & Sweetwater Projects (Phase 3) Limited
" East Wick & Sweetwater Prajects (Phase 5) Limited

East Wick & Sweetwater Projects (Phase 7) Limited

further i plete the

East Wick & Sweetwater Projects (Phase 2) Limited
East Wick & Sweetwater Projects (Phase &) Limited
East Wick & Sweetwater Projects (Phase §) Limited

«+*++Picture Living LP is a 10:90 Uimited partnership (10% being Group’s interest) and the other entities that it within the overall

structure and include:
Picture Living GP LLP
Picture Living Investments GP LLP

Picture Living Investments LP
Picture Living Property Limited

Picture Living Trustee 1 Lid (incarporated in Jersey, 3rd Floor, Liberation House, Castle Street, St Helier, Jersey, JE! 1BL)

Picture Living Unitholder Ltd (incorporated in Jersey, 3rd Floor, Liberation House, Castle Street, St Helier, Jersey, JEI 1BL)

' 1 Canal House, 1 Applecross Street, Glasgow, 64 9SP

? First Floar, 48-50 St Mary‘§ Gate, Nottingham, NG1 10A

» Office 201, 49 Old Street, London, ECIV 9HX.

¢ Timber Wharf, 16-22 Wnrslwy’slrteh Manchester, M15 4LD

3 Barralt House, Cartwright Way, Forest Business Park, Bardon Hill, Coalville, Leicestershire, LES? 1UF

1 Hay Avenue, Edinburgh, EH16 4RW
! Countryside House, The Drive, Brentwood, Essex, UK, CM13 3AT
¢ 6hFloor, 350 Euston Road, Regent’s Place. Londan, NW1 3AX

v liqued 161,
. RMG House, Essex Road, Hoddesdon, Herts, EN11 0DR
" 1 LondonWall Place, London, EC2Y 5AU

" vices Civic Centre,

id de Mar, Barcelona, Spain

¢, Newcastle Upon Tyne, UK, NE 8OH

- Institute of Life Sciences 2, Room 504, University of Swansea, Singletan Park, Swansea, SA2 8PP
" i i il istered adds 31/10-A, Abu Bakar Block, New Garden Town, Lahore

b4 1 Satellite Park, Macmerry, Tranent, East Lothian, EH33 IRY
“  2ndFloor, 24-26 Lever Street, Manchester, M1 1DW
7 FlaxbyIndustrial Estate, Knaresborough, Harragate, HG5 0 }

wunit, lis Court, Welli 2

ark, High Wycombe, HP12 3PS N
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Notes to the financial statements
Forthe yeor ending 31 March 202i
29 of Group

Regulated and non-regulated entities

Places for Peapte Group, a regulated entity, afl heads to lated ithin the Group. This is mainly in respect of an
inistrati finance, i ion technology, facili and human rvices.
The table below the Group overhead allocation to each of the it
2021
£m
Places for Peopte Financial Services Limited X!
Places for People Landscapes Limited . 04
Places for People Scotland Limited o
Touchstone Carporate Property Services Limited 0.5
PFPL (Holdings) Limited 04
Residential Management Group Limited -
Zera C Holdings Limited 0.2
16

30 Events after the reporting date

There ware no events after the reporting date.
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Notes to the financial statements . B : ) " Board of directors, executives and advisors

For the yeor ending 31 Morch 2021
\

Forthe year eading 2! March 221

31 Housing stock

The Group owns 219,616 housing praperties. A breakdown of these hausi s is shown below: . . “Board of Dirsctors Non-executives
s, : - ReGregory Group Chair (appainted | February 2021)
nits !
devetopedor E CPhillips Graup Chalr (resigned 31 January 2021)
newly built Units sold/ Other - Acieal . (resigned 31 January 2021)
2020 i ired i . 2021 & ADaniel N
. No. No. No. No. No.' H
. 'Sacial housing owned : - z RFinn
g
~ General needs housing 56,577. 318 we . 0729 53,022 7 NHopkins
—  Alffordable rent - general needs 2787 e Lo 126 . 3,025 é AHussain” (resigned 31 January 2021)
~ Affordable rent - supportedhousinge, - - - W - wm w3 g TJames (resigned 12 January 2021)
~ Supported housing L 3354 89 [0} 28 3,383 £ GKilchen .
~ Housing for older people 2,153 - - 1,809 3962 -4 6 Waddeil " Senior Independent Director
. 3 ! :
~ L i 5,587 58 009) [0} 5,529 g EWoolman {resigned 31 January 2021)
Total soclal housing ownod . 68,458 495 . (291) Toom 69,034 g L Lackey {appointed 1 April 2020)
. . - 3
Social housing managed 3
~ General needs housing (including intermediate rent) 55165 k1 (148) 59 - s3y88 2 Executives
. 3 .
~  Afiordable rent - general needs 3811 1003 B 126 4938 2 DCowans  ° Group Chief Executive
- -]
—  Affordable rent - supported housing -. N - - ® m < DMarriott-Lavery Group Director Affordable Hausing
~ Supported housing ves 89 1) 125 1,930 2 S Black Group Director Development (appointed 1 May 2020)
- 3
_— Housing for older peapte . 2154 - - 1795 3,949 = TWeightman Group Director Assets and Investments
~ Lowcosth hip i L 5948 5B (109) )] 5,890 ’ AWinstanley Group Finance Director
Total social housing managed . ese26 1382 (291) 407 70,604 189
» Company Secratary CMartin
2021 2020 - : .
. . No. No. & Rogistered Office B0 Cheapside, Landon EC2V 6EE
Total social housing units managed but not owaed 3,587 2337 2
Total social housing units owned but not managed ! B 2,007 2,285 ‘_5‘ Banker . - Barclays Bank Plc, 38 Fishergate, Prestan PR1 2AD
Non-socll housing mansged : : © Rojistered Audt KPMG LLP. 15 Canada Square, London E14 SGL
— Market rent (incl. keyworker accommadation) L T 2978 2381 H eglstored Auditor + 19 Conada Square, Londan
- i R . . ,476 X 3 . . .
Managed services - . 10,4 89.463 & Registration of the Company  The Company is regi the Housing and ion Act 2008 (Number L4236)
— Leased housing — freehold anty . . 2.488 992 H under the Campanies Act 2008 (Number 03777037). IL s also affiliated o tha National Housing Federation.
—  Student accommodation 18,181 16,832 F4 - .
. : 5
— suff . - 105 g
Yotat non-social housing managed 146,693 13805 -
d - 3
Total social housing managed . 0,606 ] -
Total housing managed . . 217,297 " 208961 E
b " . —_— 2
Yotat housi d but body . 2,319 2,37 g’
Tota! houslng owned or managed . . 29618 209312 3 -
- . . —_— &
Garages, commerci ises and other idential uni d or serviced - 12,640 11,813

Tatal nlldln?hl and non-resldentlal units maiaged or 232,286 221125
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